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LA VISTA CITY COUNCIL
MEETING
February 21, 2012

A meeting of the City Councll of the City of La Vista, Nebraska was convened in open and public
session at 7:00 p.m. on Februaty 21, 2012, Present were Councilmembers: Sell, Ronan,
Sheehan, Quick, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Also in aftendance were City
Administrator Gunn, Assistant City Administrator Ramirez, Cily Attorney McKeon, City Clerk
Buethe, Library Director Barcal, Police Chief Lausten, Fire Chief Uhl, Public Works Director
Soucie, Finance Director Lindberg, Community Development Director Birch, Recreation Director
Stopak, City Planner Solberg, City Engineser Kottmann, and Streets Superintendant Goldman.

A netice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Times on February 08,
2012. Notfice was simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the City Council and a
copy of the acknowledgment of the receipt of notice attached to the minutes. Availability of the
agenda was communicated to the Mayor and City Councll in the advance notice of the meeting.
All proceedings shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the
public. Further, all subjects included in said proceedings were contained in the agenda for said
meeting which Is kepl continuously current and available for public inspection at City Hall during
normal business hours.

Mayor Kindig called the meeting to order and led the audience in the pledge of allegiance.

Mayor Kindig made an announcement regarding the agenda policy statement providing for an
expanded opportunity for public comment on the agenda items.

APPOINTMENT OF FIRE DEPARTMENT RECRUIT - SHANE L OWMAN

Mayor Kindig stated, with the approval of the City Council, he would like to appoint the following
Fire Department recruit: Shane Lowman. Councilmember Carlisle motioned the approval,
seconded by Councilmember Sheehan. Counclimembers voling aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick,
Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Absent; None. Motion carried.

APPOINTMENTS ~ RE-APPOINT — BRAD STRITTMATTER ~ BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT — 3
YEAR TERM; APPOINT — SUSAN LEWIS - PERSONNEL BOARD — FilL VACANCY

Mayor Kindig stated, with the approval of the City Council, he would like to appoint reappoint Brad
Strittmatter to the Board of Adjustments and Susan Lewis to the Personnel Board.
Councilmember Sell motioned the approval, seconded by Councilmember Crawford.
Councilmembers voting aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and
Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain None. Absent: None. Motion carried.

A, CONSENT AGENDA
1.APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED
2APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES FROM FEBRUARY 7, 2012
3.MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT - JANUARY 2012
4 REQUEST FOR PAYMENT- MIDWEST RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC —
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ~ THOMPSON CREEK - $578.00
5.REQUEST FOR PAYMENT ~ THOMPSON, DREESSEN & DORNER, INC. -
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES — APPLEWOOD CREEK IMPROVEMENTS -
$5,396.23
6.APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

LAUGHLIN, KATHLEEN A, TRUSTEE 474 00
4 SEASONS AWARDS, services 3000
A.S5.P. ENTERFRISES, bld&gmds ‘ 25.60
AAWHEEL & TRUCK SUPPLY, maint 43.56
ABANTE MARKETING, supplies 773.75
ACTION BATTERIES, equip. 10.32
AKSARBEN GARAGE DOOR, bid&gmds 447.00
ALAMAR, apparei 27596
AMERICAN MARKING, maint. 33.08
TROE, A., printing 775.00
ARAMARK, services 162.72

ASSOCIATED FIRE PROTECTION, supplies 820.73
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AVI SYSTEMS, services 778.00

BABER, B., training 225.00
BAKER & TAYLOR, books 622.76
BCDM-BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL, services 367.50
BOB'S RADIATOR REPAIR, maint. 87.00
BOLER WOOD & ASSC,, ins. 4954 35
BRENTWOOD AUTO WASH, services 126.00
BRITE IDEAS DECORATING, supplies 143.75
BROWN, G., training 115.00
BUILDERS SUPPLY, bld&gmds 8019
CALENTINE, |, travel 355 .00
CARDMEMRBER SERVICE, training&travel 535093
CITY OF OMAHA, services 68131.22
CJ'S HOME CENTER, bid&grnds 1462.67
CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT, travel 26425
CORNHUSKER INTL TRUCKS, maint 18.50
COX, utilities 192 85
CREIGHTON EMS EDU., training 975.00
D & D COMM,, contracts 507 .50
DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIP., maint 535.21
DARE CATALOG, supplies 1203.85
DEIML, K., training 330.00
DELL MARKETING, services 20114.97
DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFC, services 50.00
ED ROEHR SAFETY PRODUCTS, supplies 433.04
EDGEWEAR SCREEN PRINTING, apparel 38.00
ELECTRIC SPECIALTIES, bld&gmds 133.00
EMBASSY SUITES HOTEL, services 3587 .40
EN POINTE TECHN,, services 6235 80
FASTENAL COMP., maint. 51.92
FERRELLGAS, utilities 5.00
FILTER CARE, maint. 8215
FIREGUARD, eguip. 1342 .50
FITZGERALD SCHORR BARMETTLER, services 2339508
FOCUS PRINTING, services 111.00
FOSTER, T., services 262.00
FRONT RANGE TRAINING, training 40000
GALE, books 12365
GALLS, apparel 74.99
GARRQD, M, travel 180.00
GAYLORD BROS, supplies 141 62
GCR TIRE CENTERS, maint. 3603
GCSAA, dues 340 .00
GENUINE PARTS, maint. 1347.70
GREAT PLAINS ONE-CALL, services 95.67
PETERSON, F., maint. 72000
GUNN, B., travel 61.50
HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS, maint. 66 B9
HARM'S CONCRETE, bld&grnds 184 .50
HEARTLAND AWARDS, equip. 11.85
HEIMES, bld&grnds 2500
HELGET GAS, supplies 78 .00
HERITAGE CRYSTAL CLEAN, services 23569
HOBBY LOBBY, supplies 188.64
HOOK-FAST SPECIALTIES, apparel 15 87
HY-VEE, supplies B86.75

ICSC, dues 100.00
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IMAGE TREND, services
J Q OFFICE EQUIPMENT, services
JNFS ENGINEERING, services

LEAGUE OF NEBR MUNICIPALITIES, training

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS
LOGAN CONTRACTORS, equip.
LOU'S SPORTING GOODS, equip.
LOWE'S, supplies

MALLARD SAND & GRAVEL, equip.
MASIMORE MAGNUSON, services
MATHESON TRI-GAS, supplies
MENARDS, bld&grnds

MAT, services

METRO CHIEFS ASSN, dues
MCC, utilties

MID CON SYSTEMS, bid&grnds
MID-STATES UTILITY, maini.
MIDWEST STORAGE, supplies
MSC INDUSTRIAL, equip.

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES, postage

NEBRASKA 1OWA SUPPLY, supplies

NEBRASKA CLERK INSTITUTE, training

NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN, maint.
NEUMAN EQUIPMENT, equip.
NLA-training

NUTS AND BOLTS INC., maint
O'KEEFE ELEVATOR, bid&grnds
O'REILLY, maint.

OFFICE DEPOT, supplies

OLD NEWS, books

OPPD, utilities

CMAHA WINNELSON, bid&gmds
OMAHA WORLD HERALD, ads
OMB GUNS, supplies
OMNIGRAPHICS, books
PANASONIC COMPUTER, maint.
PAPILLION SANITATION, services
PAPILLION TIRE INC., maint.
PARAMOUNT, apparel
PARTSMASTER, supplies

PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS, appare!
PAYFLEX BYSTEMS, services

PERFORMANCE CHRYSLER JEEP, maint.

PETTY CASH

PITNEY BOWES, supplies

PLAINS EQUIPMENT GROUP, maint.
PUSH PEDAL PULL, equip.

RDG, services

REDSHAW PAINT, maint.

REGAL AWARDS, services
RETRIEVEX, services

SAM'S CLUB, supplies

SAPP BROS, supplies

SARPY COUNTY CHAMBER, training
SCHLEGEL, J., travel

SIMON, D., travel

SINNETT, J., travel

2500.00
1273.04
896 00
398.00
10405 79
180.00
214.40
419.41
54.84
4900.00
611.56
46 69
691.00
25.00
953111
206.53
38.16
132.79
59.68
1489.00
20443.72
223.00
8872.05
188.00
20.00
133.78
200.00
938.92
B55.83
17.00
1966 41
39.00
1185.04
264,00
59.70
2527 40
304.11
81.15
395.61
52.43
97.22
1500.00
114,64
125.29
408.00
703.05
76.00
22618.40
13214
112262
84.52
182.72
404.75
50.00
231.00
22500
225.00
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SMALL, B, apparel 120.00
SOUCIE, J., services 31 00
STATE STEEL, maint. 637 67
SUPERIOR VISION SVCS INC 481.76
THERMO KING, maint. 21943
THOMPSON DREESSEN & DORNER, services 2417.00
TITAN MACHINERY, maint. 324 22
TURFWERKS, bld&grnds 2037 60
TY'S OUTDOOR, equip. 860.00
U S ASPHALT, maint. 76.29
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA, training 3000.00
UPSTART, bocks 57.25
WALZ, R, services 60.09
WASTE MANAGEMENT NE., services 10B2.78
WICK'S STERLING, maint, _ 6272
WINGATE INNS, travel 539.00

Councilmember Carlisle made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by
Councilmember Gowan. Councilmember Quick reviewed the claims for this period and reported
that she found everything to be in order. Counclmembers voling aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick,
Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Eilerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent:
None. Motion carried.

I REPORTS FROM CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

City Adrministrator Gunn reparted that she along with Mayor Kindig, Police Chief Lausten, Police
Captain Pokomy, and Finance Director Lindberg attended the first meeting of the shared services
feasibility study. The study has a completion date of November 2012, o

City Clerk Buethe presented the Councll with the new design for the consent agenda using the
current agenda as a sample. Buethe stated that she would provide them with one more sample
and begin using the new format on March 20th. Buethe also stated that the baliot language to put
the pool bond issue on the May 15", 2012 ballot will be sent via regular mail and email to the
Election Commissioner on February 22™, 2012. Buethe also informed the Mayor and Council
that & memo had been placed in their mailboxes regarding National Incident Management
System Training necessary for Elected Officlals to be held February 28", 2012 at the District 2
Fire Station,

Fire Chief Uh! reparted that the emergency tabletop exercise will be held on March 1, 2012 and
the District 2 Fire Station and will be run by emergency manager Keith Deiml.

Public Works Direclor Soucie reported that the members of the APWA have joined with the Great
Plains Environmental Group where over 300 participants will aftend the spring conference April
11 and 12", 2012. Soucie also gave kudo's to Jan Bolte of the La Vista Library on her Nebraska
Forts Program,

Community Director Birch reported that the plans for the Civic Park Master Plan are moving
forward. The consultant for the project will host a warkshop with the City Council on March 13" at
6:30pm 1o talk about various results and give further guidance and direction.

Recreation Director Stopak thanked the Mayor and Council for help with the senior's Valentine’s
Day Lunch. Stopak also informed the Council that Program Directar Carstensen obfained a
$1000.00 grant from the Knights of Calumbus for Senior Programming.

Library Director Barcal reported that Teen Coordinator Lindsey Tomsu received a $1000 00 grant
from YALSA/Dollar General for the Summer Reading Program.

B. RESOLUTION - APPLICATION FOR PRELIMINARY PUD, LOT 2 BELLA LA VISTA
TABLED FROM JANUARY 17, 2012

Councitmember Carlisle moved to table any action on this agenda item until the March 6, 2012
city council meeting.

4




MINUTE RECORD

February 21, 2012

No. 728-Reprins & Couraire (e, Dunn

Seconded by Counciimember Crawford. Councilmembers voting aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick,
Sheehan, Carllsle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent:
Neone. Motion camied.

C. ONE AND SIX YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PLAN
1. PUBLIC HEARING

Mayor Kindig stated that a public hearing has been scheduled to discuss the One and Six Year
Street Improvement Plan.

At 07:17 p.m. Mayer Kindig opened the public hearing and stated the floor was now open for
discussion on the One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan.

Mayer Kindig asked who would be leading the 132™ Street project and Public Works Director
Soucie stated that it had not been decided but polentially could be Sarpy Gounty.
Councilmember Crawford asked if Lilian or James were scheduled this year and Street
Superintendent Goldman stated that they had been pushed back. Councilmember Sheehan
asked if any streets on the east side of 84" Street had been pushed back for work on the west
side. Goldman stated that there were safety issues with an area that had to be fixed, and Soucie
slated that they were changes in the last 3 years, but working within the CIP and the budget
numbers. Councilmember Crawford questioned a project that was out west that the city did not
oversee and was now being replaced. Crawford thought that was troubling to tax payers to pay
for fixes after only five years. Soucie stated that ali current projects have warranties to eliminate
this issue. Mayor Kindig stated that alt were frustrated with having to redo projecis we did not
oversee,

At 7:32 p.m. Councilmember Ellerbeck made a motion to close the public hearing. Seconded by
Councilmember Carlisle. Councilmembers voling aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle,
Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None., Absent: None. Motion carried.

2. RESOLUTION

Councilmember Carlisle moved fo adopt Resolution 12-015: A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA, APPROVING THE ONE-AND-
SIX-YEAR PLAN FOR HIGHWAY, ROAD AND STREET IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE CITY OF
LA VISTA AS SUBMITTED BY THE CITY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has revised and updaled the Gity of La Vista QOne-and-
Six-Year Street Plan; and

WHEREAS, the La Visla Planning Commission has reviewed the One-and-Six-Year Street Plan
for the Cily of La Vista and recommends to Council approval of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista, Nebraska held a public hearing
on the City of La Vista's One-and-Sbx-Year Plan for highway, road and street
improvements for the City of La Vista as submilted by the City Public Works
Director; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of the City of La Vista have therefore had an opportunity fo comment
on the One-and-Six-Year Plan for highway, road and street improvements for the
City of La Vista as submitied and reviewed by the La Vista City Council; and

WHEREAS, projects in the One-and-Six-Year Street Plan have been incorporated into the City
of La Vista's Capital Improvement Plan.

NOW THEREFORE, BE T RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Councll of the City of La Vista,
Nebraska that the One-and-Six-Year Plan for highway, road and streel
improvements for the City of La Vista as submitted by the City Public Works
Director and reviewed by the Mayor and City Councll of the City of La Vista be,
and the same hereby is, accepted and approved.

Seconded by Councilmember Quick. Counciimembers voling aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan,
Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion
carried,




MINUTE RECORD

February 21, 2012

No. 728 -Reorien & Coursny, ., Oxsils

D. RESOLUTION — AUTHORIZE REQUEST FOR BIDS — RE-ROOFING DOMED PORTION
OF CITY HALL/COMMUNITY CENTER FACILITY

Councilmember Quick introduced and moved for the adoption of Resulution Né. 12-016; A
RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA
AUTHORIZING THE REQUEST FOR BIDS FOR RE-ROOFING THE DOMED PORTION OF THE
CITY HALL/COMMUNITY CENTER FACILITY '

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a need exisls to re-roof the domed portion of
the City Hall/Community Center facility, and

WHEREAS, the FY 11/12 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget provides funding for re-
roofing the domed portion of the City HallfCommunity Center facility; and

WHEREAS, the Public Building and Grounds Director has prepared specifications for said re-
roofing project.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Administrator is hereby authorized to
advertise for bids for the re-roofing of the domed portion of the City Hall/Community
Center facility in accordance with specifications prepared by the Director of Public
Building and Grounds, and said bids are to be opened and publicly read aloud at
9:00 a.m. =t La Vista City Hall, 8116 Park View Blvd , La Vista, on March 8, 2012,

Advertise for Bids February 22, 2012
Open Bids March 8, 2012
Award Bid March 20, 2012

Councilmember Crawford asked what the estimated cost to fix will be. Building and Grounds
Director Archibald stated the estimate shouid be around $81,000. Councilmember Carlisle asked
if they will be using a bonded company, and Councilmember Sheehan asked how much area will
be replaced Archibald responded that yes, they would use a bonded company and that the
area's being replaced are the white areas of the roof Seconded by Councilmember Gowan.
Councilmembers voting aye: Sefl, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and
Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None Motion carried.

E. RESOLUTION — COUNCIL POLICY STATEMENT — FACILITY AND FIELD USAGE FEE

Counciimember Ellerbeck introduced and movad 16 table Resolution No. 12-017 until a future
date; A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA, APPROVING CHANGES AND REVISIONS TO AN EXISTING COUNCH. POLICY
STATEMENT.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary and desirable to creale
Councii Policy Statements as a means of establishing guidelines and direction to
the members of the City Council and to the city administration in regard to various
issues which regularly occur, and

WHEREAS, a Council Policy Statement entitled Policy, Rules and Regulations for Use of the
Community Center and Recreation: Scheduling, Operation and Maintenance of
City Fields have been reviewed and revisions recommended to the City
Administrator.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska,
do hereby approve the changes fo Council Policy Statement entitled Policy, Rules
and Regulations for Use of the Community Center and Recreation: Scheduling,
Operation and Maintenance of City Fields and do further hereby direct the
distribution of said Council Policy Statement to the appropriate City Depariments.

Seconded by Councilmember Ronan. Mayor Kindig addressed the Council and explained that
this agenda item was to determine a council policy in regards to waiving usage fees at certain city
properties.  Kindig explained that a set policy would give staff the direction needed with
organizations asked to have usage.or rental fees waived. Councilmember Ronan suggested that
this item be tabled until they were able to hear all sides as there were citizens who wished to
speak on the subject. Steve Hayden addressed the Council and stated that as a group who hosls
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a benefit although they understand the need for field rental in the large picture of the city’s budget
the field rental fees are less than 1%. That one percent may only be a few hundred dollars, and
as the organization raising money it is a large portion of what they could give. Mayor Kindig
explained that there is no current policy about waiving fees and asked if the Council would like to
begin a discussion as we get requests and need to begin giving a uniform answer.
Councilmember Ellerbeck asked if they had to make a determinalion tonight about waiving the
fees, and City Administrator Gunn stated that they could decide tonight to set parameters and
bring those fo staff, or have staff make suggestions. Recreation Director Stopak stated that they
receive several requests per year to waive fees for both the baseball, sofiball and the recreation
center. Gunn stated that they did waive one for an organization last year, but told severa! others
ne. Mayor Kindig stated that this group now wants to have a yearly tournament and wants their
fees waived every year and that council should include this type of request in their decision
making process. Councilmember Gowan stated that if we don't waive other fees such as building
permit fees for a group repaiting an elderly persons home than we should sfay consistent about
waiving fees. Councilmember Crawford stated that maybe all requests should come o Council
and Council decide. Gunn stated that they should discuss with the City Attorney how to choose
who to waive fees for in order to stay out of any trouble. Counciimember Carlisle agreed the
Council should choose when fees are waived. Mayor Kindig stated that he suggests Council set
a policy so that the administration and department heads can enforce it Councilmember
Ellsrbeck asked if Council was even interested in waiving fees, and if 50 what are the potential
ramifications. Councilmember Quick stated that Council shouid set a policy and remember that
they can review it at any time to see if working or if the policy needs to be reviewed Mayor
Kindig suggested that the Council give the Recreation Director the ability to waive fees for the first
year and the group pay 50 percent in subsequent years. Kindig staled we need o keep the
Recreation Director from being the bad guy. Counciimember Crawford stated that the best way is
to bring all the requests to the Council for a decision, and let Council decide when fees can be
waived. Gunn stated that paramelers should still be set so people apply will have an idea of their
request will be approved or not. Councilmember Sell asked if the Council can afford to approve
to waive all fees. Councilmember Crawford suggested continuing this discussion during a
strategic planning session, and City Administrator Gunn stated that anyone with ideas should let
her know and she will keep a fist. Counciimember Ellerbeck amended his motion to table action
on this agenda item to a future date. Seconded by Counciimember Ronan. Councilmembers
voting aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays:
None. Abstain: None. Absent; None. Motion carried,

Counclimember Gowan made a motion to move Comments from the Floor up on the agenda
ahead of Hem F Executive Session. Seconded by Councilmember Sell. Counciimembers voting
aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and Gowan. Nays: None.
Abstain: None. Absent; None. Motion carried.

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR

Panther's Baseball Board Members Jodee Drake-Soto, Bryan Sparks, Steve Hayden, Kevin Kros
and Ryan Pearson addressed the Council in regards to regular field rental fees. Drake-Soto
presented Council with numbers representing the fees in La Vista versus fees In the surrounding
area for youth competitive baseball. Drake-Soto stated that the Panthers are requesting that the
City of La Vista pass a resolution lowering usage fees for organizations that involve over 80
percent of students from the Papillion- La Vista Schoo! District as Papillion does. Councilmember
Sheehan, stated that Councii would ask staff to verify the information and review to ensure that all
comparisons were the same in the information presented. City Administrator Gunn stated that
staff would review and let the Panther's Organization know when the item may appear before the
City Council at a fater date.

F. EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS; PERSONEL

At 8:09 p.m. Councilmember Carlisle made a motion to go into executive session for protection of
the public interest for a litigation strategy session. Seconded by Councilmember Gowan.
Councilmembers voling aye: Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and
Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried. Mayor Quick stated the
executive session would be limited o the subject matter contained in the motion.

At 8:56 p.m. the Council came out of executive session, Counciimember Carlisle made a motion
to reconvene in open and public session. Seconded by Councilmember Crawford
Counclimembers voting aye; Sell, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle, Crawford, Ellerbeck and
Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried. '

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCH.
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Mayor Kindig reminded Council that DARE program graduations will take place at Parkview
Heights and La Vista West. Kindig gave a report on legislative issues that are being watched.

At 9:04 p.m. Councilmember Crawford made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by
Councilmember Carlisle. Councilmembers voting aye: Seli, Ronan, Quick, Sheehan, Carlisle,
Crawford, Elferbeck and Gowan. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH, 2012.

CITY GF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig
Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela A Buethe, CMC
City Clerk




OMAHA ELEC. SERV.
402-597-3040

8506 MADISION STREET
OMAHA, NE 63127

ELECTRIC
712-366-0588

1220 35" AVE. SUITE 100
COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA 51501

LAVISTA CITY OF INVOICE 1D 124513001

8118 PARKVIEW BLVD DRAW ID:; 12-451300001
LAVISTA, NE 65128 DATE: February 23.2012
CONTRACT 1D; 12-4513 CUSTOMER i LAVIS

CITY OF LA VISTA PO # JOHN COTTMANN

Description of work: 5900 PORTAL ROAD

FLOURESCENT LIGHT TUBE REPLACEMENT

Base Confract. ..., ... .. 12,779 82
Change Orders ... . .. 0.00
Total Contract... . oes cneeren 12,779.82
Billting Percentage. ... . ... 100.00 12,779 82
Less Retenlfon. ... .. ... 0.00
Less Previous Billings . ... . 000
AMOUNTDUE . . . 12,779 82
STATE AND CITY SALES TAX ... .. 0.00
TOTAL AMOUNT BUE ... .. 12,779 82
o o gy
Payment Terms - Net 30 days from the date of this involce. 0. 720. 0 413
Any questions or problem need fo be brought to our attention with-in 14 calendar days from the ;
of the invoice. Interes!, at a rate of 1.5% per month, will be added all invoices not paid with-in 30 days @&Y\ﬂzﬁ

3/ /200t

A Mechanic Lisn will be filed if this invoice is nol paid with-in 60 days  You will e responsible for all fees associaled wilh collecting this debt

Conant

SEND REMITTANCE TO ;: 8506 MADISON STREET . OMIAHA, NE 68127 . FAX 402-597-5992



APCHCKRP Fri Mar 2, 2012 11:060 AM ey City of LaVista tix OPER: hKH PAGE 1
0%.25 11 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER

BANK KO BANK NAME
CHECK NO DATE VENDOR NO VENDOR KAME CHECK AMOUNT CLEARED VOIDED MANUAL

1 Bank of Nebraska (500-B73)

106635 3/08/2012 4675 A TO % DATABRSES 750,060
106516  3/06/2012 762 ACTION BATTERIES UNLTD INC 336.95
106637 3/08/2012 2723 RKSARBEN GARAGE DOOR SVCS INC 85.00
106518 3/06/2012 571 ALAMAR UNIFORMS 731.97
106619 3/06/2012 4667 ALPHABET SIGNS INC 496.51
106620 3/06/2012 1524 AMERICAN MARKING CORPORATION 44.33
106621 3/06/2012 1302 AOT CORPORATION 756.33
106622  3/06/2012 516 ARRMARK UNIFORM SERVICES INC 242.60
106623 3/06/2012 2945 AVI SYSTEMS IRC 00 +*CLEARED** *+Y0IDED*+
106624 3/06/2012 2945 AVT SYSTEMS INC 424 .50
106625 3/06/2012 55 BADGER BODY 72.80
106626 3/06/2012 201 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOXS 1,831.11
106627  3/06/2012 4660 BARN®S, JEFF 15.09
106628 3/06/2012 1839 BCDM-BERINGER CTACCIO DENNELL 157.5¢8
106629  3/06/2012 329 BERCON BUILDING SERVICES 6,712.00
106630  3/06/2012 228 BEST CARE EMPLOYEE ASST PROGRM 00 #*CLEARED** *¥YDIDED*+
106631 3/06/2812 228 BEST CARE EMPLOYEE ASST PROGRM 2,244.00
106632 3/06/2012 4106 BETTER BUSINESS EQUIBMENT 53,19
106633 3/06/2012 3318 BIG RIG TRUCK ACCESSORIES INC 65.00
106634 3/06/2012 196 BLACK HILLS ENERGY 5,856.07
106635 3/06/2012 56 RBOB'S RADIATOR REPAIR €O INC 121.00
106636  3/06/2012 4454 BRAKE, AUSTIN 100.00
106637  3/06/2012 4647 BREWER, WILLIAM ANDREW 100.90
106638  3/06/2012 3760 BUETHE, PRM 40.80
106639 3/06/2012 2285 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING 211.50
106640 3/08/2012 219 CENTURY LINK 1,210.20
106541 3/06/2012 3176 COMP CHOICE INC 35.00
106542 3/06/2012 313 CONRECO INCORPORATED 45.00
106543 3/06/2012 4615 CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT 97.25
106644  3/06/2012 836 CORNBUSKER INTL TRUCKS INC 360.01
106645  3/06/2012 4680 COSGREN, WALLY JAMES 106.00
106646 3/06/2012 2158 COX COMMUNICATIONS 76.04
106647  3/06/2012 4670 CXTEC 270.79
106648 3/06/2012 3136 D & D COMMUNICATIONS 76.00
106648  3/06/2012 3408 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES £8.90
108650  3/06/20:2 3793 DEIME, KEITH 90.00
106651  3/06/2012 77 DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS 432.23
106652 3/08/2012 2149 DDUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFC 50.40
106651 3/06/2012 4385 DREWEL, RANDY 20000
106554  3/06/2012 2565 ELECTRONIC ENGINEERING 554.00
106655  3/06/2012 676 ENVIRC TECH SERVICES INC 4,867.56
106656  1/06/2012 §682 ENVY 200,00
106657  3/06/2012 3739 FELSBURG HOLT & ULLEVIG 978.13
106658 3/08/2012 4676 FLORES, DAVID 85.00
196659  3/06/2012 3415 FOCUS PRINTING .00 #+CLEARED** +¢VOIDED**
106660  3/06/2012 3415 POCUS PRINTING 5,515.96
106661  3/06/2012 3132 FORT DEARBORN LIFE INSURANCE 766,50
106662  3/06/2012 4050 FROZHLICH, RORY 100.00
106663  3/06/2012 3984 G I CLEANER & TAILORS 130.50
106664  3/06/2012 1344 GALE 420.38

106665  3/86/2012 285 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC 1,042.22
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BANK NO BRNK NAME

CHECK N0 DATE VENDOR KO VENDOR NEME CHECK AMOUNT  CLERRED VOIDED MANUAL
106666  3/06/2012 426 RANEY SHOE STORE 448 95
106667  3/08/2012 3657 HEARTLAND PAPER 235.00
106668 3/06/2012 2407 HEIMES CORPORATION 46.11
106663 3/06/2012 4178 HERITAGE CRYSTAL CLERN LLC 243 00
106670 3/06/2012 4679 HOINS, DAN 32.08
106671 3/06/2812 2688 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 425.97
106672 3/06/2012 2322 INDUSTRIAL SALES COMPANY INC 150.00
106673 3/06/2012 162 INLAND TRUCK PARTS 17.34
106674 3/06/2012 530 IPMA 369.00
106675  3/06/2012 1054 KLINKER, MRRK A 200.00
106676  3/06/2012 2394 KRIKA FLUID POWER CO INC 195.00
106677 3/06/2012 2057 1A VISTA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 50.00
106678 3/06/2012 4425 LANDPORT SYSTEMS INC 125.00
106673 1/06/2012 4063 LAY ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY ING 113,42
106680  3/06/2012 3198 LEAGUE OF NEBR MUNICZIPALITIES 450.00
106681 3/06/2012 2327 LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL 235.00
106682 3/06/2012 1573 LOGAN CONTRACTORS SUPPLY &0.00
106683 3/06/2012 4516 LOGO LOGIX EMBROIDERY & SCREEN 118.75
106684  3/06/2012 2124 LUKASTEWICZ, BRIAN 31.00
106685  3/06/2012 1539 MALLARD SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY 43.13
106686  3/06/2012 1875 MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORP 129.20
106687  3/06/2012 877 MATHESON TRI-GAS INC 339.27
106688  3/06/2012 5498 MENARDS-BELLEVUE 439.19
106689 3/06/2012 872 METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 9,879.28
106650  3/06/2012 553 METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DIST. 00 *#+CLEARED** +¥YSIDED**
106691 3/06/2012 553 METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DIST. .00 #*CLEARED** ++VQIDEDt*
106692 1/08/2012 553 METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DIST. 2,060.17
106693 1/06/2012 98 MICHAEL TODD AND COMPANY INC 1,360.13
106694 3/06/2012 2497 MID AMERICR DAY PHONES 50.00
106695 3/06/2012 184 MID CON SYSTEMS INCORPORATED 135.00
166696 3/06/2012 2299 MIDWEST TAPE 34.93
106697 3/06/2012 1050 MILLER PRESS 1,065.00
106698 3/06/2012 4085 MNJ TECHNOLOGIES DIRECT INC 2664.00
106639 3/06/2012 4677 MODLIN, DAVE 95.00
106700 3/p6/2012 288 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC 20,185.00
106701 3/68/2012 1028 NATIONAL PAPER COMPANY INC 291.78
106702 3/06/2012 170 NEBRASKA LAW ENFORCEMENT 36.00
106703 3/06/2012 132 NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN COMPANY 4,442.35
106704  3/08/2012 3303 NEBRASKA WELDING LD 43,91
106705 3/06/2012 2631 NEXTEL SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS 206.24
106706 3/06/2012 2631 NEXTEL SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS 385.3%
106707  3/06/2012 1152 NLA-NEBRASKA LIBRARY ASSN 22.00
106768 3/06/2012 440 NMC EXCHANGE LLC 493.139
106769 3/06/2012 17% NUTS AND BOLTS INCORPORATED 133.85
106710 3/06/2012 4678 NYLON 15.95
106711 3foe/f2012 1808 QCLC INC 31.50
106712 3/06/2012 1014 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00 *¥CLEARED** #*VDIDEDt*
106713 3/06/20%2 1014 OFFICE DEPQT INC 00 #*CLEARED** ++YQIDED*+
106714 3/06/2012 1014 OFFICE DEPQT INC .00 *+CLEARED** *+VDIDED**
106715 3/06/2012 1014 OFFICE DEPOT IKC 1,747.36
106716  3/66/2012 79 OMRHA COMPOUND COMPRNY 114.56
1067117 3/06/2012 4345 QMAHA TACTICAL LLC 112.00

106718 3/05/2012 3935 ORIENTAL TRADIRG COMPANY 53.53
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106719 3/06/2012 976 PAPILLION TIRE INCORPORATED 81.15
106720 3/06/2812 2666 PARAMOUNT LINEN & UNIFORM 00 *+CLERRED** #+VDIDED**
106721 370672012 2685 PARRMOUNT LINEN & UNIFORM 572.04
106722 3/06/2012 4576 PATRICIA CATERING 706.25
106723 3/08/2012 4654 PRYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC 250.00
106724 3/06/2012 3058 PERFORMANCE CHRYSLER JEEP 91.45
106725 3/06/2012 1821 PETTY CASH-PAM BUETHE .00 **CLEARED** **VOIDED*+
106726  3/06/2012 1821 PETTY CASH-PAM BUETHE 221 .64
106727 3/06/2012 74 PITNEY BOWES INC-PA 00 +*CLEARED+* +*VOIDED*+
106726 3/06/2012 74 PITNEY BOWES INC-PA 149.29
106729 3/06/2012 1784 PLAINS EQUIPMENT GROUP 1,377.96
106730 3/06/2012 3347 POSITIVE PROMOTIONS 269.35
106731 3/06/2012 3743 PROGRESSIVE BUSINESS 175.00
106732 3/06/2012 4673 QWEST 1D CORP 732.44
106733 3/06/2012 58 RAINBOW GLASS & SUPELY 204.89
106734 3/06/2012 4553 RDG PLANNING & DESIGN 16,156.60
106735 3/06/2012 3155 REDSHAW PAINT SUPPLY INC 474,85
106736 3/06/2012 624 SAPP BROS SERVICR CENTERS 494,64
106737 3/08/2012 2240 SARPY COUNTY COURTHOUSE 3,479.8¢%
106738 3/06/2012 532 SARPY COUNTY ECONOMIC DEV.CORP 245 DY
106738 3/06/2012 503 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 170.50
106740 3/06/2012 4641 SHRED-SAFE LLC 2011-2012 30.00
106741 3/08/2012 461 SIMPLEX GRINNELL LP 352.00
106742 3/06/2012 3838 SPRINT £2.28
106743 3/06/2812 3838 SPRINT 187.29
106744 3/06/2012 3495 SQUAD-FITTERS INC 112.90
106745  3/06/2012 306% STATE STEEL OF CMAHA 559.80
106746  3/06/2012 2634 STERIL MANUFACTURING CO 125.00
106747 3/06/2012 2898 SUPERIOR LAMP INC 124.87
106748 3/06/2012 4276 SUPERIOR VISION SVCS INC 424,80
106749 3/06/2012 332 SUSPENSION SHOP INCORPORATED 25494
106750 3/06/2012 4554 TELIN TRANSPORTATION GROUP LLC 70,77
106751 3/06/2012 4231 TORNADO WASH LLC 170.00
106752 3/06/2012 161 TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN 114.97
166753 3/66/2012 176 TURFWERKS 139,07
106754  3/06/2012 3735 TY'S OUTDOOR BOWER & SVC INC 98.20
106755  3/06/2012 2426 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 31.60
106756  3/06/2012 4223 VAIL, ADAM 100.00
106757 3/08/2012 803 VERIZON WIRELESS 395.18
106758 3/08/2012 1174 WAL-MART COMMUNITY BRC B0  ¥*CLEARED** *+VOIDED**
10675%  3/06/2012 1174 WAL-MART COMMUNITY BRC £81.15
106760 3/06/2012 4681 WALKER, TORREY 85.00
106761 3/06/2812 968 WICK'S STERLING TRUCKS INC 277.42
BANK TOTAL 123,653.58
OUTETANDING 123,653.58
CLEARED .00
VOIDED 08
FUND TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLEARED VOIDED
01  GENERAL FUND 80,543.01 80,542.01 .00 .00
02 SEWER FIND 4,496.15 4,496.15 .00 00
05  {ONSTRUCTION 36,341.00 36,341, 00 .00 00
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BANK N0 BANK NAME

CHECK NO DATE VENDOR NO VENDCR NAME

08 LOTTERY FUND 400.60
03  GOLF COURSE FUND 1,741 .94
15 OFF-STREET PARKING 131 .48

REPGRT TOTAL
QUTSTANDIRG
CLEARED
VOIDED

+ Gross Payroll 3-2-12
GRAND TOTAL

APPROVED BY COUNCII, MEMBERS 3~6-12

City of LaVista thEt
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (HECK REGISTER

OPER: ARH PAGE

CHECE AMOUNT CLEARED VOIDED MANUAL

123,653 58
123,653.58

.00
246,221.42
$369,875.00

COUNCIL MEMBER

COUNCYIL MEMBER

COUNCIL MEMBER

COUNCIL MEMBER

COUNCIL MEMBER



City of La Vista, Nebraska

Accountants’ Report and Financial Statements

September 30, 2011

B KDLLP

CPAs & Advisors




City of La Vista, Nebraska

September 30, 2011
Contents
Independent Accountants’ Report on Financial Statements and Supplementary
L1 E ) g T T oY o U 1

Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
StatemMENt OF NET ASSELS ....evvererierierisierieiitisieesee s seste s e ee e esess e besaeeetessssoseeasaresesneereresasatanensanns 3
StatemMeEnt OF ACHVILIES ...ccvecreririeriierinecriiiris et ss e et ere e et bebesatseas e eessssssserenssssssesesaen 4
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNdS.......cocieviieierinieisieicceeee e aesrn s s 5

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental
Funds t0 the Statement Of NEt ASSELS...uuuiiiiiiereercrirerererieessressesssessessssssssessssessesssssessesssssessessss 6

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental FUNAS..........ccoiiiiciiessnet ettt r et s e 7

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental ACHVIHIES ......oevveeeeerveerevererieenreeteneecesseseseseenens 8
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — General Fund ...........cooccvermvieiinncenneeeeeees e 9
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — Keno Fund .........cccooveeeiieeenicveioneieeeeeeceeeean 10
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — Economic Development Fund ...........ccocoevvevvvevviennnn 11
Balance Sheet — Proprietary FUNAS .........ccccoevieiieniniennncnsiee e eseaesesene s ssonan 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Proprietary Funds ................. 13
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds............... et sttt bt 14

Notes to Financial StAt@MENLS ............cccvveisinsenisonsssieissesserissnassssnessesssssssssssssssesssrssns 15

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ...........coveererericerierereeieeereresseesereseesissenesess e 35

Independent Accountants’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.......... 37

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have
a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.........ccccrvcvcemrcvrrcvinrmseessensonsans 39

Schedule of Findings and Questioned COSES .......cc.ccccvirmrrrrnsrinmrsiicsssensssssssessssessssensses 41
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit FIindings.......c.ccecmmrnimncenvssncssnenssnesssssnesessesssessessans 45




BKD 1120 S. 101st Street, Suite 410
LLP Omaha, NE 68124-1088

CPAs & Advisors 402.392.1040 Fax 402.392.1772  www.bkd.com

Independent Accountants’ Report on Financial Statements
and Supplementary Information

The Mayor and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City of La Vista as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise the City of La Vista’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of La Vista’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the City of La Vista as of September 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund, keno
fund and economic development fund thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 15, the City adopted Government Accounting Standards Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, through retrospective application to prior
year’s financial statements.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 23,
2012, on our consideration of the City of La Vista’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the

results of our audit.

The City has not presented management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America has determined is necessary to supplement, although not required
to be part of, the basic financial statements.

.,~ ® °q ..
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.
ﬁ/ﬁl LLF

February 23, 2012




City of La Vista, Nebraska
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2011

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,283,941 $ 569476 $ 7,853,417
Cash and investments at county treasurer 793,997 - 793,997
Certificates of deposit 3,607,312 500,816 4,108,128
Investments 3,683,596 57,923 3,741,519
Receivables 19,114,777 254,712 19,369,489
Internal balances (15,408) 15,408 -
Deferred charges 688,114 6,012 694,126
Capital assets
Non-depreciable 11,129,691 9,524 11,139,215
Depreciable, net 41,143,406 5,611,846 46,755,252
Total assets 87,429,426 7,025,717 94,455,143
Liabilities
Accounts payable 594,346 281,047 875,393
Accrued expenses 1,441,381 242,569 1,683,950
Deferred revenue 200,000 200,000
Registered warrants
Due in more than one year 640,554 - 640,554
Compensated absences '
Payable within one year 12,658 1,541 14,199
Payable in more than one year 836,818 97,615 934,433
Notes payable
Due within one year 133,533 36,388 169,921
Due in more than one year 236,078 123,888 362,966
Bonds payable ’
Due within one year 3,170,000 115,000 3,285,000
Due in more than one year 55,503,873 245,000 55,748,873
Total liabilities 62,772,241 1,143,048 63,915,289
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,776,059 5,079,147 17,855,206
Restricted for community betterment 2,712,041 - 2,712,041
Unrestricted 9,169,085 803,522 9,972,607
Total net assets $ 24,657,185 $ 5,882,669 $ 30,539,854

See Notes to the Financial Statements 3
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City bf La Vista, Nebraska

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2011

Total fund balance - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, aré not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Other related
amounts include interest payable of $1,123,201, bond issue costs of $688,114,
bond premiums of $42,276, deferred refunding of $198,403 and warrants payable
of $640,554.

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Special assessments receivable are offset by deferred revenue and, therefore,
1o allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary; also includes a portion of
allowance for doubtful accounts allocated to interest.

Deferred revenues represents funds not available in the current period and,

therefore, are not recognized as revenue in the governmental funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

See Notes to the Financial Statements

$ 31,737,628

52,273,097

(60,106,487)

(849,476)

(125,056)

1,727,479

$ 24,657,185




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Revenues
Property tax
Sales and use tax
Occupation tax
Motor vehicle tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Keno
Interest income
Special assessments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
General government
Streets and street lighting
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Community betterment
Community development

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from refunding of bonds payable
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent
Transfers in (out), net
Net assets received from annexation

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balances - End of Year

See Notes fo the Financial Statements

Debt Capital Economic
General Service Keno Improvements Development
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 4,919,410 $ 541387 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,460,797
2,578,082 1,289,041 - - - 3,867,123
1,542,079 - - - - 1,542,079
314,817 1,651 - - - 316,468
597,706 - - - - 597,706
2,210,246 - - 2,753,916 - 4,964,162
954,761 - - - - 954,761
- - 1,490,596 - - 1,490,596
10,971 104,019 17,070 - 1,188,405 1,320,465
- 252,396 - - - 252,396
38,386 - 53,745 - - 92,131
13,166,458 2,188,494 1,561,411 2,753,916 1,188,405 20,858,684
1,956,886 198,361 91,093 - - 2,246,340
2,207,457 - - - - 2,207,457
3,889,265 - - - - 3,889,265
2,213,236 - - - - 2,213,236
- - 396,069 - - 396,069
1,159,090 - - - - 1,159,090
418,281 - 12,111 3,714,087 - 4,144,479
- 2,520,000 - - 505,000 3,025,000
- 1,623,663 - - 1,494.532 3,118,195
11,844 215 4,342,024 499273 3,714,087 1,999,532 22,399,131
1,322,243 (2,153,530) 1,062,138 (960,171) (811,127) (1,540,447)
- 15,115,000 - - - 15,115,000
- (14,955,000) - - - (14,955,000)
(1,323,200) 635,037 (1,127,921) 981,084 600,000 (235,000)
887.438 - - - - 887,438
(435,762) 795,037 (1.127,921) 981.084 600,000 812,438
886,481 (1,358,493) (65,783) 20,913 (211,127) (728,009)
4,329,223 7,574,876 2,777,824 371,268 17,412,446 32,465,637
$ 5215704 § 6216383 $ 2.712.041 $ 392,181 $ 17,201,319 $ 31,737,628




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (728,009)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Govermnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period. 1,603,720

Proceeds from debt issues are an other financing source in the governmental
funds, but a debt issue increases long-term liabilities in the statement of

net assets. Other related amounts include the amount by which bond issue
costs exceed amortization, which is an expenditure in the funds, but these

costs are capitalized in the statement of net assets and amortized over their
useful lives. (15,080,014)

Repayment of bond and warrant principal is an expenditure in the governmental

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. 18,061,764

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds and warrants,
whereas in governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported
when due. ) 130,757

Compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (142,438)

Special assessments receivable are offset by deferred revenue and, therefore,
no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary. (69,890)

Deferred revenues represents funds not available in the current period and,
therefore, are not recognized as revenue in the governmental funds. 0 (230,796)

Proceeds received from annexation as reported in the governmental funds
includes only net assets available in the current period, but in the Statement of

Activities, net assets received from annexation also includes non-current net assets. (191,427)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 3,353,667

See Notes to the Financial Statements 8




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) -

General Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Grant income
Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Streets and street lighting
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public library
Community development
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out
Net assets received from annexation

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

See Notes to the Financial Statements

Variance With
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
$ 8,428,583 $ 8,603,583 $ 9,232,709 $ 629,126
389,500 429,250 597,706 168,456
1,199,528 1,271,757 1,528,327 256,570
457,990 940,490 942,456 1,966
326,119 826,119 626,280 (199,839)
50,000 10,000 10,986 986
29,000 38,000 38,386 386
10,880,720 12,119,199 12,976,850 857,651
2,232,716 2,065,940 1,984,706 81,234
2,114,329 2,185,368 2,233,769 (48,401)
4,428,082 5,042,137 4,179,350 862,787
1,638,079 1,630,589 1,599,836 30,753
651,541 651,672 623,280 28,392
645,161 617,288 1,180,057 (562,769)
408,370 419,118 422,484 (3,366)
12,118,278 12,612,112 12,223,482 388,630
(1,237,558) (492,913) 753,368 1,246,281
(1,343,400) (1,311,200) (1,323,200) (12,000)
1,309,622 449,969 156,415 (293,554)
(33,778) (861,231) (1,166,785) (305,554)
$ (1271,336) $ (1354144 $  (413.417) $ 940,727
9




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —

Keno Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Revenues
Keno

Interest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Community betterment

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balances

See Notes to the Financial Statements

Variance With

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)

$ 1,165,145 $ 1,380,145 $ 1,521,875 $ 141,730

75,000 75,000 17,070 (57,930)

1,240,145 1,455,145 1,538,945 83,800

99,500 117,500 92.813 24,687

340,735 442,735 396,056 46,679

- - 68,111 (68,111)

440,235 560.235 556,980 3,255

799,910 894,910 981,965 87,055

(1,184,141) (1,177,921) (1,127.921) 50,000

$ (384231) _$  (283.011) § (145.956) $ 137.055
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —

Economic Development Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance With
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
Revenues
Interest income $ 1,186,573 $§ 1,186,573 $ 1,188,405 $ 1,832
Total revenues 1,186,573 1,186,573 1,188,405 1,832
Expenditures ‘
Debt service principal retirement 505,000 505,000 505,000 -
Debt service interest 1,494.532 1,494,532 1,494,532 -
Total expenditures 1,999,532 1,999,532 1,999,532 -
Deficiency of Revenues Over
Expenditures (812,959) (812,959) (811,127) 1.832
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 600,000 600,000 600,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balances $  (212,959) §  (212.959) $  (211,127) $ 1.832

See Nates to the Financial Statements 11




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Balance Sheet -
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2011

Golf Sewer Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 50966 $ 518510 8§ 569,476
Certificates of deposit - 500,816 500.816
Investments - 57,923 57,923
Due from other funds - 15,408 15,408
Accounts receivable - 254,712 254,712
Total current assets 50,966 1.347,369 1,398,335
Non-current Assets
Deferred charges ' 6,012 - 6.012
Land - 9,524 9,524
Equipment and furniture 163,156 883,860 1,047,016
Utility systems - 6,470,176 6,470,176
Autos and trucks 99.774 375,903 475,677
Buildings and improvements 1,623,903 9,365 1,633,268
Accumulated depreciation (1,215,972) (2,798.319) (4,014.291)
Capital assets - net of depreciation 670,861 4,950,509 5,621,370
Total non-current assets 676,873 4,950,509 5.627,382
Total assets $ 727839 $ 6,297,878 § 7,025,717
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 24346 $ 256,701 § 281,047
Accrued expenses 18,257 224,312 242.569
Compensated absences - current portion 99 1,442 1,541
Notes payable - current portion ' 5,938 30,450 36,388
Bonds payable - current portion 115,000 - 115.000
Total current liabilities 163,640 512,905 676,545
Non-current Liabilities
Compensated absences 14,258 83,357 97,615
Notes payable 9,717 114,171 123,888
Bond payable 245,000 - 245.000
Total non-current liabilities 268,975 197,528 466,503
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 273,259 4,805,888 5,079,147
Unrestricted 21,965 781,557 803,522
Total net assets 295,224 5,587,445 5,882,669
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 727.839 § 6,297.878 _§ 7.025.717

See Notes to the Financial Statements 12




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets —
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Operating Revenues
User fees
Permits and hookups
Grant income
Merchandise sales
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
General administrative
Cost of merchandise sold
Maintenance
Production and distribution
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest on bonds and notes payable
Contribution from annexation

Net non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers In
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

See Notes to the Financial Statements

Golf Total
227,479 $ 2,183,186
. 372,754
. 36,154
34,256 34,256
1,609 1,609
263,344 2,627,959
137,013 598,088
21,243 21,243
179,361 179,361
- 1,533,101
83,432 221,453
421,049 2,553,246
(157,705) 74,713
39 5,502
(21,361) (23,721)
- 512,046
(21,322) 493,827
(179,027) 568,540
235,000 235,000
55,973 803,540
239,251 5,079,129
295,224 $ 5,882,669
13




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Statement of Cash Flows —
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Golf Sewer Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 263,344 $ 2,249,035 $ 2,512,379
Payments to suppliers (122,655) (1,238,330) (1,360,985)
Payments to employees (229,242) (673,318) (902,560)
Grant income - 36,154 36,154
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ‘ (88,553) 373,541 284,988
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
Transfers 235,000 - 235,000
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (5,932) (52,980) (58,912)
Principal paid on bonds (110,000) - (110,000)
Principal paid on notes (5,764) (14,845) (20,609)
Interest paid on bonds and notes (21,361) (2,360) (23,721
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (143,057) (70,185) (213,242)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments - (501,513) (501,513)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments - 250,946 250,946
Interest income 39 5,463 5,502
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 39 (245,104) (245,065)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,429 58,25'2 61,681
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 47,537 460,258 507,795
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 50,966 $ 518,510 $ 569,476
Operating income (loss) $ (157,705 § 232,418 $ 74,713
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 83,432 138,021 221,453
Increase in receivables - (64,018) (64,018)
Increase in due from other funds - (15,408) (15,408)
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued expenses (14,280) 82,528 68,248
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (88,553) 8§ 373,541 $ 284,988
Supplemental Cash Flows Information
Debt and payables incurred for purchase of capital assets $ 15,929 $ 159,466 $ 175,395
See Notes to the Financial Statements 14




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Introduction

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and
practices of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) are discussed in the subsequent section of
this Note. The remainder of the Notes are organized to provide explanations, including required
disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

The City of La Vista, Nebraska operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides
the following services: public safety (police and fire), public works (highway and streets), sanitary
sewer, culture and recreation, community development (public improvements), planning and
zoning, and general administrative services.

Financial Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the financial statements of the City as the primary government.
In determining its reporting entity, the City has considered all potential component units for which
it is financially accountable, including other organizations which are fiscally dependent on the
City, or the significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would make the
financial statements misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability, which was
used in making this evaluation.

The City has determined the La Vista Municipal Facilities Corpbration is a blended component unit.
A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is a direct part of the government’s
operations.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™). The City’s reporting entity applies
all relevant GASB pronouncements and applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) opinions issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of
internal activity (between or within funds). However, internal eliminations do not include utility
services provided to City departments. Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses.
Proprietary fund financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting
although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants
are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 201 1

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation -
Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become both
measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally available for such purposes. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include real estate taxes, earned
interest, and charges for services. Major revenues not susceptible to accrual because they are either
not available early enough to pay liabilities from the current period or are not measurable until
received include franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses, permits, and fines. Revenues not
considered available are recorded as deferred revenues. '

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary
funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of
providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.
Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding
fiduciary activities.  Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish
governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and City general revenues, from business-
type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and
may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and
program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include charges
paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or
business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Basis of Presentation - Continued

Net assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Fund
financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and
enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Major
individual funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements. A fund is
considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City, meets specific criteria set forth by
GASB or is identified as a major fund by the City’s management.

Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most general governmental functions of the City are
financed. Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and

decreases in net current assets.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived
primarily from property and other local taxes, state and federal distributions, licenses, permits,
charges for services and interest income.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for financial resources that are restricted for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Keno Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses related to the Keno operations of the
City. These funds are used for community betterment.

Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for financial resources that are committed to
expenditures for capital outlay.

Economic Development Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures to support the
City’s commercial developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods and expand industrial
development in order to ensure economic stability and vitality of the City.

17




City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Fund Types and Major Funds - Continued

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City’s ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those often found in the private sector. Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included in the statement of net assets. Proprietary
fund operating statements present increases and decreases in net total assets.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s sewer utility. -

Golf Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s golf course.

Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash deposit pool that is available for use by all funds. The pool consists of
bank deposits and investments. The equity of proprietary funds in this pool is considered to be
cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. In addition, cash and
investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
All other investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is determined using quoted market
prices.

Investment income includes dividend and interest income and the net change for the year in the
fair value of investments carried at fair value. Investment income is assigned to the funds with
which the related investment asset is associated.

Special Assessments

Special assessments are recorded as revenue in the year the assessments become current; those
amounts receivable after one year are recorded as deferred revenue. Annual installments not yet
due are reflected as special assessments receivables and deferred revenues.

Unbilled Sewer Revenue

Billings for sewer revenues are rendered on a monthly basis. Unbilled sewer revenues,
representing estimated consumer usage for the period between the last billing date and the end of
the year, have been recorded.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The City’s property, plant, equipment and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year
are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial
statements; proprietary capital assets are also reported in their respective fund. The City maintains
infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. The City generally capitalizes
assets with a cost of $2,500 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated assets are stated at fair value on
the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or
materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the
cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the
resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 10 — 45 years
Improvements 5-30years
Infrastructure 20 — 60 years
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 520 years

Long-Term Obligations

In government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, bond discounts or premiums and the
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of refunded debt are
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates
the effective interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other
financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

Compensated Absences

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the
benefits are earned if the leave is attributable to past services and it is probable that the City will
compensate the employees for such benefits. Sick leave and other compensated absences with
similar characteristics are accrued as the benefits are earned only to the extent that it is probable
that the City will compensate the employees for such benefits. Such accruals are based on current
salary rates plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as Social Security
and Medicare taxes and pension amounts using rates in effect at that date.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Compensated Absences - Continued

Vacation and sick leave is accrued in accordance with the City’s policy, when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental funds, only
compensated absences expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are

recorded as a fund liability.

Net Assets Classification

Government-wide Statements

Net assets are required to be classified into three components — invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, restricted and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvements of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end,
the portion of debt attributable to unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted — This component of net assets consists of restrictions placed on net assets use through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), contributors, or law or
regulations of other governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — This component consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted”

or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund Balance Classification

The fund balances for the City s governmental funds are displayed in five components:

Nonspendable - Nonspendable fund balances are not in a spendable form or are required to be
maintained intact. At September 30, 2011, the City did not have any nonspendable funds.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances may be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be
changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed - Committed fund balances may be used only for the specific purposes determined by
resolution of the City Council. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by issuance of a

resolution by the City Council.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Fund Balance Classification - Continued

Assigned - Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes as
determined by management. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund
balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in
other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. At
September 30, 2011, the City did not have any assigned funds.

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and
includes all amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Fund balances are classified as restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. When expenditures
are incurred that use funds from more than one classification, the city will generally determine the
order which the funds are used on a case-by-case basis, taking into account any application

requirements of grant agreements, contracts, business circumstances, or other constraints. If no
other constraints exist, the order of spending of resources will be restricted, committed, assigned
and, lastly, unassigned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2: Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

e The City’s department and division heads prepare and submit budget requests for the
following fiscal year to the City Administrator who then reviews the request with the
department and division heads.

e After this review process has been completed, the City Administrator presents these budget
requests to the Mayor and City Council along with recommendations as to what changes, if
any, should be made. These budget requests and recommendations are reviewed by the City
Council at meetings open to the public.

e A public hearing on the budget is then conducted at a City Council meeting to obtain
comments from citizens.
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September 30, 2011

Note 2: Budget and Budgetary Accounting - Continued

e Prior to September 20, the City Council legally enacts the ensuing fiscal year’s budget through
the passage of a resolution adopting the budget.

e Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
General, Debt Service and Proprietary Funds.

e The budgets adopted are stated on a cash basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis
of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America.

Note 3: Deposits and Investments

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the
provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and
other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the state of Nebraska;
bonds of any city, county, school district or special road district of the state of Nebraska; bonds of
any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the deposits.
The statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount of the deposit insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

At September 30, 2011, the City’s deposits in excess of FDIC limits are covered by collateral held
in a Federal Reserve pledge account or by an agent of the City.

Investments

Generally, the City’s investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Finance
Director. The City does not have a specific investment policy, but follows state statutes. The City
may legally invest in state-sponsored pooled investment funds and in direct obligations of and
other obligations guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies and
instrumentalities.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates (market rates) will
affect the fair value of an investment.
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Note 3: Deposits and Investments - Continued

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in possession of an outside party.

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The City’s only investments are units of participation in the short-term
investment pool of the Nebraska Public Agency Investment Trust (“NPAIT”). NPAIT is a special
purpose government established under Nebraska statute. The investment pool or trust is not
registered and is not rated for credit risk. The City limits its interest rate risk by investing only in
the short-term pool, which consists primarily of government agency or government securitized
investments with maturities of less than one year. The amount invested in the NPAIT pool was
$3,741,519 at September 30, 2011.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer.

Summary of Carrying Values

The carrying values of deposits are included in the government-wide statement of net assets as

follows:
Carrying Values
Cash at county treasurer $ 793,997
Deposits 11,961,545
Investments 3,741,519

_$ 16,497,061

e —

Included in the following statement of net assets captions as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,853,417
Cash at country treasurer 793,997
Certificates of deposit 4,108,128
Investments 3,741,519

5 16497061
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Note 4: Property Taxes

The tax levy for the City is certified by the Sarpy County Board each year. Real estate taxes are
due and attached as an enforceable lien on December 31 following the levy date. The first half of
real estate taxes becomes delinquent on April 1 and the second half becomes delinquent August 1
following the levy date. Delinquent taxes bear interest at a 14% annual rate. Property taxes are
collected by the County Treasurer and are periodically remitted to the City.

The tax rate to finance governmental services other than the payment of principal and interest on
long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2011 was $0.4735 per $100 of assessed valuation
and the debt service requirement was $0.0500 per $100 of assessed valuation. The assessed
valuation for the 2010-2011 tax year was $1,049,942,564.

Note 5: Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 2011, consist of the following:

Accounts Special Note Gross Aliowance for Net

Fund Taxes Receivable Assessments Interest Receivable Receivabies Uncollectibles Receivables
General $ 563,393 $ 443,647 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,007,040 3 - $ 1,007,040
Debt Service 252,887 - 1,521,658 146,799 - 1,921,344 125,056 1,796,288
Keno - 121,949 - - - 121,949 - 121,949
Capital Improvements - 82,165 - - 82,165 - 82,165
Economic Development - - - 296,643 15,810,692 16,107,335 - 16,107,335
Sewer - 254,712 - - - 254,712 - 254,712

$ 816280 § 902,473 $ 1,521,658 $ 443,442 $ 15,810,692 $ 19,494,545 $ 125,056 $ 19,369,489

Note Receivable

The City has a note receivable from a developer for an economic development project. As of
September 30, 2011, the balance of the loan with the developer was $15,810,692 with an interest
rate equal to the average coupon rate of the bonds issued to fund the loan.

24




City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 6: Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Annexation Balance
Governmental Activities
Land, not being depreciated $ 8,719,257 $ 2,130,469 $ - $ 7,865 $ 10,857,591
Construction in progress - 272,100 - - 272,100
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 8,719,257 2,402,569 - 7,865.000 11,129,691
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 18,665,613 - - - 18,665,613
Improvements/infrastructure 38,912,477 1,090,938 - 1,888,955 41,892,370
Equipment/fumiture/vehicles 8,252,136 419,516 (3,550) - 8,668,102
Total capital assets, being depreciated 65,830,226 1,510,454 (3,550) 1,888,955 69,226,085
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings (6,832,766) (722,261) - - (7,555,027)
Improvements/infrastructure (12,996,814) (1,067,858) - (630,222) (14,694,894)
Equipment/fumiture/vehicles (5,317,124) (519,184) 3,550 - (5,832,758)
Total accumulated depreciation (25,146,704) (2,309,303) 3,550 (630,222) (28,082,679)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 40,683,522 (798,849) - 1,258,733 41,143,406
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 49,402,779 $ 1,603,720 $ - $ 1,266,598 $ 52,273,097

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

General services $ 167,307
Public safety 690,814
Culture and recreation 258,753
Public works 1,192,429

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $2,309,303

—_————
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Note 6: Capital Assets and Depreciation - Continued
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Annexation Balance
Business-type Activities
Land, not being depreciated $ 9,524 $ - 3 - $ - $ 9,524
Capital assets, being depreciated
Golf course 1,623,903 - - - 1,623,903
Building and improvements 9,365 - - - 9,365
Sewer line system 5,752,029 - - ' 718,147 6,470,176
Equipment and furniture 1,309,114 234,307 (20,729) - 1,522,692
Total capital assets, being depreciated 8,694,411 234,307 (20,729 718,147 9,626,136
Accumulated depreciation
Golf course (974,433) (56,576) - - (1,031,009)
Building and improvements (9,365) - - - (9,365)
Sewer line system (1,686,189) (116,365) - (206,101) (2,008,655)
Equipment and furniture (938,290) (47,700) 20,729 - (965,261)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,608,277) (220,641) 20,729 (206,101) (4,014,290)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 5,086,134 13,666 - 512,046 5,611,846
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 5,095,658 $ 13,666 $ - $ 512,046 $ 5,621,370
Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Business-type Activities
Golf $ 82,620
Sewer 138,021
Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 220,641
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Note 7:

General obligation bonds, issued by the Ci
property taxes recorded in the Debt Service
collateral for the general obligation bonds.

limitations. The City’s borrowing capacity is re

responsible level.

September 30, 2011:

Governmental Activities

Long-term debt
General obligation bonds
Registered warrants
Installment notes payable
Premium on bonds issued
Deferred for refunding

Other long-term liabilities
Compensated absences

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities

Business-type Activities
Long-term debt
Revenue bonds
Installment notes payable
Other long-term liabilities
Compensated absences

Business-type activities
long-term liabilities

City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Long-term Liabilities

ty for various municip

al improvements, are repaid with
Fund. The City has pledged its full faith and credit as

The City has no debt outstanding subject to legal debt

strained by maintaining the City’s debt at a

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity of the City for the year ended

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 60,050,000 $ 16,760,000 $ 17,980,000 $ 58,830,000 $ 3,170,000
640,554 - - 640,554 -
523,867 - 151,256 372,611 133,533
45,701 - 3,425 42,276 -
(92,880) (117,331) (11,808) (198,403) -
707,038 889,887 747,449 849,476 12,658
$ 61,874,280 $ 17,532,556 $ 18,870,322 $ 60,536,514 $ 3,316,191
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 470,000 $ - $ 110,000 $ 360,000 $ 115,000
21,419 159,466 20,609 160,276 36,388
86,111 100,292 87,247 99,156 1,541
$ 577,530 $ 259,758 $ 217,856 $ 619,432 $ 152,929
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2011

Long-term Liabilities - Continued

Long-term bonded debt and notes payable are comprised of the following:

Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds

Tune 15, 2003, library refunding bonds

July 7, 2007, EDP taxable bonds

December 21, 2007, public safety tax anticipation bonds
July 15, 2008, refunding bonds

September 19, 2008, Southport GO bonds
September 19, 2009, highway allocation bonds
November 1, 2009, police refunding bonds
November 1, 2009, various purpose refunding bonds
June 29, 2011, various purpose refunding bonds
June 29, 2011, refunding bonds for off-street

July 15, 2011, refunding bonds for fire facility

July 1, 2008, SID 82 bonds

October 1, 2007, SID 239 bonds

Total general obligation bonds

Installment notes payable

January 8, 2007, vehicles note payable
June 20, 2007, equipment note payable
October 2, 2008, vehicles note payable
March 26, 2009, vehicles note payable
April 20, 2009, equipment note payable
June 25, 2009, equipment note payable
February 16, 2010, equipment note payable

Total instaliment notes payable

Business-type Activities

Revenue bonds

December 15, 1993, golf course revenue bond
Installment notes payable

March 11, 2009, equipment note payable
March 4, 2011, sewer jet note payable

Total instaliment notes payable

Interest Maturity Date Ending
Rate Date Callable Balance
2.450-3.800% 12/15/2012 6/15/2007 $ 410,000
6.000-7.730% 10/15/2029 10/15/2012 20,190,000
3.400-4.300% 11/15/2022 11/15/2018 1,155,000
3.650-4.125% 10/15/2021 10/15/2013 5,785,000
3.125-5.000% 11/15/2028 9/19/2013 3,285,000
3.500-5.000% 11/15/2028 9/19/2013 925,000
2.500-3.950% 03/15/2022 11/06/2014 2,660,000
2.000-3.800% 11/15/2023 11/15/2014 7,685,000
1.500-4.050% 12/15/2026 6/29/2016 3,645,000
1.500-3.800% 12/15/2024 6/29/2016 6,495,000
2.000-4.150% 12/15/2026 7/15/2016 4,975,000
2.800-3.700% 07/01/2013 - 50,000
4.350-5.450% 10/01/2032 10/01/2012 1,570,000

_$_ 58,830,000
5.25% 07/08/2012 $ 2,282
6.00% 07/20/2012 12,025
5.25% 10/06/2011 1,330
2.95% 04/01/2014 49,196
2.95% 04/01/2014 69,485
3.25% 07/01/2014 97,438
3.09% 02/16/2015 140,855

S 3mei
5.40-5.45% 12/15/2013 12/15/2013 $ 360,000
2.95% 4/1/2014 $ 15,655
2.98% 3/4/2016 144,621
3 160,276

|
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Note 7: Long-term Liabilities - Continued

Maturities of the long-term debt, subject to mandatory redemption are as follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Installment Notes Revenue Bonds
September 30, __ Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 $ 3,170,000 $ 2,711,314 $ 169,921 $ 14,120 $ 115,000 $ 16,458
2013 3,415,000 2,627,921 159,171 8,543 120,000 10,082
2014 3,295,000 2,515,576 135,374 3,317 125,000 3,406
2015 3,310,000 2,401,166 51,343 283 - -
2016 3,455,000 2,279,842 17,078 142 - -

2017-2021 17,635,000 9,359,964 - ) - - -

2022-2026 15,335,000 5,241,611 - - - -

2027-2031 8,990,000 1,329,947 - - - -
2032 225,000 12,399 - - - -

$58,830,000 $28,479,740 $ 532,887 $ 26405 $ 360,000 $ 29946

Registered Warrants

On August 15, 1999, the City annexed the Brook Valley South Phase II portion of Sanitary and
Improvement District No. 59 (“SID™). At September 30, 2011, the agreement to divide the debt of
SID No. 59 was not final. The City believes the best estimate of debt attributable to the Brook
Valley South Phase II portion of SID No. 59 is $640,554.

Bond Refundings

In June 2011, the City issued $3,645,000 in refunding bonds (various purpose), Series 2011A, with
interest rates of 1.50% to 4.05%, to refund $3,445,000 of existing refunding bonds for warrants
and to refund $160,000 of existing SID 214 bonds. The current refunding resulted in a cash flow
differential of approximately $385,000 and an economic gain of approximately $310,000.

In June 2011, the City issued $6,495,000 in refunding bonds (off-street parking), Series 2011B,
with interest rates of 1.50% to 3.80%, to refund $6,430,000 of existing refunding bonds (off-street
parking), Series 2006. The current refunding resulted in a cash flow differential of approximately
$794,000 and an economic gain of approximately $609,000.

In July 2011, the City issued $4,975,000 in refunding bonds (fire station project) with interest rates
of 2.00% to 4.15%, to refund $4,920,000 of existing bonds (fire station project), Series 2005. The
current refunding resulted in a cash flow differential of approximately $519,000 and an economic
gain of approximately $410,000.
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Note 8: Interfund Balances and Activity

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds.

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (b) move revenues from restricted
funds to funds where the expenditures were incurred related to the restrictions and to (c) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfer To/From Other Funds at September 30, 2011, consists of the following cash and capital

asset transfers:
Transfer From
Debt
General Service Keno

Transfer To Fund Fund Fund
General $ 58,800 $ - $ - $ 58,800
Debt Service 1,462,436 730,000 - 732,436
Capital Improvements Fund 081,084 52,000 827,399 101,685
Economic Development 600,000 600,000 - -
Golf 235,000 - - 235,000

$3.337.320 $ 1.382.000 $ 827399 $1.127.921

Note 9: Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP

Amounts presented on a non-GAAP budget basis of accounting differ from those presented in
accordance with GAAP due to the treatment afforded accruals, encumbrances, and funds for which
legally adopted annual budgets are not established. A reconciliation for the year ended
September 30, 2011, which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to
convert the actual GAAP data to the budgetary basis, is presented below:

Economic
General Keno Development
Fund Fund Fund
Net change in fund balance

Balance on a GAAP basis $ 886,481 $§ (65783 § (21 1,127)
Basic differences (accruals) occur because the

cash basis of accounting used for budgeting

differs from the modified accrual basis of

accounting prescribed for governmental funds (1,299,898) (80,173) -
Balance on a budget basis $ (413,417) $ (145,956) $ (211,127)
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Note 10: Retirement Plans

The employees of the City are covered by several retirement plans as detailed below. All plans are
administered by outside trustees and, therefore, are not included in the City’s basic financial

statements.

City Administrator’s Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering the City Administrator. The plan
requires that both the employee and the City contribute an amount equal to 6% of the employee’s
base salary per pay period. The City’s and plan member’s contributions to the plan for the year
ended September 30, 2011 were $7,749 each.

Civilian Employee Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering all civilian employees who are eligible.
The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an amount equal to 6% of the
employee’s base salary per pay period. The City’s and plan member’s contributions to the plan for
the year ended September 30, 2011 were $207,395 each.

Police Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan for its full time employees in the Police
Department. The plan was converted effective January 1, 1984, from a defined benefit plan to a
defined contribution plan. The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an
amount equal to 6% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The City’s and plan member’s
contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 2011 were $144,785 each.

Fire Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan for its full time employees in the Fire
Department. The plan was effective June 2007. The plan requires that the employee contribute an
amount equal to 6.5% and the City contribute an amount equal to 13% of employee’s base salary
per pay period. The City’s contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 2011 were
$12,691 and the plan member’s contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 2011

were $6,345,

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all regular permanent full and part-time
City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable

emergency.
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Note 10: Retirement Plans - Continued

Deferred Compensation Plan - Continued

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made
available to the employee or other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefits of the
participants and their beneficiaries. The plan assets are held in trust by a third party for the
employees and are not reflected in these financial statements.

Note 11: Keno Fund Operations

The following data summarizes the Keno (Special Revenue) Fund’s activity for the year ended

September 30, 2011:
Gross sales $ 18,037,805
Less: prizes paid (14,322,912)
Operator’s commission (2,223,867)
Deposits to progressive games (430)
Net keno revenue $ 1,490,596

————— ]

Note 12: Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to, or destruction of
assets, errors or omissions, injuries to employees, or natural disasters. These risks are transferred
to independent insurance carriers and no self-insurance program is maintained by the City.
City management believes adequate coverage exists for potential exposures as of September 30,
2011. The City did not pay any settlement amounts which exceeded its insurance coverage for any

of the three preceding years.

Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

During the year, the City has accepted various bids for street improvements and other projects in
the normal course of business that have not been completed and/or fully paid for at year-end.
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Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies - Continued

Claims and Litigation

The City is involved in various litigation matters in the normal course of business. The outcome of
such litigation is not expected to have a material effect on the City’s financial position or results of

operations.

Government Grants

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, which are subject to
financial and compliance audits or reviews. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies, is not determinable at this time; however, City officials do not
believe that such amounts, if any, will be significant.

Community Development Block Grant Program

The City is participating in the State of Nebraska Department of Economic Development
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG™) program. Under this program, the City has
received federal funds from the State of Nebraska to undertake community development activities,
as authorized. As of September 30, 2011, the City has entered into loan agreements with two
businesses to provide CDBG funds totaling $503,520. Under the agreements with these
businesses, if the businesses meet certain criteria, some or all of their loans may be forgiven. As
any repayments on these loans would be returned to the State, the City charges these loans to
expense in the year advanced.

Note 14: Annexation

Effective May 4, 2011, the City annexed Sanitary and Improvement Districts (“SID”) No. 82 and
No. 239. At the time of annexation, the City assumed all assets and liabilities of the annexed

areas, which were recorded at fair value.

Annexation of SID No. 82 and SID 239 resulted in revenues of $887,438 included other financing
sources in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances and $512,046 included in non-operating revenues in the proprietary funds statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. Annexation revenue of $696,011 and $512,046 is
included in net assets received from annexation in the statement of activities for the governmental

and business-type activities, respectively.
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Note 15: Adoption of Accounting Principle

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund

Type Definitions. GASB 54 requires the City to classify fund balance based primarily on the

extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on how the funds can be spent and clarifies
the definitions of the governmental fund types, resulting in a change in the activities that are

reported in them. Adoption of GASB 54 increased the beginning fund balance in the Debt Service
Fund by $22,303, which was previously reported in Other Governmental Funds.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Grant of
Federal Agency / CFDA \dentifying Amount
Cluster / Program Pass-Through Entity Number Number Expended
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster U.S. Department of Transportation - Federal
Highway Planning and Construction Highway Administration / Nebraska 20.205 MAPA-5012(9) $ 259,622
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction Department of Roads 20.205 MAPA-5012(9) 651,844
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 MAPA-5017(4) 717
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 MAPA-5011(13) 10,877
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 MAPA-5011(13) 23,712
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 ENH-77(50) 59,728
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 HSIP0902 13,090
1,019,590
CDBG - State Administered Small Cities Program Cluster U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Community Development Block Grants Development / State of Nebraska 14.228 09-ED-007 284,148
Community Development Block Grants Department of Economic Development 14,228 10-ED-002 219,372
503,520
Hazard Mitigation Grant U.S. Department of Homeland Security / 97.039 DR-1674-NE-0055 1,691,880
Nebraska Emergency Management Agency
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially U.S. Department of Homeland Security / 97.036 47,565
Declared Disasters) Nebraska Emergency Management Agency
State and Community Highway Safety U.S. Department of Transportation - National 20.600 402-11-8 22,675
Highway Traffic Safety Administration /
Nebraska Department of Roads
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive U.S. Department of Transportation - National 20.601 410-10-5 4,125
Grants I Highway Traffic Safety Administration / 20.601 410-11-2 7,803
Nebraska Department of Roads 20.601 410-11-5 2,713
20.601 410-11-5 4,386
19,027
Project Safe Neighborhoods U.S. Department of Justice - Bureau of Justice 16.609 294
Assistance / City of Omaha 16.609 1,998
2,292
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing U.S. Department of Justice - Office of Community 16.710 46,602
Grants Oriented Policing Services / City of Omaha
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program U.S. Department of Justice - Bureau of Justice 16.607 2,233
Grants Assistance / City of Omaha
Promotion of the Humanities - We the People National Endowment for the Humanities / 45.168 338
Nebraska Humanities Council
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program U.S. Department of Energy / Nebraska Department 81.128
(EECBG) of Environmental Quality
4,969

e

53360691
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Notes to Schedule

1. This schedule includes the federal awards activity of the City and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

2. No federal expenditures were provided to subrecipients.
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BKD 1120 S. 101st Street, Suite 410
LLP Omaha, NE 681241088

CPAs & Advisors 402.392.1040 Fax 402.392.1772  www.bkd.com

Independent Accountants' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Mayor and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund of the City of La Vista (the “City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise its basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
February 23, 2012, which contained an explanatory paragraph regarding a change in accounting
principles and an explanatory paragraph regarding omission of required supplementary information. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as discussed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a material

weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 11-01 to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We also noted certain matters that we reported to the City’s management in a separate letter dated
February 23, 2012.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no

opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing body, management and others
within the City and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 23, 2012 /w
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Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could
Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

The Mayor and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of La Vista with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2011. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
compliance of the City of La Vista based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of La Vista complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for

the year ended September 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of La Vista is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
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Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing body, management, others
within the City, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 23, 2012 6/{& /W
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Summary of Auditor’s Results

1.

N

(98]

&

The opinions expressed in the independent accountants’ report were:
[X] Unqualified [] Qualified [] Adverse [] Disclaimed

The independent accountants’ report on internal control over financial reporting described:
Significant deficiency(ies)? [ Yes X No
Material weakness(es)? X Yes [1No

. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements

was disclosed by the audit? [dYes X No

The independent accountants’ report on internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on major federal awards programs disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? [(IYes X No
Material weakness(es)? [ Yes X No

The opinion expressed in the independent accountants’ report on compliance with requirements
applicable to major federal awards was:

X Unqualified [] Qualified [] Adverse [] Disclaimed

The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB
Circular A-133? [] Yes X No
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2011

The City’s major programs were:

Cluster/Program CFDA Number
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction 20.205
Hazard Mitigation Grant | 97.039

CDBG — State Administered Small Cities Program Cluster
Community Development Block Grants 14.228

The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined
in OMB Circular A-133 was $300,000.

The City qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in
OMB Circular A-133? [ Yes X No
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City of La Vista, Nebraska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs
11-01 Material Weakness None

Criteria or specific requirement — Management is responsible for
the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Condition — Professional standards define an audit adjustment as
a proposed correction of the financial statements that in our
judgment may not have been detected except though auditing
procedures.

Context — An audit adjustment may be an indicator of a deficiency
that could have a significant effect on the City’s reporting
process, that is, cause financial statements to be significantly
misstated. In our judgment, an adjustment we proposed
indicated matters that have a significant effect on the City’s
financial reporting process.

Effect — A significant adjustment was identified and proposed
during the financial statement audit.

Cause — The City did not have an adequate review process or
controls in place to properly identify all non-cash projects that
might require capitalization, specifically roads projects paid
directly by the State of Nebraska.

Recommendation — We recommend management review internal
control procedures and develop a process to ensure these
adjustments are identified and properly recorded in future
periods.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions —
Management reviews the financial statements, as prepared by
the contracted third party, prior to issuance for accuracy and
understandability. Management will evaluate the contracted
third party’s existing procedures to determine if modifications
can be implemented.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Findings Required to be Reported by OMB Circular A-133

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs

No matters are reportable.
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City of La Vista, Nebraska
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Reference
Number Summary of Finding

Status

No matters are reportable.
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Independent Accountants’ Report on Financial Statements

The Honorable Major and City Council
Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Economic Development Fund of the City

of La Vista, Nebraska as of and for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. These financial
statements are the responsibility of City of La Vista’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Economic Development Fund and do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of La Vista, Nebraska as of
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Economic Development Fund of the City of La Vista, Nebraska as of September
30, 2011 and 2010, and its changes in financial position for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

iy,

February 23, 2012

experience BKD




Economic Development Fund

City of La Vista, Nebraska

Balance Sheets
September 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,093,984 1,305,111
Note receivable 15,810,692 15,810,692
Accrued interest receivable 296,643 296,643
Total assets $ 17,201,319 17,412,446

Liabilities $ . .

Fund Balance

Restricted for Economic Development 17,201,319 17,412,446
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 17.201,319 17.412.,446

See Notes to Financial Statements




Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance

Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Interest Income

Expenditures

Debt service
Principal retirement

Interest

Total expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

Transfers

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2011 2010
$ 1,188,405 $ 1.196,106
505,000 -
1,494,532 1,509,682
1,999,532 1,509,682
(811,127) (313,576)
600,000 -
211,127 (313.576)
17,412,446 17,726,022
$ 17.201,319 $ 17412446




Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

On September 30, 2003, the citizens of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) voted to
establish the Economic Development Program to create jobs and/or develop tourism for the
purpose of supporting the City’s commercial developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods
and expand industrial development in order to ensure economic stability and vitality of the City.

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the Economic Development Fund include all significant separately
administered activities for which the Economic Development Fund is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is determined on the basis of selection of governing authority, imposition
of will, a financial benefit/burden relationship, and/or fiscal dependency. The Economic
Development Fund’s financial statements are included in the City’s financial statements as a major
governmental fund.

The financial statements present only the Economic Development Fund and do not purport to, and
do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
changes in its financial position for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Accounting

The Economic Development Fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become
both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally available for such purposes.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.




Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The Economic Development Fund follows the City’s deposit policy for custodial

credit risk which requires compliance with the provisions of state statutes.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and
other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the state of Nebraska;
bonds of any city, county, school district or special road district of the state of Nebraska; bonds of
any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the deposits.
The Statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount of the deposit insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

The Economic Development Fund participates in the pooled cash accounts maintained by the City.
The Fund’s share of this pool was $1,093,984 and $275,163 at September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. At September 30, 2010, the Fund also had $1,029,948 deposited in a savings
account.

Note 2: Note Receivable
The City has a note receivable from a developer for an economic development project. As of
September 30, 2011 and 2010, the balance of the loan with the developer was $15,810,692 with an

interest rate equal to the average coupon rate of the bonds issued to fund the loan. Accrued
interest receivable on the loan amounted to $296,643 at September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Note 3: Long-term Debt

Economic Development Fund long-term bonded debt is comprised of the following individual

issue:
Interest Maturity Original
Description Rate Date Balance
Economic Development Fund
Bonds, Series 2007 6.00-7.73% 10/15/2029 $ 20,695,000

The initial principal payment of $505,000 was due and paid in 2011, leaving an outstanding
balance of $20,190,000 at September 30, 2011.




Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

Note 3: Long-term Debt - Continued

The City issued these taxable special purpose economic development bonds in July 2007. Debt
service on these bonds are to be funded from local tax revenue and other sources at the City’s

discretion.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonded debt as of September 30, 2011 is as

follows:
Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 535,000 $ 1,463,172 $ 1,998,172
2013 570,000 1,429,662 1,999,662
2014 605,000 1,393,396 1,998,396
2015 645,000 1,353,854 1,998,854
2016 685,000 1,311,427 1,996,427
2017-2021 4,195,000 5,785,472 9,980,472
2022-2026 6,080,000 3,904,423 9,984,423
2027-2031 6,875,000 1,114,473 7,989,473
Total $ 20,190,000 $ 17,755,879 $ 37,945,879

Note 4: City Transfer

The general fund of the City transferred $600,000 to the Economic Development Fund in 2011 to
assist in funding debt service payments,










RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA,
DETERMINING CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) PLAN FOR LOT 2, BELLA LA VISTA, A SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE SW 1/4
OF SECTION 18, T14N, R12E OF THE 6™ P.M., SARPY COUNTY, NEBRASKA.

WHEREAS, the owners of the above described piece of property have made application for approval of a
preliminary planned unit development plan for Lot 2, Bella La Vista; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator and the City Engineer have reviewed the preliminary planned unit
development plan; and

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2011, the La Vista Planning Commission held a public hearing and
reviewed the preliminary planned unit development plan and recommended approval
subject to the resolution of items identified by the city engineer and staff; and

WHEREAS, the items noted by the Planning Commission have been resolved and staff is recommending
approval subject to the following:

1. Construction traffic shall not use 130" Street or Highland Bivd.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, that
the preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) plan for Lot 2, Bella La Vista, located in the SW 1/4 of
Section 18, T14N, R12E of the 6" P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, generally located east of 132" Street and
Chandler Road be, and hereby is, approved subject to the items listed above.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6™ DAY OF MARCH 2012.
CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

\\LvdefpO1\Users\Administration\BRENDAVCOUNCIL\1 2 Resolutions\Bella La Vista Prelim PUD (2).Doc
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Memo

To: Lavista City Council

From: Bella La Vista Housing Partners LP

CC:

Date: 3/1/2012

Re: Changes to Project Since February 21 Council Meeting

This two page memo summarizes changes made to the project since February 21 to address many of
the issues raised during the February 21 council meeting and at our public meetings with SID 104. We
will address all these changes at our presentation to the Council at the March 6, 2012 meeting. We
met with residents of SID 104 in a public meeting on March 1, 2012 to show these changes.

1. Total Phase 1 units were reduced to 60 (from 72). This change was made to address comments
made regarding green space, recreation area, site appearance and sight impact for the residents
of SID 104.

a. Building 2 was shortened by approximately 30’, creating a building type A. Building 2 is
now 52’ away from the north property line (previously 38’). This pulls the building further
down the hill and reduces the sight impact (looming) for residences along the south side of
SID 104.

b. Building 1 is cut in half creating a building type C. 8 total garage stalls were removed
along the west side of Phase 1 due to the reduction in units to 60 (30 garages now
provided). Th|s softens the appearance of the project when coming over the hill from the
north on 132™ street.

c. Total Phase 1 pervious area (green space) increased by 13.5%. In real terms, total green
space increased to 120,832 SF or 58.5% of the total Phase 1 area.

d. Eliminating 12 units from Phase 1 reduces the traffic impact of Phase 1.

2. The grading has been adjusted to show the connections without a cul-de-sac at the connection to
130th Street.

3. Thelandscape plan has been created in color to show green spaces, parking and roads,
recreational areas and buildings. See drawing L-1.0.

4, Changed the traffic calming device at the north property line where Chandler Plaza connects with
Highland Blvd. A ‘chicane’ was originally shown. We now show a speed table with raised
crosswalk. The speed table is more effective than a ‘speed bump’. The design is shown on
drawing C-7.0. Signage will be provided on both sides of this device to warn drivers. This speed
table will be painted (striped) with reflective paint and located at the crosswalk across Highland
Blvd leading to the SID 104 walking path system.

5. Parking lot access/egress to Chandler Plaza, between buildings 6 and 7, is eliminated. By keeping
only the southern parking lot entry (between Bunldlngs 5 and 7) our intent is to ‘push’ Phase 2 traffic
south onto west bound Chandler Plaza towards 132™ Street (and away from Highland Blvd).

a. Access/egress at the parking lot entry to Chandler Plaza was widened to 3 lanes.




10.

11.

12.

13.

Screening between SID 104 and our project was improved. Colorado Blue Spruce are now shown
planted along the entire north property line. A five foot wide landscape area for tree plantings has
been graded at 2% along the entire north property line. This creates more room on the “higher”
elevation. New plantings at the higher contour increases screening effectiveness.

Parking stalls were removed throughout Phase 2 to create more green space. This is represented
by the red color on drawing L1.0.

Within the center of Phase 2, 12 garages and 12 parking stalls were removed and an additional
recreational area was added.

132nd Street Improvements: The stacking distance of the turn lane is now 150 feet and the
transition length is 270 feet. Also, the street widening has been shown on both sides of 132nd

Street.

Two buildings in Phase 2 have been changed to the smaller Type A buildings. This does not
change the number of units (bedroom count is reduced) but allows more green space.

We've identified a light shield that can be used with City of Lavista required site lighting. We will
commit to using this light shield to minimize uplighting of nighttime skies.

A Perpetual Easement agreement was discovered that specifically addresses fees for tapping into
SID 104 sanitary sewer line. Summarizing, any development on our property gets 25 free taps. Al
additional taps $200 each. Doug Dreesen of Thompson Dreesen & Dorner Engineering shared
this document with SID 104 engineer Doug Heine. We are counting each apartment unit as a “tap”
for calculation purposes. This fee agreement runs with the land and we agree to pay.

Gary Hassenflu, Doug Dreesen and Pat Sullivan (SID 104 attorney) initiated discussions about
incorporating Bella La Vista Apartments into SID 104. Feasibility conversations will continue.

Bella La Vista Housing Pajtners LP
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Memo

To:

Lavista City Council

From: BellaLa Vista Housing Partners LP

CC:

Date: 3/M/2012

Re:

Changes to Project Since February 21 Council Meeting

This two page memo summarizes changes made to the project since February 21 to address many of
the issues raised during the February 21 council meeting and at our public meetings with SID 104. We
will address all these changes at our presentation to the Council at the March 6, 2012 meeting. We
met with residents of SID 104 in a public meeting on March 1, 2012 to show these changes.

1.

Total Phase 1 units were reduced to 60 (from 72). This change was made to address comments
made regarding green space, recreation area, site appearance and sight impact for the residents
of SID 104.

a. Building 2 was shortened by approximately 30’, creating a building type A. Building 2 is
now 52' away from the north property line {previously 38'). This pulls the building further
down the hill and reduces the sight impact (iooming) for residences along the south side of
SID 104.

b. Building 1 is cut in half creating a building type C. 8 total garage stalls were removed
along the west side of Phase 1 due to the redugtion in units to 60 (30 garages now
provided). This softens the appearance of the project when coming over the hill from the
north on 132" street.

c. Total Phase 1 pervious area {green space) increased by 13.5%. Inreal terms, total green
space increased {o 120,832 SF or 58.5% of the total Phase 1 area.

d. Eliminating 12 units from Phase 1 reduces the traffic impact of Phase 1.

The grading has been adjusted to show the connections without a cul-de-sac at the connection to
130th Street.

The landscape plan has been created in color to show green spaces, parking and roads,

_recreational areas and buildings. See drawing L-1.0.

Changed the traffic calming device at the north property line where Chandler Plaza connects with
Highland Bivd. A ‘chicane’ was originally shown. We now show a speed table with raised
crosswalk. The speed table is more effective than a ‘speed bump’. The design is shown on
drawing C-7.0. Signhage will be provided on both sides of this device to warn drivers. This speed
table will be painted (striped) with reflective paint and located at the crosswalk across Highland
Blvd leading to the SID 104 walking path system.

Parking lot access/egress to Chandler Plaza, between buildings 6 and 7, is eliminated. By keeping
only the southern parking lot entry (between Buildings 5 and 7) our intent is to ‘push’ Phase 2 traffic
south onto west bound Chandler Plaza towards 132™ Street (and away from Highland Bivd).

a. Access/egress at the parking lot entry to Chandler Plaza was widened to 3 lanes.



10.

11.

12,

13.

Screening between SID 104 and our project was improved. Colorado Blue Spruce are now shown
planted along the entire north property line. A five foot wide landscape area for tree plantings has
been graded at 2% along the entire north property line. This creates meore room on the “higher”
elevation. New plantings at the higher contour increases screening effectiveness.

Parking stalls were removed throughout Phase 2 to create more green space. This is represented
by the red color on drawing L1.0.

Within the center of Phase 2, 12 garages and 12 parking stalls were removed and an additional
recreational area was added.

132nd Street Improvements: The stacking distance of the turn lane is now 150 feet and the
fransition length is 270 feet. Also, the street widening has been shown on both sides of 132nd
Street.

Two buildings in Phase 2 have been changed to the smaller Type A buildings. This does not
change the number of units {bedroom count is reduced) but allows more green space.

We've identified a light shield that can be used with City of Lavista required site lighting. We will
commit to using this light shield to minimize uplighting of nighttime skies. '

A Perpetual Easement agreement was discovered that specifically addresses fees for fapping Into
SID 104 sanitary sewer line. Summarizing, any development on our property gets 25 free taps. All
additional taps $200 each. Doug Dreesen of Thompson Dreesen & Dorner Engineering shared
this document with SID 104 engineer Doug Heine. We are counting each apartment unit as a “tap”
for calculation purposes. This fee agreement runs with the land and we agree to pay.

Gary Hassenflu, Doug Dreesen and Pat Sullivan (SID 104 attorney) initiated discussions about
incorporating Bella La Vista Apartments into SID 104, Feasibility conversations will continue.

Bella La Vista Housing Paytners LP




Supplemental Memorandum #3

TO: Mark Meisinger (FHU

FROM: John Kottmann (LaVista) Gary Hassenflu (Garrison Development) Jim Jussel
(Benesch), Austin Yates (Benesch) Doug Dreessen (TD2)

SUBJECT: Bella La Vista Traffic Impact Study
DATE: February 24, 2012

Per the request of the City, Benesch has completed additional traffic analysis to address the concerns of
the residents that live adjacent to the proposed Bella LaVista development.

Highland Boulevard Traffic:

Benesch reassigned all of the traffic that is destined to the northeast of the development (Harrison Street
East external) to the intersection of Highland Boulevard & Harrison Street. This procedure was
completed to analyze the possibility that 45 percent of the site-generated traffic will use Highland
Boulevard to access Harrison Street, see the revised Figures 11 and 12. As part of our discussion with
the SID 104 engineer, Don Heine, he made the observation that a growth rate was applied to the existing
traffic on Highland Blvd. The existing neighborhood is fully developed; therefore no additional traffic
growth should occur. The volumes illustrated in Figures 11 and 12 take into the account the removal of
the growth traffic. A two percent growth rate was used in the previous traffic study. This growth rate
was still applied to the through traffic on Harrison Street.

The amount of site-generated traffic on Highland Blvd during the morning peak period is estimated to be
about 49 vehicles per hour (vph) and the afternoon peak hour would be about 61 vph.

Capacity Analysis:

Benesch recalculated the capacity analysis for the study intersections. Figures 13 and 14 summarize the
results of the capacity calculations. The results of the capacity analysis were similar to the January 2012
traffic study. During the AM peak period, the northbound right-turn movement would be expected to
operate with a LOS F. This is not uncommon for an unsignalized intersection on an arterial street to
experience a poor level of service during the peak commuter periods. The poor level of service is due to
the limited number of acceptable gaps in the traffic. The traffic signal warrants were checked for the
Peak Hour Warrant (Warrant 3) and the signal warrant would not be expected to be met. Even if the
Peak Hour Warrant was met, a traffic signal at this location would not be approved by the City of
Omaha or Douglas and Sarpy County Public Works Departments because it does not meet current
access management guidelines for an urban arterial.

In summary, there are no new recommendations based on the additional traffic analysis. The
recommendations originally identified in the January 2012 Traffic Study still stand.

Page 1
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supplemental Memorandum #3

TO: Mark Meisinger (FHU

FROM: John Kottmann (LaVista) Gary Hassenflu (Garrison Development) Jim Jussel
(Benesch), Austin Yates (Benesch) Doug Dreessen (TD2)

SUBJECT: Bella La Vista Traffic Impact Study
DATE: February 24, 2012

Per the request of the City, Benesch has completed additional traffic analysis to address the concerns of
the residents that live adjacent to the proposed Bella LaVista development.

Highland Boulevard Traffic:
Benesch reassigned all of the traffic that is destined to the northeast of the development (Harrison Street

East external) to the intersection of Highland Boulevard & Harrison Street. This procedure was
completed to analyze the possibility that 45 percent of the site-generated traffic will use Highland
Boulevard to access Harrison Street, see the revised Figures 11 and 12. As part of our discussion with
the SID 104 engineer, Don Heine, he made the observation that a growth rate was applied to the existing
traffic on Highland Blvd. The existing neighborhood is fully developed; therefore no additional traffic
growth should occur. The volumes illustrated in Figures 11 and 12 take into the account the removal of
the growth traffic. A two percent growth rate was used in the previous traffic study. This growth rate
was still applied to the through traffic on Harrison Street.

The amount of site-generated traffic on Highland Blvd during the morning peak period is estimated to be
about 49 vehicles per hour (vph) and the afternoon peak hour would be about 61 vph.

Capacity Analysis:

Benesch recalculated the capacity analysis for the study intersections. Figures 13 and 14 summarize the
results of the capacity calculations. The results of the capacity analysis were similar to the January 2012
traffic study. During the AM peak period, the northbound right-turn movement would be expected to
operate with a LOS F. This is not uncommon for an unsignalized intersection on an arterial street to
experience a poor level of service during the peak commuter periods. The poor level of service is due to
the limited number of acceptable gaps in the traffic. The traffic signal warrants were checked for the
Peak Hour Warrant (Warrant 3) and the signal warrant would not be expected to be met. Even if the
Peak Hour Warrant was met, a traffic signal at this location would not be approved by the City of
Omaha or Douglas and Sarpy County Public Works Departments because it does not meet current

access management guidelines for an urban arterial.

In summary, there are no new recommendations based on the additional traffic analysis. The
recommendations originally identified in the January 2012 Traffic Study still stand.
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Memorandum

Jan. 25, 2012 - Phone conversation with Don Heine, SID 104 Engineer. Discussed
calculation method for unit equivalency and easement agreement for sanitary sewer
connections for the proposed Bella La Vista development. Don asked whether detention
upstream of Chandler stayed wet and to look at how cover over the sanitary outfall was
affected. Don also asked some questions regarding 20335 traffic information. I referred
him to Jim Jussel of Benesch Company for the traffic questions.

Feb. 2, 2012 — Phone conversation with Don Heine getting e-mail address to transmit
sanitary calculations for review and to ask if any other issues had arisen. Don said no new
issues had come up.

Feb. 13, 2012 — Phone conversations with Gary Hassenflu and Pat Sullivan (SID 104
Attorney) regarding potential SID involvement with the development. Mr. Sullivan
indicated the SID would be willing to listen to any proposals and look at the costs
involved. Phone conversation with Don Heine. Mr. Heine indicated he concurred with the
TD2 sanitary sewer calculations and if the detention basin was usually dry, he didn’t have
major concerns with it. Mr. Heine had not spoken with Jim Jussel yet regarding the traffic

questions.







LA VISTA POLICE DEPARTMENT
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMO

TO: Chris Solberg, City Planner
FROM: Chief Robert S. Lausten
DATE: 21 FEB 2012

RE: Bella Vista Street access
CC:

The Police Department has reviewed the proposed layout of the Bella Vista
project and recommends the project have the three proposed access points
remain open and a part of the final project plan. At a minimum, AT LEAST two
unobstructed access points in and out of the complex, those being 132 Street
and Highland Blvd should be included.

When the City approved the Pointe Apartments project in the late 1980s-early
1990s, one major regret from the public safety point of view was not having
egress and ingress at the intersection of ElIm Drive and Brentwood Drive. At the
time of the project, Brentwood Drive terminated at 87" Street, however, it was
always proposed Brentwood Drive would be improved to the west. Eventually it
was, and a three-way stop is at the intersection of Brentwood-Elm. Due to not
having egress and in%ress from Brentwood Drive, first responders have to enter
the complex from 87" Street just north of Giles or at 90"/Giles. There are no
entry points from the north or west. This has an impact on response time to the
complex as well as tactical deployment to calls for service. If the Pointe project
was being developed today, the public safety review would include a
recommendation of an access point at Brentwood and Eim. 1 use this example
as it directly relates to the Bella Vista project. Access to and from the complex
from 132 St, Highland Blvd and 130% Street is strongly recommended by public
safety. Having only access from 132" Street severely limits the basic response
from police and fire units and absolutely creates a tactical disadvantage for police
and fire if an incident is in progress. This proposed project must have at least two
access points...those being at least 132 St and Highland Blvd.




MEMORANDUM TO:
Chris Solberg

FROM: Rich Uhl — Fire Chief
DATE: 03/02/2012

The La Vista Fire & Rescue Department has reviewed the proposed layout of
the Bella La Vista project and recommends the project have the three
proposed access points remain open and a part of the final project plan. T am
in agreement with the La Vista Police Department that a minimum of two
unobstructed access points in and out of the complex, those being 132 Street
and Highland Blvd should be incorporated.

The throughways are needed for fire and EMS apparatus navigation into and
out of the complex, as well as the deployment of firefighting apparatus. As
the La Vista Police Department has identified in their memorandum, projects
formerly approved without proper access points have proven to be
problematic in regard to emergency response, including fire suppression and
response times.

I strongly recommend a minimum of two unobstructed access points as listed
above. Thank you,

Chief Uhl
La Vista Fire & Rescue Department

Any questions, please contact me at any of the numbers below. Thank
you.

Rich UAL, Fine Chicf




La Vista Volunteer Fire & Rescue Dept
8116 Park View Blvd, La Vista NE 68128
Phone: (402) 331-4748 Fax: (402) 331-0410
E-Mail: ruhl@cityoflavista.org




ITEM
City OF LA VISTA
NiaYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT
MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:
AMENDMENT TO SECTIONS 2.02 AND RESOLUTION ANN BIRCH

5 12 OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE — © ORDINANCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES RECEIVE/FILE DIRECTOR

SYNOPSIS

A public hearing has been scheduled and an ordinance has been prepared to amend Sections 2.02, Definitions,
and Section 5.12, C-3, Highway Commercial/Office Park District, to define the term “Colleges and
Universities” and add it as a permitted conditional use within the City of La Vista Zoning Ordinance.

FiscaL IMPACT

N/A.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

Currently, the City’s Zoning Ordinance allows for the development of a “Business or Trade School” in
the C-1 and C-2 zoning districts with a Conditional Use Permit. Also, “Vocational and Special
Training Facilities™ are allowed in the I-1 and I-2 zoning districts with a Conditional Use Permit.

References within Section 2.02 point the “Business or Trade School” use to the “Vocational and
Special Training Facilities” definition. This is defined as:

..a specialized instructional establishment that provides on-site fraining of business, commercial
and/or trade skills such as accounting, data processing, and computer repair. This classification
excludes establishments providing training in an activity that is not otherwise permitted in the zone.
Incidental instructional services in conjunction with another primary use shall not be included in this
definition.

It is the City Planner’s interpretation of this definition that the extent of this use would be limited in
nature, providing specialized education oriented around specific trades. Currently, the Zoning
Ordinance does not include zoning for “Colleges and Universities”. It is staff’s recommendation that
“Colleges and Universities” (see attached) be allowed as a conditional use within the C-3 zoning
district. The C-3 district is intended for multi-story office-park style campuses that would be consistent
with the larger “Colleges and Universities” land use.




On January 19, 2012, by a vote of 9-0, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the amendments to
Sections 2.02 and 5.12 of the Zoning Ordinance to add a definition for Colleges and Universities and add it as a
permitted conditional use in the C-3 District.

UCommunity Development\Planning Department\City Council\Biue Sheets\2612012 CD Colleges and Universities doc

1~



20276

20278

CAMPGROUND shail mean a parcel of land intended for the temporary occupancy of tents, campers, and
recreational vehicles and which primary purpose is recreational, having open areas that are natural in
character.

CAR WASH shall mean a building or structure or an area of land with machine or hand operated facilities
for the cleaning, washing, polishing, or waxing of motor vehicles, not including semi-trailer tractors, buses,
and commercial fleets.

CARPORT shall mean a permanent roofed structure with not more than two (2) enclosed sides used or
intended to be used for automobile shelter and storage.

CELLAR shall mean a building space having more than one-half (1/2) of its height below the average
adjoining grade lines.

CEMETERY shail mean land used or infended to be used for the hurial of the dead and dedicated for such
purposes, including columbariums, crematoriums, and mausoleums

CHANGEABLE COPY shall refer to a sign or portion thereof with characters, letters, or ilfustrations that
can be changed or rearranged withowt, altering the face or the surface of the sign. d sign onwhich the
message changes more than eight times per day shall be considered an animated sign and not a changeable
copy sign for purposes of this ordinance. A sign on which the only copy changes iy an electronic or
mechanical indication of time or temperature shall be considered a “time and temperature” portion of a
sign and not a changeable copy sign for purposes of this ordinance. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

CHANNEL shall mean the geographical area within either the natural or artificial banks of a watercourse
or drainway.

CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION or CLUB shall mean a public or semi-public institutional use of a
philanthropic, charitable, benevolent, religious, or eleemosynary character, but not including sheltering or
caring of animals (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

CHILD CARE CENTER shall mean an establishment other than a public or parochial school, which
provides day care, play groups, nursery schools or education for thirteen (13) or more children under age
13, at any one time, from families other than that of the provider. In addition to these reguiations, Child
Care Centers shall meet all requirements of the State of Nebraska.

CHILD CARE HOME shall mean an operation in the provider's place of residence which serves at least
four (4), but not more than eight (8) children at any one time, from families other than that of the provider.
A Family Child Care Home I provider may be approved to serve no more than two (2) additional school-
age children during non-school hours. A Family Child Care Home Il operation may be either in the
provider’s own place of residence or a site other than the residence, serving twelve (12) or fewer children at
any one time. In addition to these regulations, Child Care Homes shali meet all requirements of the State of
Nebraska

CITY shall mean the City of La Vista

CODE shall mean the Municipal Code of the City of La Vista.

COFFEE KIOSK shall mean a retail food business in a freestanding building that sells coffee, or other
beverages, and remade bakery goods from a drive-through window or walk-up window. (Ordinance No.
1053, 1-15-08).

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY shall mean an educational institution offering advanced instruction in

anv academic field bevond the secondary level, including trade schools or business colleges. (Ordinance
Nao. s }




Section 5.12 C-3 Hishwav Commercial / Office Park District

5.12.01 Intent: The Highway Commercial / Office Park District is intended for large scale commercial and office
park development. In addition, this district prohibits ali exterior storage by a primary use unless a separate
Conditional Use Permit is requested for the use and granted by the City.

5.12.02

5.12.03

Permitted Uses:
512020t
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5.12.02.04

Medical/dental offices and business services including; attorneys, banks, insurance, real
estate offices, postal stations, credit services, security brokers, dealers and exchange, tiile
abstracting, finance services and investient services; but not including uses defined in
Adult Establishment. (Ordinance No. 950, 3-1-03)

Museum, art gallery

Retail business or service establishment supplying commaodities or performing services,
such as, or in compatibility with and including the following:

Book store, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment

Brew-on premises store,

Pry cleaning and laundry pickup

Florat shop.

Gift and curio shop.

Tewelry store

Reservation center

Restaurants, cafes and fast food establishment.

Travel agencies.

Office Park developments.

Video store, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment.

12. Meeting Halls not including Adult Establishments.

Publicly owned and operated facilities  (Ordinance Neo. 950, 3-1-05)
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Permitted Conditional Uses:

5.12.03.01 Theater, indoor, not inciuding uses defined in Adult Establishment.

5.12.03.02 Automobile display, sales, service, and repair.

5.1203.03 Brew Pubs.

5120304 Micro breweries when in conjunction with a restaurant.

5120303 Coffee Kiosks.

5120306 Automated Teller Machines when not within the interior of a primary use

5.12.03.07 Tavern and cocktail lounge, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment

5.12.03.08 Convenience store with limited fuel sales.

5120309 Churches and temples

5.12.03.10 Hotels, including restaurants, convention and meeting facilities and other related uses, not
inciuding uses defined in Adult Establishment.

5120311 Department Stores.

5120312 Retail trade centers.

5.12.03.13 Shopping centers

5120314 Commercial Strip Shopping Center,

5120315 Outlet Shopping Center.

5120316 Health Clubs and tanning salon, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment

3.12.035.17 Health Recreation Facilities, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment.

"l

S0 1203, (8 Colleges and Universities. (Qrdinances No. , )




5.12.04 Permitted Temporary Uses
Temporary Uses require a permit from the City of La Vista and shall be valid only for a specific amount of
time as indicated on said permit. Al platted lots or tracts of land may have a maximum number of four (4)
temporary uses per calendar year. Such uses shall not last more than hvo (2) weeks per use, except as
provided for hereafler. (Ordinance No. 998, 7-18-06)

5.12.04.01 Temporary greenhouses

5.12.04.02 Temporary structures as needed for sidewalk and other outdoor sales events

5.1204.03 Fireworks stands, provided the criteria are met as established by the City through separate
Ordinances.

5.12.04.04 Buildings and uses incidental to construction work are permitied to remain until

completion or abandonment of the construction work, at which time they shall be
removed (Ordinance No. 998, 7-18-06)
5.12.04.05 Temporary structure for festivals or commercial events

5.12.85 Permitted Accessory Uses

5.12.05.01 Buildings and uses customarily incidental to the permitted uses.

5.12.05.02 Parking as permitted in Section 7.035 through 7.09

5.12.05.03 Signs allowed in Section 7.01 through 7 .04

5120504 Landscaping as required by Section 7.17
8.12.06 Height and Lot Requirements:

5.12.06.01 The height and minimum lot requirements shall be as follows:

Lot Area Lot Front Side Rear Max. Max. Lot

Uses {SF) Width Yard Yard Yard Height Coverage
Permitted Uses 10,000 - 25" 15 15" 90" 0%
Permitied Conditional Uses 10.000 - 23! 15 15 90 60%

! 23" front yard setback required only when no parking is preseat in the front yard 1 parking is located in the front yard then front yard

setback is a minimum of ffty (50} leet
Any building within 100 feet of a residentially zoned districe shall not exceed 45 feet in height (Ordinance No. 1082, 11-18-08)

,

5.12.07 Use Limitations:
5.12.07.01 When adjacent to residentially zoned land, no parking, drives or signs shall be allowed in
any required yard within fifteen {15} feet of such district. Furthermore, permanent
screening shall be provided in this area in order to minimize impacts on residentially
zoned property, as per Section 7.14 04,
5120702 Exterior lighting fixtures shali be shaded so that no direct light is cast upon any
residential property and so that no glare is visible to any traffic on any public street.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2 02 OF ORDINANCE NO. 848 (ZONING ORDINANCE), TO
REPEAL SECTION 2 02 OF ORDINANGCE NO. 848 AS PREVIOUSLY ENACTED; TO PROVIDE FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, SARPY
COUNTY, NEBRASKA:

SECTICN 1. Amendment of Section 2.02. Section 2.02 of the Ordinance No 848 is hereby

amended fo read as follows:

Section 2.02 Pefinitions.

20201

ABANDONMENT shall mean to cease or disconfinue a use or activity without intent to resune as
distinguished from short term interruptions such as during periods of remodeling, maintenance, or normal
periods of vacation or seasonal closure.

ABUT, ABUTTING shall mean to border on, being contiguous with or have property or district lines in
common, including property sepatated by an alley.

ACCESS OR ACCESS WAY shall mean the place, means, or way by which pedestrians and vehicles
shall have safe, adequate and usable ingress and egress to a property or use as required by this Regulation.

ACCESSORY BUILDING (see Building, accessory)

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE shall mean a detached subordinate structure located on the same lot with
the principal structure, the use of which is incidental and accessory to that of the principal structure.

ACCESSORY USE shall mean a use incidental, related, appropriate and clearly subordinate to the main
use of the fot or buiiding, which accessory use does not alter the principal use of the subject lot or affect
other properties in the district.

ADJACENT shall mean near, close, or abutting; for example, an Industrial District across the street or
highway from a Residential District shall be considered as "Adjacent".

ADULT BOOKSTORE shall mean any premises fronn which minors are excluded and inwhich the retail
sale of books, magazines, newspapers, movie films, devices, slides, or other photographic or writfen
reproductions Is conducted as a principal use of the premises, if such services are distinguished or
characterized by an emphasis on "specified sexual activities” or "specified anatomical areas " (Ordinance
No. 1083, 2-17-09)

ADULT COMPANIONSHIP ESTABLISHMENT shall mean an establishment which provides the
service of engaging in or listening to conveysation, talk or discussion between an employee of the
establishment and a customer, if such service is distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on "specified
sexual activities" or “specified anatomical areas "

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT ESTABLISHMENT shall mean any business which offers its patrons
services or enertainment characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, exposing, describing,
discussing or reiating to "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas," including, but without
limitation, adult bookstores, adult motion picture theaters, adulf saunas, aduit companionship
establishments, aduit health clubs, adult cabarets, adult novelty businesses, adult motion picture arcades,
adult modeling studios, adult hotel or motel, adult internet industries, and adult massage partor /' health
club (Ordinance No., 1083, 2-17-09)




20213

2.02.15

20218
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ADULT HOTEL OR MOTEL shall mean a hotel or motel from which minors are specifically excluded
from patronage and wherein material is presented which is distinguished or characterized by an emphasis
on matter depicting, describing or relating to "specified sexual activities” or "specified anatomical areas "

ADULT INTERNET INDUSTRIES shall mean any business within an enclosed building or outdoors that
is producing materials for distribution on the Internet, including live video streaming, tape delayed video
broadeasts, live simuleasting, still photographs, audio broadcasts, animated video or hard copy, wherein
wmaterial is presented which is distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting,
describing or relating to "specified sexnal activities" or "specified anatomical oreas.” Said uses are
intended for viewing by other parties while on-line and for a specified charge. (Ordinance No. 891, 2-4-
03); (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

ADULT MASSAGE PARLOR., HEALTH CLUB shall mean a massage parlor or health club, which
resiricts minors by reason of age, and which provides the services of massage, if such service is
distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical
argas.”

ADULT MINI-MOTION PICTURE THEATER shall mean a business premises within an enclosed
building with a capacity for less than 50 persons used for presenting visuai-media material if such business
as a prevailing practice excludes minors by virtue of age, or if said material is distinguished or
characterized by an emphasis on the depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or "specified
anatomical areas" for observation by patrons therein.

ADULT MOTION PICTURE ARCADE shall mean any place to which the public is permitted or invited
wherein coin or slug-operated or electronically, electrically or mechanically controlled still or motor picture
machines, projectors or other image-producing devices are maintained to show images to five or fewer
persons per machine at any one time, and where the images so displayed are distinguished or characterized
by an emphasis on depicting or describing "specified sexual activities” or "specified anatomical areas.”

ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATERS shall mean a business premises within an enclosed building
with a capacity of 50 or more persons used for presenting visual media material if said business as a
prevailing practice excludes minors by virtue of age, or if said material is distinguished or characterized by
an emphasis on the depiction of description of "specified sexual activities” or "specified anatomical areas"
for observation by patrons therein.

ADULT NOVELTY BUSINESS shall mean a business which has as a principal activity of the sale of
devices which simulate human genitals or devices which are designed for sexual stimulation.

ADULT SAUNA shall mean a sauna which excludes minors by reason of age, or which provides a steam
bath or heat bathing room used for the purpose of bathing, 1elaxation, or reducing, utilizing steam or hot alr
as a cleaning, relaxing or reducing agent, if the service provided by the sauna is distinguished or
characterized by an emphasis on "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas.”

ADVERTISING STRUCTURE shall mean any notice or advertisement, pictorial or otherwise, and all
such structures used as an outdoor display, regardless of size and shape, for the purposes of making
anything known, the otigin or place of sale of which is not on the property with such Advertising Structure.

AGRICULTURAL AND FARM BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES shall mean any building or
structure which is necessary or incidental to the normal conduct of a farm including but not limited to
residence of the operator, residence of hired men, barns, buildings and sheds for housing livestock, poultry
and farm machinery, buildings for the storage or shelter of grain, hay and other crops, silos, windmills and
water storage tanks,

AGRICULTURE shall mean the use of land for agricultural purposes, of obtaining a profit by raising,
harvesting, and selling crops or by the feeding, breeding, management, and sale of, or the produce of,
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livestock, poultry, fur-bearing animals, or honeybees, or for dairying and the sale of dairy products, or any
other agricultural or horticultural use. Agricultural use shall not be construed to include any parcel of land
of less than twenty acres or any non-agricultural commercial or industrial development.

AIRPORT shall mean any area which is used or is intended to be used for the taking off and landing of
aircraft, including helicopters, and any appurtenant areas which are used or are intended to be used for
airport buildings or facilities, including open spaces, laxiways, and tie-down areas.

ALLEY shall mean a minor public service street or public thoroughfare 20 feet or less in width, through a
block of lots primarily for vehicular service access to the rear or side of properties otherwise abutting on
another street. Buildings facing an alley shall not be construed as satisfying the requirements of this
regulation refated to fiontage on a dedicated street.

ALTERATION shall mean any change, addition or modification in construction o1 occupancy of an
existing structure.

AMENDMENT shall mean a change in the wording, context, or substance of this Regulation, an addition
or deletion or a change in the district boundaries or classifications upon the zoning map.

AMUSEMENT ARCADE shall mean a building or a part of a building where five or more pinball
machines, video games, or other similar player-orientated amusement devices are available and are
maintained for use,

ANIMAL HOSPITAL (see Hospital, animal)

ANIMAL SPECIALTY SERVICES shall refer to esiablishments primarily engaged in pet grooming,
clipping, bathing, daycare, training courses, obedience classes, and similar services  Does not include
velerinary services or overnight boarding kennels (Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)

ANTENNA shalt mean any attached or external system of wires, poles, rods, reflecting disks or similar
devices used for the transmission or reception of electromagnetic waves. (Aiso, see Satellite Dish
Antenna )

ANTIQUE STORE shall mean a place offering primarily antigues for sale. An antique for the purpose of
this ordinance shall be a work of art, piece of finniture, decorative object, or the like, belonging {o the past,
at least 30 years old. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

APARTMENT shall mean a room or a suite of rooms within an apartment house or multiple family
dwelling arranged, intended or designed for a place of residence of a single family or group of individuals
living together. {Also, see Dwelling Unit)

APPAREL SHOP shail mean retail stores where clothing is sold, such as department stores, shoe stores,
and dress, hosiery, and millinery shops (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

APPLIANCE STORE shall refer to retail shops selling equipment used for domestic functions. A store
may include heavy appliances sych as refrigerators, washers, dryvers, ovens, dishwashers, or other sinilar
domestic equipment. The store may alse include smaller appliances such as televisions, computers, radios,
microwaves, and other similar domestic equipment. (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-09)

APPEARANCE shall mean the cutward aspect visible to the public.

APPROPRIATE shall mean the sympathetic, or fitting, to the context of the site and the whole
commutity.

APPURTENANCES shalt mean the visible, functional objects accessory to and part of buildings.
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ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY SIGN (see Sign, architectural canopy)

ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER (see Architectural Concept)

ARCHITECTURAL CONCEPT shall mean the basic aesthetic idea of a building, or group of buildings
or structures, including the site and landscape development (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURE shall mean a prominent or significant part or element of a building,
structure, or site. Architectural features may include special lines, massing, and/or texture,

2.02 44 01 LINES shall mean visual elements of the buiiding, either within the facade or on the building
edge, which are in a linear form either horizontally or vertically and may be composed of masonsy, glass,
or other related materials.

2.02.44.02 MASS shall pertain to the volume or bulk of a building or structure

2.02.44.03 TEXTURE shall mean the quality of a surface, ranging from mirror finish,  smooth, to coarse
and unfinished.

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE shall mean the characteristic form and detail, as of buildings of a particular
historic period,

ART GALLERY shall mean an gsiablishment engaged in the sale, loan, or display of art books, paintings,
sculpture, or other works of art This clarification does not include libraries, musenms, or non-commercial
art gatleries. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES shall mean a tvpe of long-term care facility for elderly or disabled
people needing assistance with daily activities such as eating, bathing, dressing, laundry, housekeeping,
and medicating  These facilities typically have a central cafeteria and mursing staff on cail

ATTACHED shall mean attached to real estate in such a way as to require dismantling, cutting away,
unbolting from a permanent foundation or structural change in such structure in order to relocate it to
another site (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

AUCTION SALES shall mean a building or structure or lands used for the storage of goods, materials or
{ivestock which are to be sald on the premises by public auction and for the sale of the said goods,
materials or livestock by public anction and on an occasional basis. Auction sales also includes motor
vehicle wholesale sales, including trailers, trucks, vans, recreational vehicles, boats or motorcveles or
other similar motorized transportation vehicles. (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-(3)

AUTOMATED TELLER MACHINE (ATM) shal! mean an automated device that performs banking or
financial functions at a location remote from the controlling financial institution. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-
I7-(9)

AUTOMOBILE SALES shall mean the storage and display for sale or lease of more than two motor
vehicles or any type of trailer (provided the trailer is unoccupied) at any one time and/or a total of ten or
more sold or leased during the cowrse of a calendar vear, and where repair or body work is incidental to
the operation of the new or used vehicle sales or leasing  Automobile sales includes all motor vehicle retail
sales and leases including trucks, vans, recreational vehicles, boats or motorcyeles or other similar
matorized transportation vehicles  (dlso, see Auction Sales) (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-03)

AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SERVICES shall refer to any building, structure, improvements, or land used
for the repair and maintenance of automobiles, motercycles, rucks, trailers, or similar vehicles including
but not limited to body, fender, muffler, or upholstery work; oil change and lubrication, major painting
services, collision services; and tive service and sales (Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)
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AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES shall vefer to any building, structure, improvements or land used for the
general maintenance of automobiles, motorcyeles, trucks, trailers or similar vehicles including but not
limited to washing, cleaning, and/or detailing; installation of car stereos, accessories, or other light
equipment, and minor painting. (Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)

BAKERY SHOP shall mean an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of baked products. The
products may be prepared either on or off site. A bakery shall be considered a general retail use
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BANK shatl mean a fieestanding building or secondary use within a building, with or without a drive-up
window, for the custody, loan, or exchange of money, for the extension of credit; and for facilitating the
fransmission of funds (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BASEMENT shail mean a building space partly underground, and having at least one-half (1/2) of its
height, measuring from its floor to its ceiling, above the average adjoining finished ground grade line.

BEACON shall mean any light with one or more beams directed into the atmosphere or directed at one or
more points not on the same zone lot as the light source; also, any light with one or more beams that rotate
or move.

BEAUTY SHOP shall mean any establishment where cosmetology services are provided including hair
care, nail care, and skin care on a regular basis for compensation (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BED and BREAKFAST shall mean a house, or portion thereof, where short-term lodging rooms and
meals are provided. The operator shall live on the premises. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BEDROOM shall mean a room within a dwelling unit planned and intended for sleeping, separated from
other rooms by a door

BERM shall mean a raised form of earth to provide screening or to improve the aesthetic character.
BILLBOARD (see Sign, Billboard)

BLOCK shall mean a parcel of land platted into lots and bounded by public streets or by waterways,
rights-of-way, unplatted land, City-County boundaries, or adjoining property lines.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT shall mean that board that has been created by the city and which has the
statutory authority to hear and determine appeals, interpretations of, and variances to the zoning
regulations.

BOARDING HOUSE shall mean a building containing a single dwelling unit and provisions for not more
than five (5) guests, where lodging is provided with or without meals for compensation (dlso, see Bed and
Breakfast) (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BOOK STORE shall mean a retail establishunent that, as its primary business, engages in the sale, rental,
or other charge-for-use of baoks, magazines, newspapers, greeting cards, postcards, videotapes, computer
software, or any other printed or electronically conveved information or media, excluding any uses defined
as “adult entertainment establishments. " (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BOWLING CENTER shall mean an establishunent that devotes more than 50 percent of its gross floor
area to bowling lanes, equipment, and playving area  dccessory nses such as the retail sale of snacks, the
refail sale of beverages, and a video game arcade are customary. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BREW-ON PREMISES STORE shall mean a facility that provides the ingredients and equipment for a
customer to use to brew malt iquor at the store Brew-on-premises stores do not include the sale of
intoxicating lquor, unless the owner of the brew-on-premises store holds the appropriate liquor license.
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BREW PUB shatl mean a 1estaurant or hotel which includes the brewing of beer as an accessory use. The
brewing operation processes water, malt, hops, and yeast into beer or ale by mashing, cocking, and
fermenting By definition, these establishments produce no more than 10,000 barrels of beer or ale
annually. The area, by definition, used for brewing, including bottling and kegging, shall not exceed
twenty-five (25} percent of the total floor aren of the commercial space

BUFFLER shalt mean a strip of land estaldished to protect one type of land use from another incompatible
land use or between a land use and a private or public road. (Also, see Screening)

BUILDING shall mean any structure built and maintained for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons,
animals, chattels, or property of any kind, but shall not include temporary buildings as defined in
"Structure, Temporary” Trailers, with or without wheels, shall not be considered as buildings.

BUILDING, ACCESSORY shall mean any detached subordinate building which serves a function
customarily incidental to that of the main building or main use of the premises, Custonary accessory
building includes farm buildings, garages, carports, and small storage sheds.

BUILDING CODE shall mean the various
codes of the City that regulate construction

7 N 1911 1 rteal HBCE A s HIGHEST FON
and requires building permits, electrica M:g:_m_m. PG 21 KA e

permits, mechanical permits, plumbing e SR T . T o
permits, and other permits to do work 0 ﬂ GGG I B s n oy
regulated by the Uniform Building Code, BUILOING HEIGHT A G HElamy e AR
and other codes adopted by the City that (GABLE. HIP OR GAMBREL ROGFE) {FLAT AND SHED ROOFS)

pertain to building construction.
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vertical distance above grade to the highest - FRUSHED GIADE

point of the coping of a flat roof or to the R ADEARD 2ars)
deck line of a mansard roof, or to the
average height of the highest gable of a
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ground surface within a five (5) foot
horizontal distance at the exterior wall of

Example 1 : Building Height Measurements

the building. (Also, see Height)
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BUILDING INSPECTOR shall mean the Chief Building Official of the City of La Vista, Nebraska.
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

BUILDING SETBACK LINE shall mean the minimum of distance as prescribed by this regulation

between any property line and the closest point of the building line or face of any building or structure
related thereto.

BUSINESS OR TRADE SCHOOL (see Special or Vocational Training Facilities} (Ordinance No. 1083,
2-17-(19)

BUSINESS SERVICES shail mean establishments primarily engaged in rendering services to business
establishments on a contract or fee basis, such as advertising, credit reporting, collection of clains,
mailing, reproduction, stenographic, news syndicates, computer programming, photocopying, duplicating,
data processing, services to buildings, and help supply services. (See also Standord Industrial
Classification (SIC) Major Group 73, published by the US Department of Labor.) (Ordinance No. 1453,
1-15-08)
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202.88

CAMPGROUND shall mean a parcel of land intended for the temporary occupancy of tents, campers, and
recreational vehicles and which primary purpose is recreational, having open areas that are natural in
character.

CAR WASH shall mean a building or structure or an area of land with machine or hand operated facilities
for the cleaning, washing, polishing, or waxing of motor vehicles, not including semi-trailer tractors, buses,
and commercial fleets.

CARPORT shall mean a permanent roofed structure with not mote than two (2) enclosed sides used or
intended 1o be used for automobile shelter and storage.

CELLAR shall mean a building space having more than one-half (1/2) of its height below the average
adjoining grade lines.

CEMETERY shali mean land used or intended to be used for the burial of the dead and dedicated for such
purposes, including columbariums, crematoriums, and mausoleums.

CHANGEABLE COPY shall refer to a sign or portion thereof with characters, letters, or illustrations that
can be changed or rearranged withowt, altering the face or the swrface of the sign A sign on which ihe
message changes more than eight times per day shall be considered an animated sign and not a changeable
copy sign for purposes of this ordinance. A sign onwhich the only copy changes is an electronic or
mechanical indication of time or lemperature shall be considered a "time and temperature” portion of a
sign and not a changeable copy sign for puiposes of this ordinance. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

CHANNEL shall mean the geographical area within either the natural or artificial banks of a watercourse
or drainway.

CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION or CLUB shall mean a public or semi-publiic institutional use of a
philanthropic, charitable, benevolent, religious, or eleemosynary character, but not including sheltering or
caring of animals. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

CHILD CARE CENTER shall mean an establishment other than a public or parochial school, which
provides day care, play groups, nursery schools or education for thirteen {I3) or more children under age
13, at any one time, from families other than that of the provider. In addition to these regulations, Child
Care Centers shall meet all requirements of the State of Nebraska.

CHILD CARE HOME shall mean an operation in the provider's pkice of residence which serves at least
four (4), but not more than eight (8) children at any one time, from families other than that of the provider.
A Family Child Care Home | provider may be approved to serve no more than two {2) additicnal school-
age children during non-school hours. A Family Child Care Home 1] operation may be either in the
provider’s own place of residence or a site other than the residence, serving twelve (12) or fewer children at
any one time. In addition to these regulations, Child Care Homes shall meet all requirements of the State of
MNebraska.

CITY shali mean the City of La Vista

CODE shall mean the Muricipal Code of the City of La Vista

COFFEE KIOSK shall mean a retail food business in a freestanding boilding that sells coffee, or other
beverages, and remade bakery goods from a drive-through window or walk-up window. (Ordinance No.
1453, I-15-08).

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY shall mean an educational institution offering advanced instruction in
any academic field beyond the secondary level, including trade schools or business colleges. (Ordinance

No. , )
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COMMISSION shall mean the La Vista Planning Commission,

COMMERCIAL MESSAGE shall mean any sign wording. logo, or other representation that, directly or
indirectly, names, advertises, or calls attention to a business, product, service, or other commercial
activity (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

COMMON AREA OR PROPERTY shall mean a parcel or parcels of land, together with the
improvements thereon, the use and enjoyment of which are shared by the owners of the individual building
sites in a Planned Development or condominium development.

COMMUNICATION SERVICES shall mean establishments primarily engaged in the provision of
broadeasting and other information relay servives accomplished through the use of elecironic and
telephonic mechanisms. Excluded are facilities classified as major utility services or wireless
communication towers. Tyvpical uses include television studios, communication service centers, infernet
service offices, or fitnm and sound recording facilities (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-0%9)

COMPATIBILITY shall mean harmony in the appearance of two or more external design features in the
same vicinity.

COMPATIBLE USES shall mean a land use which is congruous with, tolerant of, and has no adverse
effects on existing neighboring uses. Incompatibility may be affected by pedestrian or vehicular traffic
generation, volume of goods handled and environmental elements such as noise, dust, odor, air pollution,
glare, lighting, debris generated, contamination of surface or ground water, aesthetics, vibration, electrical
interference, and radiation.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN shall mean the Comprehensive Plan of La Vista, Nebraska as adopted by the
City Council, setting forth policies for the present and foreseeable futwre community welfare as a whole
and meeting the purposes and requirements set forth in Section 19-903, R R S. 1943, as the same may, from
time-to-time, be amended.

CONDITIONAL USE shall mean a use where allowed by the district regulations, that would not be

appropriate generally throughout the zoning district without restrictions, but which, if controlled as to
number, size, area, location, relation to the neighborhood or other minimal protective characteristics would
not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and general welfare.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT shall mean a permit issued by the Planning Commission and City
Council that authorizes the recipient to make conditional use of property in accordance with the provisions
of Article 6 and any additional conditions placed upon, or required by said permit,

CONDOMINIUM shall be as defined in the Nebraska State Statues Section 76-824 - 76-894, the

Condominium Law, whereby four or more apartments are separately offered for sale.

CONGREGATE HOUSING shall mean a residential facility for four or more persons fifty-five (55) years
or over, their spouses, or surviving spouses, providing living and sleeping facilities including meal
preparation, dining areas, laundry services, room cleaning and common recreational, social, and service
facitities for the exclusive use of all residents including resident staff personnel who occupy a room or unit
in the residential facility. (Also see Housing lor the elderiy)

2.02 1D0CONSERVATION shall mean the protection and care that prevent destruction or deterioration of

historical or otherwise significant structures, buildings or natural resources.

2.02 101 CONSERVATION AREA shall mean environmentally sensitive and valuable lands protected from any

activity that would significantly alter their ecological integrity, balance or character, except in overriding
public interest, including bul not limited to: wetlands, floodways, flood plains, drainage ways, river or
stream banks, and areas of significant biological productivity or uniqueness.



202102CONSERVATION EASEMENT shall mean an easement granting a right or interest in real property that
is appropriate to retaining land or water areas predominantly in their natural, scenic, open, or wooded
condition and retaining such areas as suitable habitat for fish, plants, or wildlife, or maintaining existing
land uses.

2.02.103CONSTRUCTION shall mean on-site erection, fabrication, installation, alteration, demolition, or removal
of any structure, facility, or addition thereto, including all related activities, but not restricted to, clearing
of land, earth moving, blasting and landseaping. (Ordinance No. 1683, 2-17-(9)

2.02. 104 CONTIGUOUS shall mean the same as "Abut".

202 105 CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY shall offer services and housing packages that
allow access to senior independent living, assisted living, and nursing care facilities  Seniors who are
independent may live in a single-family home, apartment or condominium within the Continning Care
Retirement Community. When members of the community begin to need help with activities of daily living
(e.g. bathing, dressing, eating, etc ), they may be transferrved to an assisted living or nursing care facility
on the same site.

2.02.106CONVENIENCE STORE shall mean a one-story, retail store that is designed and stocked to sell
primarily food, beverages, and other household supplies to customers who purchase oniy a relatively few
items (in contrast to a "supermarket."} 1t is dependent on, and is designed to attract and accommodate large
volumes of stop-and-go traffic. Fuel sales shall be limited to awtomobiles, pick-up trucks, boats,
recreational vehicles, motoreycles, and small motorized equipment. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202 107DENSITY shall mean the number of dwelling units per gross acre of land

202 108 DEVELOPER shall mean any person, corporation, partnership, or entity that is responsible for any
undertaking that requires a building or zoning permit, conditional use permit or sign permit.

202 109DEVELOPMENT shall mean any manmade change to improved or unimiproved real estate, including but
not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, o1
drilling operations for which necessary permits may be required. Also, shall mean any material change in
the use or appearance of any structure or in the land itself; the division of land info sepavate lots; any
change in the intensity or use of land, such as an increase in the mumber of dwelling units in a structure or
a change to a commercial or industrial use from a less intensive use, any activity that alters a river,
stream, lake, pond, woodland, wetland, endangered species habitat, aguifer or other resource area.
{Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202.110DOG KENNEL (See Kennel)
2.02. 111 DOWNZONING shall mean a change in zoning classification of land to a less intensive or more restrictive

district such as from commercial district to residential district or from a multiple family residential district
to single family residential district.

2.02.112DRAINAGE shall mean the removal of surface water or groundwater from land by drains, grading, o
other means that include rungff controls to mininize erosion and sedimentation during and after
construction or development, the means for preserving the water supply, and the prevenfion or alleviation
of flooding (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202 13DRIVEWAY shall mean any vehicular access to an off-street parking or loading facility.
2.02 114 DUPLIEX shall mean the same as "Dwelling, Two (2) Family".

2.02.115DWELLING Any building or portion thereof which is designed and used exclusively for single family
residential purposes, excluding mobile homes.



2.02.116DWELLING, MOBILE HOME Any prefabricated structure, composed of one or more parts, used for
living and sleeping purposes, shipped or moved in essentially a complete condition and mounted on wheels,
skids or rollers, jacks blocks, horses, skirting or a permanent or temporary foundation or any prefabricated
structure which has been or reasonably can be equipped with wheels or other devices for transporiing the
structure from place to place, whether by motive power or other means. The term mobile home shail
include trailer home and camp car, but the definition shall not apply to any vehicle lawfully operated upon
fixed rails.

2021161  Permanently Attached: Attached to real estate in such a way as to require dismantling, cutting
away, unbolting from permanent continuous foundation or structural change in such mobile
home in order to relocate it on another site in accordance to manufacturers recommendations

202.116.2 Permanent Foundation: Base on which building rests to be constructed from either poured
concrete or laid masonry block or brick placed on a footing located below ground fevel to a
point below the frost line. (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-09)

202 117DWELLING, MULTIPLE FAMILY shall mean a building or buildings designed and used for occupancy
by three (3) or more families, all living independently of each other and having separate kitchen and toilet
{acilities for each family. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202 118DWELLING, SINGLE FAMILY a building having accommodations for or occupied exclusively by one
family which meet all the following standards:

2.02.118.1 The home shall have no less than nine hundred (900) square feet of floor area, above grade,
for single story construction;

2.02.118.2  The home shall have no less than an eighteen (18) foot exterior width;

2021183 The roof shall be pitched with a minimum vertical rise of two and one-half (2 1/2) inches for
cach twelve (12) inches of horizontal run;

2021184 The exterior material shall be of a color, material and scale comparable with those existing in

residential site-built, single family construction;
021185  The home shall have a non-reflective roof material that is or simulates asphalt or wood
shingles, tile, or rock;
2021186 The home shall be placed on a continuous permanent foundation and have wheels, axles,
transporting lights, and removable towing apparatus removed;
2021187 The home shall meet and maintain the same standards that are uniformly applied to all single-
family dwelings in the zoning district; and
2.02.118.8 Permanent foundation: continuous perimeter base on which building rests to be constructed
from either poured concrete or laid masonry block or brick placed on a footing locared below
ground level to a point below the frost line. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)
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2.02.119DWELLING, TWO (2) FAMILY shall mean a building designed or used exclusively for the
occupancy of two (2) families living independently of each other and having separate Kitchen and
toilet facilities for each family.

2.02 120 DWELLING UNIT One room, or rooms connected together, constituting a separate, independent
housekeeping establishment for owner occupancy or lease on a weekly, monthly, or longer basis, and
physically separate from any other rooms or dwelling units which may be in the same structure, and
containing independent cooking, toilet and sleeping facilities.

202 121 EASEMENT shall mean a space or a lot or parcel of land reserved for or used for public utilities or pubiic
or private uses.

2.02.122EDUCATIONAL FACILITY shall mean a public or nonprofit institution or facility which conducts
regular academic instruction at preschool, kindergarten, elementary, secondary, and collegiate levels,
including graduate schools, universities, junior colleges, trade schools, nonprofit research institutions and
religious institutions. Such institutions must either: (1) Offer general academic instruction equivaient to




the standards established by the State Board of Education; or (2) Confer degrees as a college or university
or undergraduate or graduate standing; or (3) Conduct research; or {4) Give religious instruction. Private
schools, academies, or institutes incorporated or otherwise, which operate for a profit, commercial, or
private trade schools are not included in this definition. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202 123EFFECTIVE DATE shali mean the date that this Ordinance shall have been adopted, amended, ot the
date land areas became subject to the regulations contained in this Ordinance as a result of such adoption or
amendment.

202 124 ENCROACHMENT shall mean an advancement or intrusion beyond the lines or Himits as designated and
established be the Regulation, and to infringe or trespass into or upon the possession or right of others
without permission.

202125 ENLARGEMENT shall mean the expansion of a building, structure, or use in volume, size, area, height,
length, width, depth, capacity, ground coverage, or in number.

2.02.126 ERECTED shall mean constructed upon or moved onto a site.

202 12TEVENT CENTER shall mean all buildings and associated parking facilities which are kept, used,
maintained, advertised, held o, leased out, or othenwvise made available to private groups and/or the
general public for such purposes as meetings, civie, educational, political, veligious or social purpose such
as receptions, dances, entertabnment, secondhand merchandise sales and the like, and may include a
banguet hall, private club or fraternal organization, but not including uses defined in Adult Establishment
{Ordinance No, 955, 7-19-05)

202128 EXERCISE, FITNESS and TANNING SPA shall mean an establishment that provides exercise facilities
Jor the purposes of running, fjogging, aerobics, weight lifting, court sports, and/or swimming, as well as
locker rooms, showers, massage rooms, tanning beds, hot tubs, saunas or other related accessory uses;
however, excluding any uses defined as "adult entertainment establishments”. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-
17-09)

2.02.129EXTERNAL DESIGN FEATURE shall mean the general arrangement of any portion of a building, sign,
landscaping, or structure and including the kind, color, and texture of the materials of such portion, and the
types of roof, windows, doors, lights, attached or ground signs, or other fixtures appurtenant to such
portions as will be open to public view from any street, place, or way.

202 130EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION shall mean the area beyond the corporate limits, in which the
City has been granted the powers by the state to exercise zoning and building regulations and is exercising
such powers,

2.02.131 FACADE shall mean the exterior wall of a buiiding exposed to public view from the building's extesior.

2.02.132 FACTORY shall mean a structure or plant within which something is made or manufactured from raw or
partly wrought materials into forms suitable for use.

2.02.133FAMILY shall mean a person living alone, or any of the following groups living together as a single
nonprofit housekeeping unit and sharing common living, sieeping, cooking, and eating facilities. (1) any
number of people related by blood, marrviage, adoption, guardianship, or duly-anthorized custodial
relationship; (2) up to four unrelated people and any related children, and (3) a group care home.

Family does not include any society, club, fraternity, sororvity, association, lodge, organization, group of
students, or other individuals where the common living arvangement is temporary or seasonal  Also, the
term does not include any group of individuals who are in a group living arrangement as a result of
criminal offenses. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02. 134 FARM an area containing at least twenty (20) acres or more which is used for growing of the usual farm
products such as vegetables, fruit, and grain; storing of such products; and/or raising farm animals. The



term farming includes the operating of such area for aive or more of the above uses with the necessary

accessory uses for treating or storing the produce and the feeding of livestock as hereinafter prescribed
provided such accessory uses do not include the feeding of garbage or offal to swine or other animals.

(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-69)

2.02.135FEEDLOT shall mean a lot, yard, corral or other area in which livestock are confined, primarily for the
purpose of feeding and growth prior to slaughter. The term does not inciude areas which are used for

raising crops or other vegetation or upon which livestock are allowed to graze.

202 136 FENCE, OPEN shall mean a fence, including gates, which has fifty percent {50%) or more of the surface
area in open spaces which affords direct views through the fence. (Ordinance No., 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.137 FENCE, SEASONAL shall mean a temporary fence constructed of plastic or wood lathe erected and
maintained from October through April to prevent snow drifting. (Ordinance No. 871, 10-15-02)

2.02.138 FENCE, SOLID shall mean any fence which does not qualify as an open fence.

202139 FESTIVAL shall mean the sale of ethnic specialty, regional, and gourmet foods, art and crafis, live
musical entertainment, in an ontdoor setting. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 140 FLOOD {see Seclion 5.18 25 of this Ordinance)

202141 FLOOD PLAIN (see Section 5 18 25 of this Ordinance)

2.02 142FLOODWAY (see Section 5.18.25 of this Ordinance)

2.02 143FLOOR AREA whenever the term "floor area” is used in this Regulation as a basis for requiring off-street
pmking for any structuare, it shall be assumed that, unless otherwise stated, said floor area applies not only

to the ground floor area but also to any additional stories of said structure. All horizontal dimensions shall
be taken from the exterior faces of walls.

2.02. 144 FOOD SALES shall mean establishments or places of business primarily engaged in the retail sale of food
or household products for home consumption. Typical uses include groceries, delicatessens, meat markets,
retail bakeries, and candy shops.

202 1443 FOOD SALLES (LIMITED) shatl mean food sales establishments occupying 10,000
square feet or less of space.
2.02.144.2 FOOD SALES (GENERAL) shall mean food sales establishments occupying more than

10,000 square feet of space. Typically a supermarket.

2.02.145FRONTAGHE shall mean that portion of a parcel of property which abuts a dedicated public street or
highway

2.02 146 GARAGE shall mean a detached accessory building or an attached portion of a dhwelling for the housing of
vehicles, inciuding carports. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.147GRADE shall mean the average of the finished ground level at the center of all walls of a building. In case
walls are parallel to and within five feet of a sidewalk, the ground level shall be measured at the sidewalk.

2.02 148 GREENHOUSE shall mean a building or premises used for growing plants, preparation of floral
arrangements for off-site delivery to customers, cold storage of flowers or dry storage of materials used for
agricultural or horticultural purposes.

2.02 149GROUND COVER shall mean plant material used in landscaping which remains less than twelve (12)
inches in height at maturity. {Also, see Landscaping)




2,02 150GROUP CARE HOME shall mean a home which is operated under the auspices of an organization which
is responsible for providing social services, administration, direction, and control for the home which is
designed to provide twenty-four (24) hour care for individuals in a residential setting. This rerm does not
include any society, club, fraternity, sorority, association, lodge, organization, or group of students or
other individuals where the common living arrangement is temporary or seasonal  Also, the term does not
include any group of individuals whe are in a group living arrangement as a a resull of criminal offenses
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202151 GUNSMITH shall mean a shop that designs, makes or repairs small firearms. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-
17-09)

2.02 132GULEST ROOM shall mean a room which is designed to be occupied by one (1} or more guest for sleeping
purposes, having no kitchen facilities, not including dormitories.

202 153HARD SURFACED shall mean any surface used for movement of vehicular and / or pedestrians which is
properly designed with permeable pavement, bricks, interfocking concrete pavers, asphalt or concrete.
{Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 154HARMONY shall mean a quality that represents an appropriate and congruent arrangement of parts, as in
an arrangement of varied architectural and landscape clements

2.02.155HAZARDOUS WASTE / MATERIALS shall mean waste products of industrial or chemical process
including finished surplus, used, contaminated or unwanted fertilizer, herbicide, petroleum products, or
other such processed waste material. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02. 156 HEALTH CLUB shall mean privately owned for profit facilities such as gymnasiums, athletic clubs,
recreational clubs, reducing salons, and weight control establishments. (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-(9)

202 157THEDGE shall mean a plant or series of plants, shrubs or other landscape material, so arranged as to form a
physical barrier or enclosure

2.02.157 HOME QCCUPATION shall mean an “in-home™ or “home-based” business, industry, or service {not
including uses defined as Adult Entertainment Establishment) operating from within a residential
dwelling, or within an accessory structure in a residential zoning district. Home occupations shall be
secondary and incidental in nature o the primary residential structure and/or property. Home Occupations
shall satisty the standards set forth in Section 7.10 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance

2.02.157 01 Home Occupation I (Major): shall mean Home Occupations that include on-site sales or
services and/or one part-time or full-time employee that does not reside on the premises.

2.02.157.02Home Occupation 11 (Minor): shall mean a Home Occupation that is not a Home Occupation
I, including the following {2) a Home Occupation in which the sole activity is maintenance
and use of an office in the home for telecommuting and/or deriving other income or sales; and
{b) home-based craftmaking or cooking, which does not involve on-site sales. (Ordinance
No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02.157.030ccupations defined as Home Occupation 11 are exempt from a conditional use permit and
Home Occupation License. All Home Occupation | uses are required to have a Home
Occupation License. (Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02.138 HOME OCCUPATION LICENSE shall mean a license provided to the owner/operator of a home
occupation. Such license shall include (but not limited to) the following:

2.02.158.01 Application fee in accordance with Master Fee Schedule. (Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02.138.02 For major Home Occupations requiring a Conditional Use Permit, a minimum of seventy-five
percent (75%) of the households within two hundred feet (200°) of the proposed home
occupation shall indicate no objections, in writing, to the operation of such home cccupation.
A “no objections” signature form shall be provided by the City and said residents shall sign
next to their respective address. {Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)




2.02.158 03A Conditional Use Permit is required for Home Occupation T uses, except Child Care Homes.
(Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02.159 HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT (see Home Occupation License) (Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02 160 HOME OCCUPATION TAX (see Home Occupation License) (Ordinance No. 879, 11-19-02)

2.02.161 HOSPITAL, ANIMAL shall mean a place where animals or pets are given medical or surgical treatment
and are cared for during the time of such treatment. Use as a kenmel shall be limited to short-time
boarding and shall be only incidental to sueh hospital use  (Ordinance No. 871, 10-15-02)

2.02.162 HOTEL shali mean a building or portion thereof, or a group of buildings, offering transient lodging
accommaodations on a daily rate to the general public and providing services associated with restaurants,
meeting rooms, and recreational facilities. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-.17-09)

202163 HOUSE TRAILER (see Dwelling, Mobile Home)

2.02.164 HOUSEHOLD PET shall mean an animal that is customarily kept for personal use or enjoyment within
the home. Household pet shall include but not be limited to demestic dogs, domestic cats, domestic
tropical birds, fish, and rodents.

2.02 165 INCIDENTAL shall mean a use, which is subordinate to the main use of a premise.

2.02.166 INDOOR RECREATIONAL FACILITY shall refer to use of a facility for purposes of recreation. The
use shall be completely enclosed within a building with the exception of retractable roofs. Examples
inchude, but are not limited to sports cow'ts, gymmnastics, kart racing, batting cages, practice fields, and
miniature golf (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.167 INDUSTRY shall mean the manufacture, fabrication, processing reduction or destruction of any article,
substance or comimodity, or any other treatment thereof in such a manner as to change the form, character,
or appearance thereof and including storage elevators, truck storage yards, warehouses, wholesale storage
and other similar types of enterprise.

2.02.168 INOPERABLE MOTOR VEHICLE shall mean any motor vehicle which: (1) Does not have a current
state license plate; or, (2) Which may or may not have a current state [icense plate, but is disassembled or
wiecked in part or in whole, or is unable to move under its own power, or is not equipped as required by
Nebraska State Law for operation upon streets or highways. A vehicle which is wholly or partially
dismantled shall not be considered inoperable when said vehicle is inside a completely enclosed building

2.02.169 INTENSITY shall mean the degree to which land is used referring to the levels of concentration or
activity in uses ranging from uses of low intensity being agricultural and residential to uses of highest
intensity being heavy industrial uses. High intensity uses are normally uses that generate concentrations
of vehicular traffic and daytime population and are less compatible with lower intensive uses.

2.02. 170 INTENT AND PURPOSE shall mean that the Commission and Council by the adoption of this Ordinance
have made a finding that the health, safety, and welfare of the community will be served by the creation of
the zoning districts and by the regulations prescribed therein.

202171 JUICE BAR (See Adult Establishment)

2.02.172 JUNK shall be any worn-out, cast-off, old, or discarded articles of scrap, copper, brass, iron, steel, rope,
rags, batteries, paper, trash, rubber, debris, waste, dismantled or wrecked automobiles, or parts thereof,
and other old or scrap ferrous or nonferrous material

2.02.173 KENNEL shall mean an establishment where three (3) or more dogs, cats, or other household pets, or non-
farm/mon-domestic or any combination of five {5} or more thereof, at least four (4) months of age are
boarded as a business (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202174 LABORATORY shall mean a facility used for testing and analyzing medical and demtal samples from off
site locations  Testing laboratories shall refer 1o soil and geotechnical research and analysis
Laboratories do not include hnman or animal research / testing facilities. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)



2.02 175 LANDSCAPE shall mean plant materials, topography, and other natural physical elements combined in
relation to one another and to man-made structures,

2.02.176 LANDSCAPING shall include the original planting of suitable vegetation in conformity with the
requirements of this Regulation and the continued maintenance thereof,

2.02.177 LAUNDRY SERVICE shall mean an establishment that provides home-type washing, drying, and/or
ironing facilities for customers on the premises. (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-09)

202178 LOADING AREA shall mean an off-street space or berth on the same lot with a main building, or
contiguous to a group of buildings, for the temporary parking of commercial vehicles while loading or
unloading, and which abuts a street, alley, or other appropriate means of ingress and egress. (Ordinance
No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.179 LOGIC OF DESIGN shall mean accepted principles and criteria of validity in the solution of the problem
of design,

202180 LOT shall mean a parcel or tract of land which is or may be occupied by a use herein permitted, together
with yards, and other open spaces herein required, that has frontage upon a street, and is a part of a
recorded subdivision plat or has been recorded prior to the adoption of the Regulation, or a parcel of real
property delineated on an approved record of survey, lot-split or sub-parceling map as filed in the office of
the County Register of Deeds and abutting at least one (1) public street or right-of-way, two (2) easements
with dedicated public access, or one (1) private road. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.181 LOT AREA shall mean the total area, on a horizontal plane, within the lot lines of a lot

2.02.182 LOT, CORNER shall mean a lot located at the intersection of two (2) or more streets at an angle of not
more than one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees. 1f the angle is greater than one hundred thirty-five (135)
degrees, the lot shail be considered an "Interior Lot” The setbacks for a front yard shall be met on all
abutting streets.
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202185 LOT, DOUBLE FRONTAGE Strezt
shall mean a lot having a frontage
on two non-intersecting streets as
distinguished from a corner lot

2.02.186_LOT, FRONTAGE shall mean
the side of a lot abutting on a
legally accessibie street right-of-way other than an alley or an improved county road. For the purposes of
this definition, on corner iots, all sides of a lot adjacent to streets or roads shall be considered fiontage.




202187 LOT. INTERIOR shall mean a lot other than a corner lot

[

02 188 LOT LINE shall mean the property line bounding a lot

J

02.189 LOT LINE, FRONT shall mean the property iine abutting a street.

202190 LOT LINE, REAR shall mean a lot line not abutting a stieet which is opposite and most distant from the
front ot line

2.02191 LOT LINE, SIDE shall mean any lot line that /s not a front lot line or rear lot line. (Ordinance No. 1083,
2-17-019)

2.02.192 LOT, THROUGH shall mean a lot having frontage on two (2) dedicated streets, not including a corner
lot.

2.02.193 LOT OF RECORD shall mean a lot held in separate ownership as shown on the records of the County
Register of Deeds at the time of the passage of a regulation or regulations establishing the zoning district
in which the lot is located.

202,194 LOT WIDTH shall mean the average horizontal distance between the side lot lines, measured at right
angles to the lot depth at a point midway befween the front and rear lot lines.

202195 MAIL ORDER SERVICES shall mean an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of products
by television, telemarketing, internet, catalog, and mail order Such a use may include warehousing,
shipping, and receiving of merchandise intended for retail sale. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.196 MANUFACTURED HOME A factory-built structure which is to be used as a place for human habitation,
which is not constructed or equipped with a permanent hitch or other device allowing it to be moved other
than to a permanent site, which does not have permanently attached to its body or frame any wheels or
axles, and which bears a label certifying that it was built in compliance with standards promulgated by the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202197 MANUFACTURED HOME PARK shall mean a parcel of land under single ownership that has been
planned and improved for the placement of manufactured housing used or to be used for dwelling
purposes and where manufactured home spaces are not offered for sale or sold. The term "manufactured
home park" does not include sales lots on which new or used manufactured homes are parked for the
purposes of storage, inspection, or sale.

202198 MANUFACTURED HOME SUBDIVISION shall mean any area, piece, parcel, tract or plot of ground
subdivided and used or intended to be used for the purpose of selling lots for occupancy by manufactured
homes.

2.02.199 MANUFACTURING shall mean uses primarily engaged in the mechanical or chemical transformation of
materials or substances into new products  These uses are usually described as plants, factories, or mills
and characteristically use power driven machines and materials handling equipment. Uses engaged in
assembling component parts of manufactured products are also considered manufacturing if the new
preduct is neither a structure nor other fixed improvement. Also included is the blending of material such
as lubricating oils, plastics, resins, or liqguors. Manufacturing production is usually carried on for the
wholesale market, for interplant transfer, or to order for industrial users, rather than for direct sale 1o the
domestic consumer.

2.02.200 MANUFACTURING, LIGHT shall mean an establishiment engaged in the indoor manufacinring,
assembly, fabrication, packaging or other industrial processing of finished parts or products, primarily
Jrom previously prepared materials, or the indoor provision of industrial services, where there are few
external effects across property lines. This term includes but is not limited fo a business engaged in the




processing, fabrication, assembly, treatment, or packaging of food, textile, leather, wood, paper,
chemical, plastic, or metal products, but does not include basic industrial processing from raw materials
(Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)

2.02.201 MAP, OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT shall mean a map delineating the boundaries of zoning districts
which, along with the zoning text, is officially adopted by the La Vista City Council.

2.02.202 MASTER FEE SCHEDULE shall mean a fee schedule maintained by the City of La Vista and passed,
and amended periodically, which establishes the required fees to be collected for specific Planning,
Zoning, Subdivision, and Building Inspection activities

202203 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT shall mean equipment, devices, and accessories, the use of which relates
to water supply, drainage, heating, ventilating, air conditioning, and similar purposes.

2.02.204 MEDICAL / DENTAL OFFICES / CLINICS shall mean a building or portion of a building containing
offices and facilities for providing medical, dental, and psychiatric services for outpatients only
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.205 MEETING HALL shall mean a building designed for public assembly (Ordinance Neo. 1083, 2-17-09)

202206 MICROBREIWERY (sce Bresw Pub) (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.207 MINI-STORAGE OR MINI-WAREHOUSE (See Self-Service Storage Facility)

202208 MISCELLANEOUS REPAIR SERVICES shall include electrical repair shops, watch, clock and jewelry
repair shops, and re-upholstery and furniture repair. (See also Standard Industrial Classification (SIC)
Major Group 76, published by the U.S Department of Labor) (Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)

2.02.209 MISCELLANEQUS STRUCTURES shall mean structures, other than buildings, visible from public
ways. Examples are: memorials, antennas, water tanks and towers, sheds, shelters, fences, and walis,
kennels, transformers, drive-up facilities. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 210 MIXED USE shall mean properties where various uses, such as office, commercial, institutional, and
residential, are combined in a single building or on a single site in an integrated development project with
significant functional interrefationships and a coherent physical design,

202211 MOBILE HOME (See Dwelling, Mobile Home)

202212 MOBILE HOME PARK (See Manufactured Home Park)

2.02.213 MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISION (See Manufactured Home Subdivision)

202 214 MORTUARY shall mean an establislhnient in which the deceased are prepared for burial or cremation.
The facility may include funeral services and spaces for informal gatherings or display of funeral
equipment. This classification excludes cemeteries. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.215 MOTEL (See Hotel)

2.02.216 MOTOR VEHICLE shall mean every setf-propelled vehicle, not operated tipon rails, except mopeds and
self-propetled invalid chaits. (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-03)

2022V T NEWSSTAND shall mean a temporary structure manned by a vendor, swhom sells newspapers, magazines
and other periodicals. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)



2.02 218 NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURE shall mean a building or portion thereof which was lawful when
established but which does not conform to subsequently established zoning or zoning reguiations.
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.219 NON-CONFORMING USE shall mean a use lawful when established but which does not conform to
subsequently established zoning or zoning regulations.

2.02.220 NUISANCE shall mean anything that interferes with the use or enjoyment of property, endangers personal
health or safety, or is offensive to the senses such as noise, dust, odor, smoke, gas, pollution, congestion,
lighting, and litter.

2.02.221 NURSERY shail mean the use of a premises for the propagation, cultivation, and growth of frees, shrubs,
plants, vines, and the like from seed or stock, and the sale thereof, and including the sale of trees, shrubs,
plants, vines, and the like purchased elsewhere and transplanted into the soil of the premises. In
connection with the sale of plants, such fungicides, insecticides, chemicals, peat moss, humus, mulches,
and fertilizers as are intended to be used in preserving the life and health of the plants may be sold.

202222 NURSING CARE AND REHABILITATION FACILITIES shall mean a type of care facility for persons
with chronie Hiness or disability, particularly older people who have mobility and eating problems  These
facilities are licensed by the State of Nebraska and offer 24-hour room and board and health care
services, ineluding basic and skilled nursing care, rehabilitation, hospice, and a full range of other
therapies, treatments, and programs

2.02.223 OFFICE shall mean a building or a portion of a building wherein services ate performed involving,
primarily, administrative, professional, or clerical operations

2.02.224 QFFICE PARK shall mean a development which contains twe or more separate office buildings,
accessory and supporting uses, and open space all designed, planned, constructed, and maintained on a
coordinated basis (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.225 OPEN SPACE shall mean a parcel or parcels of land, together with the improvements thereon, primarily
set aside for recreational use and enjoyment, exclusive of land areas used for streets, alleys, roads,
driveways, parking areas, structures, and buildings.

2.02.226 OPEN SPACE, COMMON shall mean a separate and distinct area set aside as open space within or
related to a development, and not on individually owned lots or dedicated for public use, but which is
designed and intended for the common use or enjoyment of the residents of the deveiopment. Rights-of-
way, private streets, driveways, parking lots or other surfaces designed or Intended for vehicular use or
required yards shall not be included as common open space.

202227 OUTLOT shall mean a lot remnant or parcel of land left over afler platting, which is intended as open
space or other use, for which no building permit shall be issued on any private structures.

202228 QUTDOOR STORAGE shall mean the storage of any material for a period greater than 72 hours not in
an enclosed building, including items for sale, lease, processing, and repair (including motor vehicles).
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202229 OVERLAY DISTRICT shall mean a district in which additional requirements act in conjunction with the
underlying zoning district. The wnderlyving zoning district designation does not change. (Ordinance Ne.
1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.230 OWNER shall mean one (1) or more persons, including corporations, who have title to the property,
building or structure in question.

202231 PARCEL shalt mean a lot or a contiguous group of lots in single ownership or under single control, which
may be considered as a unit for purposes of development



2.02.232 PARK shall mean any public or private land available for recreational, educational, cultural, or aesthetic
use.

202233 PARKING AREA or VEHICULAR USE 4REA shall refer to all off street areas and spaces designed,
used, required, or intended to be used for parking, including driveways or access ways in and to such
areas. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.234 PARKING SPACE shall mean an area, otler than a strect or alley, reserved for the parking of an
automobile, such space having a dimension not less than nine (9) feet wide by eighteen (18) feet Jong, plus
such additional area as is necessary to afford adequate ingress and egress. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.235 PERMANENT FOUNDATION shall mean a base constructed from either poured concrete or laid
masonry rock or brick and placed on a footing located below ground level to a point below the frost line
upon which a building or structure is permanently attached.

202236 PERMANENTLY ATTACHED shall mean connected to real estate in such a way as to require
dismantling, cutting away, or unbolting in order to remove, relocate, or replace.

202237 PERMITTED USE shall mean any land use allowed without condition within a zoning district.

202 238 PERSON shall mean an individual, firm, co-parinership, joint venture, association, social club, fraternal
organization, corporation, estate, trust, receiver, syndicate, City, County, special district or any other
group or combination acting as an entity, except that it shall not include La Vista, Nebraska.

202239 PET HEALTH SERVICE (see Hospital, Animal) (Ordinance No. 871, 10-15-02

2.02.240 PET SHOP shall mean a retail establishment primarily involved in the sale of domestic animals, such as
dogs, cats, fish, birds, and reptiles, excluding exotic animals and farm animals such as horses, cattle,
goats, sheep and poultry

202241 PINBALL or VIDEO GAMES BUSINESS (See Amusement Arcade) (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)
202 242 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT shall mean a development designed to provide for an unusual or

different arrangement of residential, business, or industrial uses in accordance with an approved
development plan. (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-03)

202243 PLANNING COMMISSION shall mean the Planning Commission of La Vista, Nebraska.

2.02.244 PLANT MATERIALS shall mean trees, shrubs, vines, ground covers, grass, perennials, annuals, and
bulbs.

2.02.245 PLAT shali mean a map showing the location, boundaries, and legal description of individual properties

202 246 POSTAL STATION shall mean a commercial business which conducts the retail sale of stationery
products, provides packaging and mail services (both U.S Postal and private service), and provides
mailboxes for lease (Ordinance Nop. 1083, 2-17-09)

202247 PREMISES shall mean a tract of land, consisting of one lot or irregular tract, or more than one lot or
irregular tract, provided such lots or tracts are under common ownership, contiguous, and used as a single
tract (See also, Parcel) (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09}

2.02.248 PRESCHOOL shall mean a school or center for children under school age, whether licensed as a day care
center or not, shall be approved by the Nebraska State Fire Marshall as being in safety conformance with
the National Fire Protection Association, Pamphlet 101, known as the Life Safety Code and shall be



approved by the Nebraska Department of Health and Welfare as meeting their health and welfare
standards, (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 249 PRINCIPAL BUILDING shall mean a building within which the main or primary use of the lot o1
premises is located  (See also Use, Principal) (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202250 PUBLIC FACILITIES shall mean any building held, used or comrolled exclusively for public purposes
by any department or branch of federal, state, county, or city government. 4 building belonging 1o or used
by the public for the fransaction of public or quasi-public business. Public services may be rendered from
such facifities. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202251 PUBLIC SERVICES shiall mean services provided by a public agency within a governmment facility for
purposes of public safety and emergency services, including a facility that provides police or fire
protection and related administrative facilities. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202252 RECREATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT (see Recreational Facility) (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-03)

202253 RECREATIONAL FACILITY shall mean public or privare facilities for the use of passive and active
recreation including tennis, handball, racquetball, basketball, rack and field, jogging, baseball, soccer,
skating, swimming, or golf. This shall include country clubs and athietic clubs, but not facilities accessory
{o a private residence used only by the owner and guests, nor arenas or stadiums used primarily for
spectators to waich athletic events. In addition, recreational facilities shali mean museums, amphitheaters,
race tracks (including all motor powered vehicles) and wildlife conservation areas (used for public
viewing), and theme parks. (Ordinance No. 891, 2-04-013)

202254 RECREATIONAL VEHICLE (RV) shall mean & vehicular unit less than forty (40) feet in overall length,
eight (8) feet in width, or twelve (12) feet in overall height, primarily designed as a temporary living
quarters for recreational camping or travel use having either its own power or designed to be mounted on
or drawn by a motor vehicle. Recreational vehicle includes motor home, truck camper, travel trailer,
camping trailer, and fifth wheel.

2,02.255 RESIDENCE shall mean a building used, designed, or intended {o be used as a home or dwelling place for
one (1) or more families.

2.02.256 RESERVATION CENTER shall mean a iravel agency, or other such agency involved in selling and
arranging fransportation, towrs, rips, and acconmodations for tourisis (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202257 RESTAURANT shall mean a public eating establishment at which the primary function is the preparation
and serving of food primarily to persons seated within the building

202258 RESTAURANT, FAST FOOD shall mean an establishment whose principal business is the sale of food
and/or beverages in ready-to-consume individual servings, for consumption either within the
establishment, for carryout, drive-thru, or drive-in; and where food and/or beverages are usually served in
paper, plastic, or other disposable containers. {Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.259 RETAIL TRADE shall mean uses primarily engaged in selling merchandise for personal or household
consumption and rendering services incidental to the sale of goods. Uses engaged in retail trade sell
merchandise to the general public or to households for personal consumption.

2 02260 REZONING shall mean an amendment to or change to the Official Zoning District Map. (Ordinance No.
1083, 2-17-09)

202261 RIGHT-OF-WAY shail mean an area or strip of land, either public or private, on which an irrevocable
right of passage has been dedicated, recorded, or otherwise legally established for the use of vehicles or
pedestrians or both.




2.02.262_ ROAD, PRIVATE shall mean a way, other than driveways, open to vehicular ingress and egress
established for the benefit of certain, adjacent properties.

2.

o

2263 ROAD. PUBLIC shall mean all public right-of-way reserved or dedicated for utilities and vehicular and
pedestrian traffic. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202264 SATELLITE DISH ANTENNA shall mean a round, parabolic antenna incorporating a reflective surface
that is solid, open mesh, or bar configured and is in the shape of a shallow dish, or cone and used to
transmit and/or receive radio or electromagnetic waves.

2.02.265 SCREENING shall mean a structure or planting that conceals from view from public ways the area behind
such structure or planting,

2266 SELF-SERVICE STORAGE FACILITY shall mean a building or group of buildings containing
individual, compartimentalized, and controlled access stalls or lockers for storage.

s
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202 267 SERVICE STATIONS shall mean buildings and premises where the primary use is the supply and
dispensing at retail of motor fuels, lubricants, batteries, tives, and motor vehicle accessories and where
light maintenance activities such as engine tune-ups, lubrications, and washing may be conducted, but not
including heavy maintenance and repair such as engine overhauls, painting, and body repair.

2.02.268 SETBACK, FRONT YARD shall mean the line which defines the depth of the required front yard. Said
setback line shall be paralie! with the right-of-way line or other access way. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-
9)

[
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269 SETBACK, REAR YARD OR SIDE YARD shall mean the line which defines the width or depth of the
required rear or side yard. Said setback line shall be parallel with the property line, offser by the
perpendicular distance prescribed for the yard in the district. (Qrdinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.270 SHOPPING CENTER shall mean a group of commercial establishments planned, constructed, and
managed as a total entity with customer and employee parking provided on-site, provisions for goods
delivery that is separated from customer access, aesthetic considerations, and protection from the
elements.

2.02.271 SHOPPING CENTER, COMMERCIAL STRIP shall mean a commercial development, usually one
store deep, that fronts on a major street for a distance of one city block or more. Includes individual
buildings on their own lots, with or without on-site parking and smail linear shopping centers with shallow
on-site parking in front of the stores.

2.02.272 SHOPPING CENTER, OUTLET shall meana

commercial development that consists mostly of £ e —

manufacturers’ outlet stores selling their own brands § - }

at a discounted price. This definition includes all § P 1

forms of centers, such as strip style, enciosed mall } i . }

style, and village clustered style centers J ! ‘ i — St

b ™ h

202273 SIGHT TRIANGLE is an area at a street intersection | i e emorere LM_"_

in which nothing shall be erected, placed, planted, or S : \\_mu L

allowed to grow in such a manner as to materiaily ] : 8

impede vision between a height of two-and-a-half (2 S e e

%) feet and ten (10) feet above the grades of the R

bottom of the curl of the intersecting streets, A ;

measured from the point of intersection of the | \ i |

centerline of the streets, sixty (60) feet in each

direction along the centerline of the streets. At the Example shows 90' Triangle

intersection of major or offrer arterial streets, the sixty




(60} foot distance shall be increased to ninety (90) feet for each arterin leg of the intersection
(Ordinance No. 891, 2-.04-03)

2.02.274 SIGN shall mean and inciude any outdoor display, declaration, device, figure, drawing, illustration,
message, placard, poster, billboard, insignia, or other things which are designed, intended, or used for
direction, information, identification, or to advertise, to inform, or to promote any business, product
activity, service, or any interest, except the following:
2.02.274.01  Signs less than fifty (50) square feet in area and less than twenty-five (25) feet in

height of a public or quasi-public nature or other official notices that are
authorized by the State of Nebraska, City of La Vista, or a Federal Government
Agency, directional, informational, or other official signs or notices authorized
by law.

202275 SIGN, ANIMATED shall mean any sign that uses movement or change of lighting to depict action or
create a special effect or scene.

2.02.276 SIGN AREA shafl refer to that portion of a sign on which copy can be placed but not including the
minimal supporting framework or bracing. The area of individually painted letter signs, individual letter
signs or directly or indirectly illuminated individual letter signs, shall be calculated on the basis of the
smallest geometric figure that will enclose the entire copy area of the sign. Any such calculation shail
include the areas between the letters and lines, as well as the areas of any devices, illuminated o1 non-
illuminated. (Qrdinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.277 SIGN, AUDIBLE shall mean any sign that conveys either a written message supported by an audible
noise including music, spoken message, and / or sounds to attract attention to the sign. Audible signs also
include signs conveying only the audible noise including music, spoken message, and / or sounds to attract
attention.

2.02 278 SIGN, BANNER shall mean any sign of
lightweight fabric or similar material that is
permanently mounted to a pole or building by a
permanent ffame at ene or more edges. National
flags, state or municipal flags, or official flag of
any institution or business shall not be
considered banners. Banner signs shall not
represent a commercial message.

202279 SIGN, BILLBOARD shall mean a sign that
identifies or communicates a commercial or
noncommercial message related to an activity
conducted, a service rendered, or a commodity
sold at a location other than where the sign is
located.

Sign, Banner

2.02.280 SIGN, BUILDING MARKER shall mean any
sign indicating the name of a building and date
and incidental information about its
construction, which sign is cut into a masonry
surface or made of bronze or other permanent
material,

202281 SIGN, CANOPY shall mean any sign that is a
part of or attached to an awning, canopy, or
other fabric, plastic, or structural protective
cover over a door, entrance, window, or outdoor




service area. A marquee is not a canopy. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202282 SIGN, CENTER IDENTIFICATION shall mean any sign erected to provide direction to a development
including multiple uses and / or structures within the development. Center Identification signs shall
include the name of said development and may include the names of major tenants of the development
Center Identification Signs shall typically be similar to Ground (Monument) signs. (Ordinance No. 1083,
2-17-09)

2.02.283 SIGN, CONSTRUCTION shall mean a temporary sign identifving an architect, engineer, contractor,
subcontractor, andfor building material supplier who participates in construction on the property on
which the sign is located. (Ordinance No. 871, 10-15-02); (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 284 SIGN, ELECTRONIC MESSAGE BOARD shall
mean any sign capable of displaving words,
symbols, fivures, or images that can be
electronically or mechanically changed by remote
or automatic means. (Ordinance No. 1144, 5-17-
1)

2.02.285 SIGN, FLASHING shall mean a sign, which, by
method or manner of iHlumination, flashes on or off,
winks, or blinks with varying Hght intensity, shows
motion, or creates the illusion of being on or off.

i iy

202286 SIGN, FREESTANDING shall mean any sign

supported by uprights or braces placed on or in the Sign, Monument

ground, which is used principally for advertising or Sign, Electronic Message
identification purposes and is not supported by any Sign, Flashing

building,

2.02.287 SIGN, IDENTIFICATION shall mean a sign giving the nature, logo, trademark, or other
identifying symbol; address; or any combination of the name, symbol, and address of a building,
business, development, or establishment on the premises where it is located.

2.02.288 SIGN, ILEUMINATED shall mean a sign illuminated in any manner by an artificial light source.

2.02 289 SIGN, INCIDENTAL shall mean a sign, generally informational, that has a purpose secondary to the use
of the zone lot on which it is located, such as “no parking,” “enirance,” “loading only,” “telephone,” and
other similar directives. No sign with a commercial message legible from a position off the zone lot on
which the sign is located shall be considered incidental. Incidental signs may be attached or painted on the
wall, or they may be freestanding signs. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.290 SIGN, MARQUEE shall mean any permanent roof-like structure projecting beyond a building or
extending along and projecting beyond the wall of the building, generally designed and constructed to
provide protection from the weather.

2.02 291 SIGN, MONUMENT shall mean a sign mounted
directly to the ground with a maximum height not to
exceed ten (10) feet,

202292 SIGN. NAMEPLATE shall mean a sign not
exceeding two (2) square feet for each dwelling,

2.02.293 SIGN, NONCONFORMING shall mean any sign
that does not conform to the requirements of this
ordinance

Sign, Monument




2.02 294 SIGN, OFF-PREMISLES shali mean a sign including the supporting sign structure which directs the
attention of the general public to a business, service, or activity not usually conducted, or a product not
offered or sold, upon the premises where such sign is located.

202295 SIGN, ON-PREMISE shall mean a sign, display, or device-advertising activities conducted on the
property on which such sign is located.

2.02.296 SIGN, PENNANT shall mean any lightweight plasuc fabric, or other material, whether or not com'umng,
a message of any kind, suspended from a rope, wire, or string, usually in series, designed to move in the
wind

2.02.297 SIGN, POLE shall mean a sign that is mounted on a freestanding pole or other support so that the bottom
edge of the sign face is six (6) feet or more above prade

2.02 298 SIGN, PORTABLE shall mean a sign, usually of a temporary nature, not securely anchored to the ground
or to a building or structure and which obtains some or all of its structural

stability with respect to wind or other normally applied forces by means of its
geometry or character. Examples are: menu and sandwich board signs,
balloons used as signs, umbrellas used for advertising, and signs attached to or
painted on vehicles parked and visible from the public right-of-way, unless
said vehicle is used in the normal day-to-day operations (deliveries and
transportation of personnel) of the business. This definition also includes any

and all sandwich boards supported by human beings or animals. %:‘tf%“‘ér‘é‘?
o (

B SISTERS:
2.02 299 SIGN, PROJECT DIRECTORY shall mean a sign fronting on a road

containing only the name of the principal use and directional arrow fo the
principal use Project divectory signs are intended to direct attention to
planned multi-tenant developments which are not easify accessible off of such
roads and where on-premise signage for that development (or any tenants
within the development) would niot otherwise be visible by the motorists
traveling on nearby arterial or collector roads at the closest point of access
(Ordinance No. 1144, 5-17-11)

2.02.300 SIGN, PROJECTING shall mean a projecting sign attached to a building in
such a manner that its leading edge extends more than eight (8) inches beyond o
the surface of such building or wall Sign, Projecting

2.02.301 SIGN, REAL ESTATE shall mean a temporary sign that identifies property or properties that are for sale
or lease.

202 302 SIGN, ROOF shall mean a sign identifying the name of a business, enterprise, or the product sold on the
premises and erected on or over the roof of a building. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.303 SIGN SETBACK shall mean the horizontal distance from the property line to the nearest projection of the

existing or proposed sign.

2.02.304 SIGN, SUBDIVISION shall mean a sigh erected on a
subdivision which identifies the platted subdivision where the
sign is located

2.02.305 SIGN SURFACE shall mean the entire area of a sign.

202 306 SIGN, SUSPENDED shall mean a sign that is suspended
from the underside of a horizontal plane surface and is
supported by such surface.

Sign, Subdivision




2.02.307 SIGN, TEMPORARY shall mean a sign construeted of cloth, fabric, or other material with or without a
structural frame intended for a limited period of display, including displays for holidays or public
demonstrations. Temporary signs shall include portable signs as defined in this section.

2.02.308 SIGN, VIDEO shall mean any on-premises or off-premises sign that conveys either a commercial or non-
commercial message, including a business or organization name, through means of a television or other
video screen. This definition shall include elect onic message board signs. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-
09)

202309 SIGN, WALL shall mean any sign attached paraltel to, but
within eight inches of, a wall, painted on the wall surface of, or
erected and confined within the limits of an outside wall of any
building or structure, which is supported by such wall or
building, and which displays only one sign suiface.

2.02.310 SIGN, WINDOW shall mean any sign, pictures, symbel, or S—
combination thereof, designed to communicate information BUCK'S SHOES
about an activity, business, commodity, event, sale, or service, Purvayors of fing foorsear and accessor
that is placed inside a window or upon the window panes or R ]
glass and is visible from the exterior of the window

2.02 311 SIGN BASE shall mean any decorative, functional element
extending upward from grade to the start of the sign .
Sign, Wall

2.02 312 SIMILAR USE shall mean the use of land, buildings, or
structures of like kind or general nature with other uses within a zoning district as related to bulk, intensity
of use, traffic generation and congestion, function, public services requirements, aesthetics or other
similarities.

2.02.313 SITE PLAN shall mean a plan, prepared to scale, showing accurately and with complete dimensioning, the
boundaries of a site and the location of all buildings, structures, uses, drives, parking, drainage, landscape
features, and other principal site development improvements for a specific parcel of land

202314 8OCIAL CLUB OR FRATERNAL ORGANIZATIONS shall mean an association of persons (whether or
not incorporated), religious or otherwise, for a common purpose, but not including groups which are
organized primarily to render a service carried on as a business for profit (Ordinance No, 1083, 2-17-
49)

202315 S0LID WASTE shall mean waste materials consisting of garbage, trash, refuse, rubble, sewage, offal,
dead animals, or paunch manure

2.02.316 SPECIAL or VOCATIONAL TRAINING FACILITIES shall mean a specialized instructional
establishment that provides on-site training of business, commercial, and/or trade skills such as
acconnting, data processing, and computer repair. This classification excludes establishments providing
training in an activity that is not otherwise permitied in the zone. Incidental instructional services in
conjunction with another primary use shall not be included in this definition (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-

09)
202317 SPECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREAS shall mean anatomical areas consisting of:
2.02.3161 Less than completely and opaguely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttock, amus,
or female breast{(s) below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and,
202.316.2 Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely
covered

202318 SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES shall mean activities consisting of the following:




20231801 Actual or simulated sexual intercourse, oral copulation, anal intercourse, oral-anal
copulation, bestiality, direct physical stimulation of unclothed genitals, flageliation or
torture in the context of a sexual relationship, or the use of excretory functions in the
context of a sexual relationship, and any of the following sexually-oriented acts of
conduct: Anilingus, buggery, coprophagy, coprophilia, cunnilingus, fellatio, necrophilia,
pederasty, pedophilia, piquerisn, sapphism, zooerasty; or

20231802 Clearly depicted human genitals in the state of sexual stimulation, arousal, or
fumescence; or

202.318.03 Use of human or animal ejaculation, sodomy, oral copulation, coitus, or masturbation; or

20231804 Fondling or touching of nude human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, or female breast(s),
or

20231805 Situation involving a person o1 persons, any of whom are nude, clad in undergarments or
in sexually revealing costumes, and who are engaged in activities involving the
flagellation, torture, fettering, binding, or other physical restraint or any such persons; or

2.02.318.06 Erotic or lewd touching, fondling, or other sexually-oriented contact with an animal by a
human being; or

20231807 Human excretion, urination, menstruation, vaginal, or anal irrigation.

202319 STATE shall mean the State of Nebraska.

2.02 320 STORAGE shall mean the keeping, in a roofed or unroofed area, of any goods, junk, material,
merchandise, or vehicles on the same tract or premises for more than thirty (30) days.

2.02.321 STORY shall mean a space in a building between the surface of any floor and the surface of the floor
above, or if there is not floor above, then the space between such floor and the ceiling or roof above.

202322 STREET shall mean a public thoroughfare or right-of-way dedicated, deeded, or condemned for use as
such, other than an alley, which affords the principal means of access to abutting property including
avenue, place, way, drive, lane, boulevard, highway, road and any other thoroughfare except as excluded
in this Regulation.

202323 STREET, ARTERIAL shall mean a street designed with the primary function of efficient movement of
through traffic between and around areas of'a City, City, or county with controlled access to abutting

property.

202324 STREET, COLLECTOR shall mean a street or high way, which is intended to carry raffic from a minor
street to major streets. Collector streets are usually the principal entrance streets to residential
developments and the streets for circulation within the development

202325 8TREET FRONTAGE shall mean the distance for which a lot line of a zone lot adjoins a public street,
from one lot line intersecting said street to the furthest distant lot line intersecting the same street.

2.02 326 STREET, LOCAL shall mean a street designed for local traffic that provides direct access to abutting
restdential, commercial, or industrial properties.

2.02.327 STREET. PRIVATE shall mean an open, unoccupied space, other than a street or alley dedicated to the
public, but permanently established as the principal means of vehicular access to abutting properties.
(Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202328 STREETSCAPE shall mean the scene as may be observed along a street right-of-way composed of
natural and man-made components, including buildings, paving, plantings, poles, signs, benches, and
other miscellaneous amenities. (Grdinance No. 1083, 2-17-G9)

2.02.329 STRUCTURE shall mean anything constructed or built, any edifice or building of any kind, or any piece
of work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner, which requires



focation on the ground or is attached 1o something having a lecation on the ground, including swimming
and wading pools and covered patios, excepting outdoor areas such as paved areas, walks, tennis courts,
and similar recreation arcas

202330 STRUCTURE, TEMPORARY shall mean a structure permitted as a temporary use (Ordinance No.
1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.331 STRUCTURAL ALTERATION shall mean any change in the support membets of a building, such as in
a bearing wall, column, beam or girder, floor or ceiling joists, roof raflers, roof diaphragms, foundations,
piles, or retaining walls or similar components.

2.02.332 SUBDIVISION shall mean the division of land, lot, tract, or parcel into two o1 more [ots, parcels, plats, ot
sites, or other divisions of land for the purpose of sale, lease, offer, or development, whether immediate or
future. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.333 TANNING SPA or SALON shall mean any business that uses artificial lighting o other systems to
produce a tan on an individual’s body These facilities may be either a stand-alone business or as an
accessory use in spas, gymnasiums, athletic clubs, health clubs, and styling salons. This use is not
included with any type of adult establishiment. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202334 TAVERN AND COCKTAIL LOUNGE shall mean any establishment whose principal business is serving
aleoholic beverages at retail for consumption on the premises. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02 335 TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY shall mean any facility that transmits and/or receives signals by
electromagnetic or optical means, including antennas, microwave dishes, horns, or similar types of
equipment, towers or similar structures supporting such equipment, and equipment buildings. (Ordinance
No. 1083, 2-17-09) ‘

202336 TELEPHONE EXCHANGE shall mean a building used exclusively for the transmission and exchange of

telephone messages, buf the term shall not inclide wirefess communication towers (Ordinance No. 1083,
2-17-09)

2.02 337 TEMPORARY USE shall mean a use intended for limited duration, not to exceed six (6) months, to be
located in a zoning district not permitting such use. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-0%)

2.02.338 THEATER shall mean a building or structure used for dramatic, operatic, motion pictures, or other

performance, for admission to which entrance money is received and no audience participation or meal
service,

2.02.339 TOWER shall mean a structure situated on a site that is intended for transmitting or receiving television,
radio, or telephone communications. (Also, see Antenna)

2.02.340 TOWNHOQUSE shall mean a one-family dwelling unit, with a private entrance, which /s part of a structure
whose dweliing units are attached horizontally in a linear arrangement, and having a totally exposed front
and rear wall to be used for access, light, and ventilation.

2,02 341 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES shall mean establishments providing services incidental to
transpartation, such as forwarding, packing, erating, or other means of preparing goods jor shipping
{See also Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Industry Group 473 and description 4783, published by
the US Department of Labor ) (Ordinance No. 1053, 1-15-08)

202342 USE, PRINCIPAL shail mean the main use of land or structure, as distinguished from an accessory use.
{Also, see Principal Building)

2.02 343 UTILITARIAN STRUCTURE shall mean a structure or enclosure relating to mechanical or electrical
services to a building or development.




202344 UTILYTY HARDWARE shall mean devices such as poles, crossarms, transformers and vaults, gas
pressure regulating assemblies, hydrants, and buffalo boxes (hat are used for water, gas, oil, sewer, and
electrical services to a building or a project.

2.02.345 UTILITY SERVICE shall mean any device, including wire, pipe, and conduit, which carries gas, water,
electricity, oil and communications into a building or development

2.02 346 VARIANCE shall mean a velief granfed by the Board of Adjustment from or variation of the provisions of
this Ordinance, other than use regulations, as applied to a specific piece of property, as distinct from
rezoning. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202347 VETERINARY SERVICES shall mean a building ov part of a building used for the cave, diagnosis, and
treatment of sick, ailing, infirm, or injured animals, and those who are in need of medical or swrgical
atfention  Such clinics may or may not also provide long-term lodging for ill or umvanted animals, or
lodging for healthy animals on a fee basis. Such clinics may or may not also provide general grooming
praciices for such animals, (Ordinance No. 871, 10-15-02)

2.02 348 WAREHOQUSE shall mean a building used primarily for the storage of goods and materials.

2.02 349 WHOLESALE TRADE shall mean a use primarily engaged in selling merchandise to retailers; to
industrial, commercial, institutional, farm or professional business users; or to other wholesalers; or acting
as agents or brokers in buying merchandise for or selling merchandise to such persons or companies. The
principal types of establishments included are: Merchant wholesalers; sales branches and sales offices
(but not retail stores) maintained by manufacturing enterprises apart from their plants for the purpose of
marketing their products; agents, merchandise or commodity brokers, and commission merchants;
petroleum bulk storage, assemblers, buyers, and associations engaged in cooperative marketing of farm
products. The chief functions of uses in wholesale trade are selling goods to trading establishments, or to
industrial, commercial, institutional, farm and professional; and bringing buyer and seller together. In
additional to selling, functions frequently performed by wholesale establishments include maintaining
inventories of goods; extending credit; physically assembling, sorting and grading goods in large lots,
breaking bulk and redistribution in smaller lots; delivery; refrigeration; and various types of promotion
such as advertising and label designing,

202350 WIND ENERGY SYSTEM aor WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM (WECS) shali mean a wind-
driven machine that converts wind energy Into electrical power for the primary purpose of on-site se or
resale for off-site use. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.351 WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS TOWER shall mean a structure designed and constructed 1o support
one or more antennas nsed by commercial wireless telecommunication facilities and including all
appurtenant devices attached to it A tower can be freestanding (solely self-supported by attachment to the
ground) or supported (attached directly to the ground and with guy wires), of either lattice or monopole
constriction (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

202,352 _YARD shall mean any open space on the same lot with a building or a dwelling group, which open space is
unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upward to the sky, except for building projections or for
accessory buildings or structures permitted by this Regulation.
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2.02.353_ YARD, FRONT shall mean a space between the front yard setback line and the front ot line or right-of-
way line, and extending the full width of the lot. (Ordinance No. 1083, 2-17-09)

2.02.354 YARD, REAR shall mean a space between the rear yard setback line and the rear lot line, extending the
full width of the lot. -

2.02.355 YARD, SIDE shall mean a space extending from the front yard or from the front lot line where no front
yard is required by this Regulation, to the rear yard, or rear lot line, between a side lot line and the side
yard setback line.

2.02.356 ZONE_LOT shall mean a parcel of land in single ownership that is of sufficient size to meet minimum
zoning requirements for area, coverage, and use, and that can provide such yards and other open spaces as
required by the zoning regulations.

SECTION 2 Repeal of Section 2.02 as Previously Enacted. Section 2.02 of Ordinance No. 848
as previously enacted is hereby repealed.

SECTION 3 Severability Clause. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this
ordinance is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutionatity or invalidity
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Mayor and City Council of the
City of La Vista hereby declare that it would have passed this ordinance and each section, subsection,
clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid

SECTION 4 Effective Date This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
passage, approval and publication as provided by law

SECTION 5 This ordinance shall be published in pamphiet form and {ake effect as provided
by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6™ DAY OF MARCH, 2012

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

ATTEST:



Pamela A Buethe, CMC
City Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 5.12 OF ORDINANCE NO. 848 (ZONING ORDINANCE), TO
REPEAL SECTION 5.12 OF ORDINANCE NO. 848 AS PREVIOUSLY ENACTED, TO PROVIDE FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, SARPY
COUNTY, NEBRASKA:

SECTION 1 Amendment of Section 5.12 Section 5 12 of the Ordinance No. 848 is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Section 5.12 C-3 Highway Commercial / Office Paric District

5.12.01 Intent: The Highway Commercial / Office Park District is intended for large scale commercial and office
park development. In addition, this district prohibits all exterior storage by a primary use unless a separate
Conditional Use Permit is requested for the use and graated by the City

5.12.02 Permitted Uses:
5.12.02.01 Medical/dental offices and business services including: attorneys, banks, insurance, real
estate offices, postal stations, credit services, security brokers, dealers and exchange, title
abstracting, finance services and investment services; but not including uses defined in
Adult Establishment. (Ordinance No. 950, 3-1-05)

5.12.02.02 Museum, art gallery.
5.12.02.03 Retail business or service establishment supplying commodities or performing services,
such as, ot in compatibility with and including the following:
1 Book store, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment
2 Brew-on premises store.
3 Dry cleaning and laundry pickup.
4 Floral shop.
5 Gift and curio shop.
6. Jewelry store.
7. Reservation center.
g Restaurants, cafes and fast food establishment.
9, Travel agencies,
10. Office Park developments.
I Video store, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment.
12, Meeting Halls not including Adult Establishments.
5.12.02.04 Publicly owned and operated facilities. (Ordinance No., 950, 3-1-03)
5.12,03 Permitted Conditional Uses:
5.12.03 01 Theater, indoor, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment.
3.12.03.02 Automobile display, sales, service, and repair
5.12.03.03 Brew Pubs.
5120304 Micro breweries when in conjunction with a restaurant.
5.12.03.05 Coffee Kiosks
5120306 Automated Teller Machines when not within the interior of a primary use.
5120307 Tavern and cocktail lounge, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment
5.12.03.08 Convenience store with limited fuel sales
5.12.03.09 Churches and temples
3120310 Hotels, including restaurants, convention and meeting facilities and other related uses, not

including uses defined in Adult Establishment

5.12.03.11 Department Stores.

5.12.03.12 Retail trade centers.

5.12.03.13 Shopping centers,

51203.14 Commercial Strip Shopping Center.



5120315 Outlet Shopping Center.

3120316 Health Clubs and tanning salon, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment.
5120317 Heaith Recreation Facilities, not including uses defined in Adult Establishment
51203.18 Colleges and Universities (Ordinances No. __, )

5.12.04 Permitted Temporary Uses
Temporary Uses require a permit from the City of La Vista and shall be valid only for a specific amount of
time as indicated on said permit A platted lots or tracts of land may have a maximum number of four (4)
temparary uses per calendar year. Such uses shall not last more than two (2) weeks per use, except as
provided for hereafier (Ordinance No. 998, 7-18-06)

5.12.04.01 Temporary greenhouses

3120402 Temporary structures as needed for sidewaik and other outdoor sales events.

5.12.04 03 Fireworks stands, provided the criteria are met as established by the City through separate
Ordinances.

5120404 Buildings and uses incidental to construction work are perminted to remain until

completion or abandonment of the construction work, at which time they shall be
removed (Ordinance No. 998, 7-18-06)
5120405 Temporary structure for festivals or commercial events

5.12.05 Permitted Accessory Uses

5.12.05.01 Buildings and uses customarily incidental to the permitted uses

5120502 Parking as permitted in Section 7.03 through 7 09.

3.12.05.03 Signs allowed in Section 7.01 through 7.04

5.12.05.04 Landscaping as required by Section 7.17.
5.12.06 Height and Lot Requirements:

5.12.06.01 The height and minimum lot requirements shall be as follows:

Lot Area Lot Front Side Rear Muix, Max. Lot

Uses {5F) Width Yard Yard Yard Height Coverage
Permitted Uses 10.000 - 25! 15 15" 907 60%
Permitted Conditional Uses 10.000 - 257! 15 i3 907 60%

! 25" front yard setback required only when ne parking i present in the front yard 1f parking is located in the front yard then front yard

setback is a mininwem of fifty (30) feet
Amy building within 100 feet of a residentially zoned district shall not exceed 45 feet in height (Ordinunce No. 1082, 11-18-08)

5.12.07 Use Limitations:

512.07.01 When adjacent to residentiaily zoned land, no parking, drives or signs shall be allowed in
any required yard within fifieen (15) feet of such district. Furthermore, permanent
screening shall be provided in this area in order to minimize impacts on residentially
zoned property, as per Section 7.14.04

5120702 Exterior lighting fixtures shall be shaded so that no direct light is cast upon any
residential property and so that no glare is visible to any traffic on any public street

SECTION 2 Repeal of Section 5.12 as Previously Enacted. Section 5.12 of Ordinance No. 848
as previously enacted is hereby repealed.

SECTION 3 Severability Clause If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this
ordinance is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutionality or invalidity
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Mayor and City Councii of the
City of La Vista hereby declare that it would have passed this ordinance and each section, subsection,
clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.



SECTION 4. Effective Date This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
passage, approval and publication as provided by law

SECTION B This ordinance shafl be published in pamphlet form and take effect as provided
by law

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6™ DAY OF MARCH, 2012

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela A Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

Wovdefpd \Users\AdministrationBRENDAYCCUNCGILORDINANCWmMend Zoning Ordinance 5§ 12 - Colleges Universilies Docx



CiTy OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:
RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION — RESOLUTION

SOUTH SIDE OF HARRISON, EAST OF € ORDINANCE ANN BIRCH

83%° STREET RECEIVE/FILE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIR.
SYNOPSIS

An ordinance has been prepared to approve the vacation of a portion of unused public right-of-way on the south
side of Harrison Street, adjacent to Lot 1282-D1, La Vista, located east of 83" Street.

FISCAL IMPACT

Harrison Street was constructed using 80% Federal Highway Administration funding and 20% local match.
Any proceeds from the sale of the right-of-way must be split with 80% being refunded to the State. The City
will keep the other 20%, estimated to be $5,314.60.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

The City of La Vista received a request by Nebraska CVS Pharmacies, LLC, to vacate a portion of the Harrison
Street right-of-way (approximately 4,599 square feet) which is adjacent to Lot 1282-D1, La Vista. The
developers of CVS/Parsley Place (Nebraska CVS Pharmacies, LLC) have also requested the ability to purchase
the parcel, and intend to construct a multi-tenant project directory sign on the property. If approved, the
vacation and conveyance of this part of the Harrison Street right-of-way would be subject to compliance with
the following:

1. Easements to all existing utilities shall remain;

2. The pavement subsurface pipes that were constructed and terminate at about the proposed right-of-way

acquisition line shall remain in place; and
3. Reimbursement to the Federal Highway Administration for monies expended in acquiring the right-of-

way.

An appraisal and a review appraisal of the property was completed and submitted to the Right-of-Way Division
of the Nebraska Department of Roads for approval. Their approval has been received subject to splitting the
proceeds of the sale, with 80% being refunded to the State and 20% to be retained by the City. Attached is a
letter from John Kottmann, City Engineer, summarizing the value of the parcel based on the appraisals and
adjusting for expenses incurred by the applicant and the City.




&

An ordinance has been prepared to vacate that portion of the Harrison Street right-of-way as shown on Exhibit
A. A notice of the sale and the terms of the sale, Exhibit B, will then be published for three consecutive weeks
in the newspaper. A remonstrance can be filed against the sale of the property if at least 30% of the electors
voting in the last City election sign the remonstrance. A remonstrance against the sale must be filed within 30
days after the passage and publication of the ordinance. If a remonstrance is not filed, the City will prepare a
deed in which the City quitclaims its interest in the vacated right-of-way to Nebraska CVS Pharmacy, LLC.

The property owner adjoining this portion of right-of-way, Professional Mortuary Services, Inc. at 8201
Harrison Street, has been notified of this proposed right-of-way vacation and sale.

\Lvdcfp01\Users\Administration\BRENDA\COUNCIL\12 Memos\Vacate ROW - CVS.Doc
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN REAL
ESTATE ADJACENT TO HARRISON STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED IN THE NW
% OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 14 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE 6™ P.M,,
SARPY COUNTY, NEBRASKA, AND THE MANNER AND TERMS THEREOF; AND TO
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA:

Section 1. It is hereby declared necessary, expedient, proper and for the public good to
convey certain real estate adjacent to Harrison Street right-of-way located in the NW %
of Section 14, Township 14 North, Range 12 East of the 6™ P.M., Sarpy County,
Nebraska, more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference, (“Property”), subject to the following conditions and limitations
reserved in perpetuity to the City of La Vista:

a. the right to maintain, operate, repair, replace, extend and renew sewers
and other improvements now existing in, on, over, under or across the Property and in
the future to construct, maintain, repair, replace, extend and renew additional or other
sewers and improvements;

b. the right to authorize public utilities, cable television companies and other
persons, systems or services to construct, maintain, repair, replace, renew, extend and
operate now or hereafter installed water mains and gas mains, poles, lines, conduits,
equipment and appurtenances above, in, on, over, across or below the surface of the
ground for the purpose of serving the general public or abutting property;

C. the right to authorize such connections or branch lines as may be
ordered, desired or permitted by the City or such other utility, person, system or service;
and

d. the right to enter upon the Property to accomplish the above and any
related or similar purposes at any and all times.

All or any vegetation now or hereafter upon the Property, including, but not limited to,
trees, shrubs and crops, and all or any improvements and structures now or hereafter
upon the Property, including, but not limited to, buildings, walls, fences, drives, paving
and walks, may be damaged or removed by or as authorized by the City as necessary or
appropriate in the exercise of the rights herein reserved without any requirement of
restoration or compensation to any person.

Section 2. Upon request and payment of adequate consideration and such
administrative costs and fees incurred by the City in connection with this conveyance,
the City shall provide a quitclaim deed to Nebraska CVS Pharmacy, L.L.C., the Property
specified in Exhibit A, conveying that portion of said Property that abuts said person’s
property and reserving the rights specified in Section 1 above, in accordance with the
manner and terms of conveyance specified in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference. Such conveyance shall be executed by the Mayor
and City Clerk, who are hereby authorized to take such action.




Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of the sale
of the Property specified in Exhibit A and the terms of such sale in accordance with the
requirements of Section 16-202 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska.

Section 4. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval and publication as provided by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6™ DAY OF MARCH, 2012.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

\Lvdcfp01\Users\Administration\BRENDAVCOUNCIL\ORDINANCWacate PT Harrison St ROW - CVS.Doc
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EXHIBIT “B”

MANNER AND TERMS OF SALE

Manner of Sale: Quitclaim Deed from City to Nebraska CVS Pharmacy, L.L.C.
vacated right-of-way, with reservation of easements and other rights.

Terms of Sale:

1)

2)

,73)
4)

o)

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
LOT 1282D1, LA VISTA, SARPY COUNTY, NEBRASKA, AND A POINT
IN THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HARRISON STREET,
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1282D1 AND THE
EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 83R° STREET, S02°44'17°E FOR 80.00
FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 1282D1 AND THE
EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 83RP STREET, S87°15'43" FOR 20.00;
THENCE N54°08'47"W FOR 63.97 FEET;, THENCE N02°44’17"W FOR
40.00 FEET; THENCE N87°10'56"E FOR 70.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING CONTAINING 4,599.02 SQUARE FEET OR 0.106 ACRES
MORE OR LESS.

Consideration to be paid to City: $26,573 (Appraised at $36,972 less
$1,800 paid to City for cost of appraisal, $900 paid to City of cost or review
appraisal, $2,000 for platting expense, and $5,519 paid to City for
administrative fees).

Method of Payment: Cash at closing.

Closing Date: As parties may agree.

Purchaser: Nebraska CVS Pharmacy, L.L.C.




TIMELINE
VACATION AND CONVEYANCE OF EXCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY
HARRISON AND 83%° STREETS

Ordinance vacating right-of-way City Council 3/6/12
Publish ordinance 3/15/12

Publish Notice of Real Estate Sale for 3 weeks 3/15, 3/22, 3/29
Passage of 30 days after last publication (without 4/30/12

filing of remonstrance)

Closing After 4/30/12




February 24, 2012

Mr. Chris Solberg, City Planner
Via: Inter-Office Mail

RE: CVS Pharmacy, La Vista, Nebraska
Excess Right-of-Way Acquisition, 83" & Harrison
Proposed Purchase Price

Chris:

We have obtained an initial appraisal and a review appraisal in accordance with the
procedures established by the Nebraska Department of Roads and the FHWA. This is
required since the excess right- of- way parcel under consideration was initially
acquired with the use of Federal funds. We have sent both the initial and review
appraisals to the Nebraska Department of Roads Right-of-Way Division for comment.
They have advised that we may proceed to arrive at a valuation for the subject parcel
based upon these appraisals. The initial appraisal has been provided to you
previously. We received the review appraisal on September 16, 2011. A copy is
enclosed herewith.

The initial appraisal rendered an opinion of value at $22,000. The review appraisal
rendered an opinion of value at $36,800. Both appraisals agreed on a value of $8 per
square feet. The difference in the opinions relates to which fees and costs of the
process are deductable or not. Some of the costs were previously billed to the CVS
since they requested the process be undertaken and some costs were (or will be)
incurred directly by CVS. The creation of this parcel will require a plat to be prepared

and recorded since the parcel being created is less than 10 acres in size. We anticipate

that this would be done as an administrative plat if the process successfully proceeds

past the public hearing stage which will be at the expense of CVS. The largest expense

item in the initial appraisal is the “entrepreneurial profit”. The comparables were
based on private party sales and the appraiser included an allowance for 30 percent
profit. The City is not undertaking this process for profit, but does need to cover it's
administrative costs. 1estimate this effort to be in the range of 15 percent. The City
will also be required to submit 80% of the proceeds to the Federal Highway

La Vista

Community Pride, Frogressive Vislon.

City Hall

8116 Park View Blvd.

La Vista, NE 68128-2198
p: 402-331-4343

f. 402-331-4375

Community Development
8116 Park View Blvd.

p: 402-331-4343

f: 402-331-4375

Fire

8110 Park View Blvd.
p: 402-331-4748

f: 402-331-0410

Golf Course
8305 Park View Blvd.
p: 402-339-9147

Library

9110 Giles Rd.
p: 402-537-3900
f: 402-537-3902

Police

7701 South 96th St.
p: 402-331-1582

f: 402-331-7210

Public Works
9900 Portal Rdl.
p: 402-331-8927
f: 402-331-1051

Recreation .
8116 Park View Blvd.
p: 402-331-3455

f: 402-331-0299




Administration via the Nebraska Department of Roads since the right-of- way was acquired with federal-aid

monies.

In view of the foregoing a reconciled value is set forth as follows:

4,599 Square Feet @ $8.00 per Square Foot = $ 36,792
Less Expenses to Applicant:
Initial Appraisal Fee $ (1,800)
Review Appraisal Fee S ({ 900)
Platting Expense $(2,000)
Adjustments to Appraisal:
Deduct Profit Factor $(11,038)
Add Expenses incurred by City:
Administrative Fees $5,519
(15% of $36,792)
Value of Parcel: ‘ $26,573

The information presented above is my recommendation for a method to resolve the differing professional
opinions that we have received from qualified appraisers.

Prepared by:

John WKottmann, P.E.
City Engineer’




ITEM
CiTy OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:

REHABILITATION/REPAIR € RESOLUTION

GOLF COURSE Pump ORDINANCE JOE SouciE
RECEIVE/FILE PUBLIC WORKS DIiRECTOR

SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared authorizing Great Plains Well Service, LLC., to rehabilitate and repair the 50 hp
irrigation pump at the Golf Course in an amount not to exceed $7,230.00.

FiscaL ImpaCT

The FY 2011/12 Golf Fund Budget provides funding for the proposed purchase.

RECOMMENDATION
Approval

BACKGROUND

The irigation pumps at the Golf Course require periodic maintenance. The current pump is not broken, this is
preventative maintenance task. Three quotes were submitted and Golf Superintendent Jeff Calentine is
recommending Great Plains Well Service a the low qualified bidder.

Vendor Quote
Great Plains Well Service, LLC. $7,230.00
Industrial Electric Motors $9,876.00
Sargent Drilling $11,126.00

KAAPPSICity HRCNCLRPTV 201eA12 PW Golf Course Pump Rebab Doex



RESOLUTION NO,

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING GREAT PLAINS WELL SERVICE, LLC TO REHABILITATE AND
REPAIR THE 50 HP IRRIGATION PUMP AT THE GOLF COURSE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $7,230.00.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that rehabilitation and
repair of the irrigation pump at the Golf Course is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the FY 11/12 Goif Fund Budget contains funding for this project, and
WHEREAS, Great Plains Well Service, LLC submitied the lowest gualified bid, and
WHEREAS  Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that

the City Administrator secures Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase
over $5,000 00

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska
authorize Great Plains Well Service, LLC to rehabilitate and repair the 50 HP
irrigation pump at the golf course in an amount not to exceed $7,230.00

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH, 2012.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

FPamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

KAAPPS\City Hali\12 FINAL RESOLUTIONSW12  Rehab repair golf course pump.doc



INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC MOTORS

ESTABLISHED 1822

"MIDWEST'S POWER

REPAIR SHOP"

9770 S 142nd St
Omaha NE 68138
Phone (402) 331-0700
Fax (402) 331-0704

An @_Ilo Group Compnay

February 22, 2012

Jeft Calentine

City Of La Vista
8116 Park View Blvd.
La Vista, NE 68128

RE: Breakdown Of lirigation Pump Repairs

Mr. Calentine,

Industrial Electric Motors is pleased to present this estimate for repair of your two
irrigation pumps and motors. This estimate is based on our site visit with you on April
20, 2011. The scope of our services for this project will include the following.

Removal and installation of pumps and motors
Replacing motor inboard and outboard bearings
Balancing motor rotors

Dip and baking motor windings

Replacing pump seals and bushings

The 15 HP pump and motor repair § 3,487.00. Crane charge $ 1,500.00.

The 50 HP pump and motor repair $ 8,376.00. Crane charge $ 1,500.00.

Any shaft or impeller replacement if needed after disassembly and inspection would be
an extra charge.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this estimate and look forward to assisting you
in the successful completion of this project. We would be glad to discuss any questions
you may have regarding this proposal.

Sincerely,

Edward ]. Alex



Feb (07 03 06:55a The Sprinkler C

O ERER S O G

INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING

402 565 4849

COMPLETE MUNICIPAL AND INDUSTRIAL

PUMPS AND WELL SERVICE

PO Box 367 846 South 13 St Phone: (402) 758-3502
Geneva, NE 68361-0367 1-BBB-456-3502

January 30, 2012
The Sprinkler Co.
84420 562 Ave.
Stanton, NI 68779
Atmn: Dick Wright

RE: La Visit'gf_gﬁl_l,s,_(iglf__,_k

Irrigation Booster Pump #1 52 447

Labor to pull and set pump

15°- 6” column pipe complete

1- 6 stage 10SC bowl assembly (600 gpm @ 260 TDH)
Rework discharge head

Total (dees not include applicable sales tax)

$2,000.00
$1,714.00
$6,662.00

$750.00

e

$11,126.00 -7

Irrigation Booster Pump #2

Labor to pull and set pumnp

15°- 4" column pipe complete

1- 6 stage 9 WAHC bow] assembly
Rework discharge head

Total (does not include applicable sales tax)
Note: Any electric motor work would be extral
If you have any questions please call the office at (402) 759-3902.
Thank You,
@d’ ; %
Doug Yantzie,
Municial Manager

DY/dh

$2,000 .00
$1,508.00
$7,217.00

$750.00

$11,475.00

p3



ITEM
CiTy OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT
MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:

PURCHASE OF ¢ RESOLUTION

BALL FIELD AGGREGATE ORDINANCE JOE SOUCIE
RECEIVE/FILE PuBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the purchase of 125 tons of Ball Field Aggregate from Bryan Rock,
Inc., Shakopee, MN, for an amount not to exceed $7,500.

FISCAL IMPACT

The FY 2011712 General Fund Budget provides funding for proposed purchase.
RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

Ball Field Aggregate is currently used on all of our baseball/softball infields. This purchase will be used to
repair the infields. The infields naturally lose material each year due to wind blow-off and water erosion. This
is an on-going maintenance activity.

KAAPPEWCity HalCNCLRPTM 2680 2 PW Apgregate Purchase Dog



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 125 TONS OF BALL FIELD AGGREGATE

FROM BRYAN ROCK, INC, SHAKOPEE, MN., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$7,500.00.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that the purchase of ball
field aggregate is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the purchase has been included in the FY 2011/12 General Fund Budget; and

WHEREAS, Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31 23 of the |.a Vista Municipal code requires that
the City Administrator secure council approval prior to authorizing any
purchases over $5,000.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska
authorizing the purchase of 125 tons of ball field aggregate from Bryan Rock,
Inc., Shakopee, MN in an amount not to exceed $7,500 00.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH 2012,

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST.

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

KAAPPS\City HalVi2 FENAL RESOLUTIONS\I2  Purchase Bail Field Apgregate doc



2012 1 12PW Bryan Rock Products, Inc, . Ne. 1343 P 1
Al 5 uadlorl” “rax Juotation

S D& NG 3ox 215 - Shakopee, My 55379
#77"  phone (952)445-3900 (800)382-3756 Fax (952)445-0809

b 190.
0

e
E &

Date 02/10/2012 Pagel
Job/PDH#:

Ouote #:38171 Job Name: CITY OF LA VISTA NE

LA VISTA NE, CITY OF Desc: 2012 PRICE QUOTE

B8ll6 PARKVIEW BLVD Location:

LA VISTA, WNE 68128 Address: LA VISTA, NE

’&é(\(_\ \ %)T‘\QJ{'\ Letting: /[ /

Prices ara good through:i2/31/2012

Product Est.Quy Quarry Dalivered FOB
BALLFIELD LIME 125 HWY 41 QUARRY $54.35 Semi $14.35
*BALLFIELD LIME 125 HWY 41 QUARRY $57.35 Semi $14,35

Special Comsiderationg:
$54.35/T0N IF SHIPPED BEFDRE 3/15/12
$57.35/TON IF SHIPPED AFTER 3/15/12

Aggregnte Tax Included

Prices And (usntitiez Based Per Ton Unless Dtherwiss Noted

Straight Truck/Tandem Deliveries Subject to Extra Charge Piva Ssles Tax

Texrmas: Net 30

Partial Loadz Subject To Minimum Haul Charges

Prices Subject To Change With Major Fuel Incraesez Dr Road Clomuves Due To Flooding
The Truck Poptien 0f Our Quote Does ot Cover Any

Prevailing Wage Rete Requirementz That Mry Be

Reguired Oz This Job.

Pricar Subjedt to Tranait Jmprovement Tax

& Prices Subject To Change With Any Yrregular Leeding Or Delivery Hours (Mon-Fri 7:00 AH to 4:00 PM)

¥ w e 8O

Thanks for the opportunity to quote!

Seller: Mike Puncochar

Bryan Rock Products, Inc.

“TﬂgjgafoSgwd

\L\%S/ TOJQ \."\C{"r&‘r;a\ c...! BS /TO‘\? anccbena
+ Hooo/toN Gelwery chng Fshppee before slisle = H3.00/ 104 debiery

YAl o - ' M ap*‘crl
5435 [ron « (v 281wy lond et

57.35 /+om

H i L""
25 TONS ¥ 54353 GTT13.75 (70625 vewam w5k D
115 ToNs % 54352 € 375 savity \F GBI gefore 3151

. ’ ' FEMA Y U.MSDE'H'}'
(25 rons w O 1:35 71875 (23125 )

NS TONs per lod

brpquots Thie Company is an Equel Opportumity Empleyer FPage No. 1
www . bryanrock. com



ITEM

City oF LAVISTA
MAYOR AND C1TY COUNCIL REPORT

MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA
Subiect: Type: Submitted By:
ADVERTISE FOR BIDS — ¢ RESOLUTION
ASPHALT HOT BoxX ORDINANCE JOE SOUCIE
RECEIVE/FILE PuUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the Public Works Department to advertise for bids for an Asphalt
Hot Box.

Fiscal IMPACT

The FY 2011/12 General Fund Budget provides funding for the proposed purchase.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval

BACKGROUND

The proposed equipment request is to replace a 1993 Chausse Asphalt Hot Box. The current unit is broke down
on a regular basis; many of the replacement parts are no long available and must be manufactured. Bid

specifications have been prepared by the Street Superintendent and Street Foremen. The following schedule is
proposed:

Advertisement of Bids Maich 7, 2012
Open Bids March 22, 2012
Award Contract April 3, 2012

KAAPPS\City HaCNCL RPTV 2611V 2 PW Ady For Bids Hot Box Doc



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,

NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR AN ASPHALT HOT
BOX.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that an Asphalt Hot Box is necessary, and

WHEREAS, the FY 2011/2012 General Fund Budget provides funding for the purchase of
said asphalt hot box, and

WHEREAS, the Street Superintendant and Street Foremen have prepared specifications for
the prapased asphalt hot box,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Administrator is hereby authorized to
advertise for bids for the purchase of an asphalt hot box in accordance with
specifications prepared by the Street Superintendant and Street Foremen.

Advertisement of Bids March 7, 2012
Open Bids March 22, 2012
Award Contract April 3, 2012

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH, 2012

CITY OF LAVISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST.

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

KAAPPEICity Haf12 FINAL RESOLUTIONSVI2Z  Advertise for bids - Asphall Hot Box doo



RESOLUTION NO. __ .

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL AT A BEER
SAMPLING/TASTING EVENT AT 8052 SOUTH 84™ STREET ON MARCH 26, 2012

WHEREAS, 8052 South 84" Street is located within the City of La Vista, and

WHEREAS, JDJND Inc dba JD's Liquor Locker has requested approval of a Special
Designated Permit to have a beer samplingftasting event at 8052 South 84"
Street on March 26, 2012 from 5:00 p m to 9:30 p.m.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista,
Nebraska, do hereby authorize JDJND Inc dba JD's Liguor Locker to proceed
with the application for a "Special Designated License" from the Nebraska Liguor

Control Commission to have a beer sampling/tasting event at 8052 South 84"
Street.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH 2012.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pamela A Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

KAAPPS\City Haii\12 FiNAL RESOLUTIONSVI1  Spec Des License JDs Liquor focker doc



Pam Buethe

From: Bob Lausten

Sent: Thursday, March 01, 2012 2:37 PM
To: Pam Buethe

Subject: RE: SDL

No concerns to note

Robert 5 Lausten

Chief of Police

La Vista Police Department

7701 5 96th St

La Vista, Nebraska 68128

(402) 331-1582 FAX: (402) 331-7210

This Communication, along with any attachments, is covered by federal and state law governing electronic
communications and may contain confidential and legally privileged information. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, use or copying of this message is strictly
prohibited. If you received this in error, please reply immediately to the sender and delete this message. Thank you

Ffom: Pém Buefhe -
Sent: Thursday, March 01, 2012 1:05 PM

To: Bob Lausten
Subject: SDL

Please let me know of any concerns you have with this event. | am planning to put it on the 3/6 agenda if not concerns.
Thanks

Pam

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

City of La Vista

8116 Park View Boulevard
La Vista NE 68128

Phone: (402) 331-4343

Fax: (402) 331-4375
pbuethe@cityoflavista.org




APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL
DESIGNATED LICENSE

NEBRASKA LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
301 CENTENNIAL MALL SOUTH

PO BOX 95046

LINCOLN, NE 68509-5046

PHONE: (402) 471-2571

FAX: (402)471-2814

Webske: www loc ne gov/

Special Designated License (SDL)
Application Quick Checklist

Requirements:

v

v

Application must be received in Nebraska Liquor Control Commission (NLCC) office a MINIMUM
of 10 working days prior to the date of event (when counting days exclude weekends and holidays)
NO EXCEPTIONS

Application MUST include approval from the local governing body (city, village or county clerk of
where the event is to be held)

When requesting an exemption from NLCC rules, i.e. waiver of double fencing, request must be
received in (NLCC) office a MINIMUM of 30 days prior to the date of the event

All questions on application must be completed legibly

Include $40 fee, for each day/area applying for, checks made payable to Nebraska Liquor Control
Commission (NLCQ), if caterer no fees required

When requesting alternate date(s) or location(s), approval from local governing body must include
approval for these alternate date(s) or locations(s)

When requesting outdoor area you must include a sketch of area to be licensed

Neon Profit Application MUST:

v

Include Federal ID number, page 5 of application

Information:

v

v

v

Non caterer applicants are only allowed 6 SDLs per calendar year, this includes consecutive days
used on one application (i.e. July 4 — 9 = 6 days)

Applications may be submitted via e-mail to mary.messman(@nebraska.gov or faxed to (402) 471-
2814

Must use the most current form. Forms are available on our web site

at www.lcc.ne.sov/Licensingl orms/, form 108, or by call are main number (402) 471-2571
Reference statutes: §53-124.11, rules 2-013.01 and 6-019.01W 1,2,3

Oniy 12 SDLs will be issued to any specific location that could otherwise hold a liquor license

FORM 108
REV 1011
Pape Fof 5



APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL
DESIGNATED LICENSE

NEBRASKA LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
30% CENTENNIAL MALL SOUTH

PO BOX 55046

LINCOLN, NE 68509-5046

PHONE: (402) 471-257%

FAX: (402)471-2814

Website: www Iee ne gov/

RETAIL LICENSE HOLDERS

NON PROFIT APPLICANTS l::] Non Profit Status {(check one that best applies)

MunicipalD’olitical[:]Fine Arts[TraternalDleligiousDCharitableDPublic Service{:]

COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS

1. Type of alcohol to be served and/or consumed: Beer [‘Zl Wine E:I Distilled Spirits I::]

2. Liquor license number and class (i.e. C-55441) 88674
(If you're a nonprofit organization leave blank)

3. Licensee name (last, first,), corporate name or limited liability company (LLC) name
(As it reads on your liquor license)

name: YJDJIND INC
Appress: 4695 Arbor Street

4, Location where event will be held; name, address, city, county, zip code

suipiNe name JD'S Liquor Locker
Appruss: 0092 South 84th Street cry LaVista

zip 68128-3303 COUNTY and COUNTY #SarPY

a. Is this location within the city/village Hmits? YESI!/ !N()I l
b. Is this location within the 150° of church, school, hospital or home —
for aged/indigent or for veterans their wives? YES[__.]N
c. Is this location within 300’ of any university or college campus? YESDNO
FORM 108
REV 10711

Puge 2 of 5



5. Date(s) and Time(s) of event (no more than six (6) consecutive days on one application)
Date 03-26-2012 Date Date Date Date Date
Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours
From ©:00 p-m. From From From _ From From _
To 9:30p.m. To To To To To
a. Alternate date; N/A
b.  Alternate location: N/A
(Alternate date or location must be specified in local approval)
6. Indicate type of acti\{i—gf to be carried on during event:
Dance gReception L_{Fund Raiser [ ]Beer Garden ESamplinM asting()ther
7. Description of area to be licensed
Inside building, dimensions of area to be covered IN FEET 80 x20
Outdoor area dimensions of area to be covered INFEET X
(not square feet or acres)
INCLUDE SKETCH IF OUTDOOR AREA
If outdoor area, how will premises be enclosed?
Fence I_:_l: type of fence; snow fence Dchain link D cattle panel D other
Tent
Other | t explain
8. How many attendees do you expect at event? 25-75 )
9. If over 150 attendees. Indicate the steps that will be taken to prevent underage persons from
obtaining alcoho! beverages. (Attach separate sheet if needed)
We wiil have multiple employees working and will check ID's at the door.
10.  Will premises to be covered by license comply with all Nebraska sanitation laws? YESNO[::]
a. Are there separate toilets for both men and women? YES DNO v
11.  Where will you be purchasing your alcohol? Wholesaler Retailer 1 ]Both D BYO D
12, Will there be any games of chance operating during the event? Y'ESI !NO
If so, describe activity There may be a few free give aways
NOTE: Only games of chance approved by the Department of Revenue, Charilable Gaming Division are permitted. All
other forms of gambling are prohibited by State Law: There are no exceptions for Non Profit Organizations or any events
raising funds for a charity. This is only an application for a Special Designated License under the Liguor Control Act and
is not a gambling permit application.
13.  Any other information or requests for exemptions:

FORM 108
REV 10/11
Page 3 of §




14.  Name and telephone number/cell phone number of immediate supervisor., This person will be at
the location of the event when it occurs, able to answer any questions from Commission and/or law
enforcement before and during the event, and who will be responsibie for ensuring that any applicable
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations are adhered to.

Print name of Event Supervisor Jam/QS N Dr(}p{nSkl

Signature of Event Superviso .. C}/rmy/y) ’&{Za;m Z{:}L s
02-339-1634

402-339-1634

Phone of Event Supervisor: Before During

Consent of Authorized Representative/Applicant

15. I declare that I am the authorized representative of the above named license applicant and that the
statements made on this application are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 1 also consent to
an investigation of my background including all records of every kind including police records. I
agree to waive any rights or causes of action against the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission, the
Nebraska State Patrol or any other individual releasing said information to the Liquor Control
Commission or the Nebraska State Patrol. [ further declare that the license applied for will not be
used by any other person, group, organization or corporation for profit or not for profit and that the
event will be supervised by persons directly responsible to the holder of this Special Designated
Lic

) 2 President/Owner 02-29-2012
Adthorized Represéfitative/Applicant Title Date

James N Dropinski

Print Name

This individual must be listed on the application as an officer or stockholder unless a letter has been filed
appointing an individual as the catering manager aliowing them to sign all SDL applications.

The law requires that no special designated license provided for by this section shall be issued by the Commission without the
approval of the local governing body. For the purposes of this section, the local governing body shall be the city or village within
which the particular place for which the special designated license is requested is located, or if such place is not within the
corporate limits of a city or village, then the local governing body shall be the county within which the place for which the special
designated license is requested is located.

FORM 108
REV 10/11
Pape 4 of 5



This page is required to be completed by Non Profit applicants only.

Application for Special Designated License
Under Nebraska Liquor Control Act
Affidavit of Non-Profit Status

I HEREBY DECLARE THAT THE CORPORATION MAKING APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL DESIGNATED LICENSE
UNDER THE NEBRASKA LIQUOR CONIROL ACT IS EITHER A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, A FINE ARTS
MUSEUM INCORPORATED AS A NONPROFIT CORPORATION, A RELIGIOUS NONPROFIT CORPORATION WHICH
HAS BEEN EXEMPTED FROM THE PAYMENT OF FEDERAL INCOME TAXES, A POLITICAL ORGANIZATION
WHICH HAS BEEN EXEMPTED FROM THE PAYMENT OF FEDERAL INCOME TAXES, OR ANY OTHER NONPROFIT
CORPORATION, THE PURPOSE OF WHICH i8S FRATERNAL, CHARITABLE, OR PUBLIC SERVICE AND WHICH HAS
BEEN EXEMPTED FROM THE PAYMENT OF FEDERAL INCOME TAXES AS PER §53-124.11(1).

AS BIGNATORY 1 CONSENT TO THE RELEASE OF ANY DOCUMENTS SUPPORTING THIS DECLARATION AND
ANY DOCUMENTS SUPPORTING THIS DECLARATION WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE NEBRASKA LIQUOR
CONTROL COMMISSION, THE NEBRASKA STATE PATROL OR ANY AGENT OF THE LIQUOR CONTROL
COMMISSION IMMEDIATELY UPON DEMAND. 1 ALSO CONSENT TO THE INVESTIGATION OF THIS CORPORATE
ENTITY TO DETERMINE IT'S NONPROFIT STATUS.

I AGREE TO WAIVE ANY RIGHTS OR CAUSES OF ACTION AGAINST THE NEBRASKA LIQUOR CONTROL
COMMISSION, THE NEBRASKA STATE PATROL OR ANY PARTY RELEASING INFORMATION TO THE
AFOREMENTIONED PARTIES.

NAME OF CORPORATION

FEDERAL 1D NUMBER

SIGNATURE OF TITLE OF CORPORATE OFFICERS

THE ABOVE INDIVIDUAL STATES THAT THE STATEMENT ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT: IF ANY FALSE STATEMENT 15 MADE ON THIS
APPLICATION, THE APPLICANT SHALL BE DEEMED GUILTY OF PERTURY AND SUBJECT TO PENALTIES PROVIDED BY LAW (SEC §53-
13t 01) NEBRASKA LIQUOR CONTROL ACT

SUBSCRIBED IN MY PRESENCE AND SWORN T'O BEFORE ME THIS __ DAY OF

NOTARY PUBLIC SIGNATURE & SEAL

FORM {08
REV i0/11
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